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We develop and provide
business processes and services
to help our customers across

a diverse range of sectors —

in areas where managing
security and safety risks

are a key consideration

G45 plays an mportant role in socety We make

a difference by helping people to operate n a safe
and secure environment where they can thrive and
prosper and we believe that this role can only grow
In Importance

Operating In more than 110 countries and the
world's second largest private employer, G45 1
the world's leading securtty solutions graup
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G4S in brief

Who we are

GA4S 15 the world's leading international security
solutions group which specialises In outsourang
of business processes and faclittes in sectors
where security and safety nisks are considered
a strategic threat

What we do

We are global experts in the assessment and management of
securrty and safety rsks for buldings infrasiructure, matenals,
valuables pecple and society

We develop long-term strategic partnerships with customers

In key sectors where we can help them to delver their own
business objectives — either increasing their revenues, reducing costs
managing risks, protecting critical assets or mproving therr service
delivery to the customers they serve

We do that by understanding the environments in which our
customers operate the pressures they face and the 1ssues that
matter to them

By understanding the bigger picture and applying our expertise

and knowledge derved from providing securty sokstions in diverse
regulatory environments in more than 110 countries around the
world, we turn our customers security challenges into opportunities

In summary

Qur goal is to build long-term relationships with our customers
where we can help them to

= grow their revenues

- manage their costs

= manage their risks or protect ther assets

- improve the service they prowide to therr customers

Chief Executive’s interview on pages
04-07

Qur people

Wirth more than 595,000 employees, we take great
pride in the mportant work carned out by our staff
who do everything they can to ensure the security
and safety of our customers and their assets

{Full ume equivalent employees at year end December 200%)
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North Amenca Latin America Middle East
and Carbbean
Our values |

GA4S aims to act responsibly n how it manages
relationships with customers, communities, employees
and other stakeholders Our group values describe
what G45 stands for

Best people

We always take care to employ the best people, develop ther
competence, provide opportunity and inspire them to live our values

Teamwork and collaboration
We collaborate for the benefit of G45 as a whole

Customer focus

We have close open relationships with our customers that
generate trust and we work in partnership for the mutual benefit
of our organisations \

Integrity
We can always be trusted to do the nght thing

Expertise
We develop and demonstrate our expertise through our nnovative
and leading edge approach to creating and delivenng the nght solution

Performance
We challenge ourselves to improve performance year-on-year
to create long-term sustanability

Each value has a senior executive “champion™ within the group
responsible for ensuring that value becomes a key part of how
G45 does business




Our sectors

(548 has a broad range of customers around
the world but our strategic focus 1s on sectors
where safety and secunty are key This sector
expertise and focus wall enable us to build
long-term partnerships with customers and
help drive growth across the businesses

Turnover by sector 2009
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Qur regions

(45 has a broad geographuc reach gvng it a
unique and diverse global geographic footpnnt.

Turnover by geography 2009
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Our segments

Qur businesses can be broadly segmented into

Secure solutions - Government
Protecton of enucal nabonal infrastructiure care and
pstice services secure fachnes and border protec taon.

Our work in the Government
sector on pages 05-14

Cash solutions
Qutsourang of cash cycle management for central banks
financal msttutions and retailers.

Review for Cash sotutions
on pages 26 17

Secure solutions - commercial
Integrated secunty solutions for commercie! customers such
as nsk consulting manned secunty and secunity systerms

Revi 1

for Sectre
on pages 12-15

Group turnover by segment 2009
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2009 performance overview
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Overview

Business review
Governance

Financed staternents
Shareholder information

Qur investment proposition

(45 has strong market positions in structural growth
markets such as Government, cash solutions and
New Markets Since rts foundation in 2004 1t has had
a strong track record of performance and delvery
wirthin a prudent finanaal structure

Integrated security solutions

We are able to design and manage security soluttons that bring
together our In-house capabilibes in project management sk
consultancy secure faciities managemeni, physical secunty, intelligent
systems and high quality secunty-trained personnel to solve the
security challenges of a broad range of customers across the worid

Unrivalled cash solutions expertise
Understanding and managing the cash cycle of a country is a core
skill of the group Central banks commercal banks and retalers
outsource ther cash managemenit to G45 as we have the capability
and expenence to drive substantial efficiencies in the systern whilst

. achieving the maximum return for our customers over the long term

Government partnerships

Government outsourcing s a strong, long-term source of growth as
public sector spending remains under pressure and governments loak
to the private sector to provile cost effective solutions Government
contracts, which currently represent around 28% of group revenues,
tend to be long-term strategic partnerships with recurning income

Strong new market positions

Our global presence, market posrtions and expenence of working in
less developed markets 1s unrivalled in almost any industry It means
that we know what it takes to be successful in these markets and
are well positioned to maximise the structural growth opportunities
as they develop avertme In many cases we are able to drive

that development forward to the benefit of our customers and

our business

The solutions approach

Each of the Indmdual areas of the business 15 a driver of value

far the group, but when they came together they truly make a
difference Exporting our Government expertise into new countries,
leveraging cur cash soluticns model acress New Markets and using
our global risk management and security capabilities to protect
some of the warld's best known brands across internatonal markets,
drives even greater value for our rvestors

Financial highlights Q

ghle +3.7%
Organic turnover growth
of 3 T%

Despite a difficult economic
backdrop G45 delivered anather

£ /01 billion

Group turnover up
7 4% to £7,008.6 million

20.2

Adjusted earmings per
share up 22% to 20 2p

year of strong performance in 2005,
with good organic growth, margin
improvement and exceeded its
cash conversion tarpet of 85%

Financial review on page
32

+10%

PBITA up by 10.0% to
£500 3 million

+27%

Operating cash flow
up 27% to £449.9 mulhon,
90% of PBITA

+11.7%

Recommended total
dividend per share
up Il 7% to 7.18p

Group KPIs

The key finanaal performance
indicators for G45 operational
management are PBITA margin
cash conversion {operating cash
flow as a % of PBITA) and organic
growth All these indicators

have shown a positive upwards
trend during the past five years
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Other non-financial measures are
specfic to particular markets or
indnaduals and cannat therefore
be amalgamated intc group-wide
key performance indicators
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Chairman’s statement
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Governance

Finaneal staterments

Shareholder nformaton

Dear shareholder,

ht1s very pleasing to be able to report another strong performance in what has been a difficult year for so
many businesses Such results do nat happen by chance and | would therefore like to pay tnbute to everyone
in the group who has worked so hard to continue to drive our business in the nght direction This has involved
implemeniing cost-saving measures where necessary but also in pushing ahead with plans for future growth
and development

Elsewhere in this report, our chief executive talks about the way the group’s strategy is being delivered | have
no doubt that our policy of developing solutions for our customers over longer term relationships will allow

us to continue to buld an the strong foundations which have been laid throughout the group over the last few
years Our recent acquisitions, including All Star Internauonal Adesta Hill & Associates and NSSC, have been
targeted particularly at capability-bulding in security-related solutions niches but the integration of earlier
acquisiions such as G5L and ArmorGroup over the last year has helped us to develop a broad spectrum

of solutions which we are able to offer to more of our customers n more of our markets

The financial outcome of all this effort has been particularty creditable n 2009 with both revenue and margin
increased Profit before interest taxaton and amortisation increased by 10 0%* to £500 3mwhilst turnover
was up 74%* to £7008 6m Organic growth was 3 7% and the group profit margin increasedto 71%
Adjusted eamings per share increased by 22% to 202p

The directors are therefore recommending a final dwidend of 4 [6p or DKK 0 3408 per share payable
on 4 June 2010 which with the interm dividend of 3 02p or DKK 0 2599 per share pad on 30 October
2009 makes  total dvidend of 7 18p or DKK 0 6007 per share for the year ended 31 December 2009
This represents an increase of 11 7% over the total dvidend for 2008 The board intends to mantain

a progressive dividend policy in ine with the group’s underiying performance

The developments during the year have not all been purely financial however In 2009 we publshed our first
ever Corporate Soaa! Responsibility report. We said that this was just a first step in a continung journey and |
am pleased to be able to say that the equivalent report this year shows how we are progressing on the 1ssues of
corperate citizenshup These are 1ssues which no responsible company should ignore and our board 1s Increasing
its focus on this area, with one of our non-executive directors Mark Ellictt. chainng a newly formed CSR
Committee whose job it will be to ensure mplementation of appropnate polices

As the world s second largest private employer, it 1s also vital that we have strong and open relationships with
our employees and those they choose to represent them, so 1t 1s pleasing 1o report that the implementation
of our ethical employment partnership with UNI s being rolled out in yet rore of the countries in which

we operate

The performance of the board 15 also a matter about which we have given careful thought We have conducted
detarled reviews of the manner in which the board and its main committees have functioned and whilst the
outcome of those reviews has been generally satisfactory, we know we must avoid complacency We have
therefore increased the interaction between nan-executive directors and the group's businesses and made
some changes 1o the cemposition of the board's committees We have also deaded that we should refresh

the composition of the board tself over the next year or so

Whilst commenting on the board, | must also mention with great sadness the death in January 2010 of cur
former chairman, Jergen Philip-Serensen He was of course miuch more than simply a former board member
His farnily helped create the very notion of a private security industry and Philp fumself did an enormous
amount to develop the business which has becerne G45 He was also charman of this company from its
foundation in 2004 until | tock over that role when he retired in 2006 but even in retrement he took a close
interest in the group and remaned as our President Emerttus We will miss him

Looking ahead, there can be no doubt that in many parts of the world in which we operate, the economic
chmate will remain difficult for some twme to come Newvertheless as our strategy contmues 10 be implemented,
we will be able to form more, stronger, longer and mare valuable relattonships with our custemers and | remain
opumistic therefore that the company will conunue to perform well in the year ahead

SIGNATLRE
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Alf Duch-Pedersen
Charman .

=To show a far companson constant exchange rates are assumed
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Chief Executive'’s interview

Progress and prospects

The underlying performance of the business was
very strong in 2009 demonstrating both the breadth
and nternational diversity of our business mix
Looking forward, by leveraging our expertise in
exssting markets and broadening our capability into
new, complermnentary, areas we can drive growth
and deliver continued improvements
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Strategy

How would you summarise
the group strategy?

We are very clear about our strategy and what we need to do to drve
accelerated growth and development in the business We must differentiate
ourseives In our markets by using our expertise and geographic presence
to drive owtsourang and to minimise commodiisation of traditronal
securtty services This will utimately lead to longer term, recurmning
revenue and outsourcing partnerships with customers in key segments

GA4S plays an important role in socigties around the world and we will
continue to help our customers improve therr securtty, increase their
revenues reduce therr costs and improve the service that they provide
to thewr end customers

We are able to use our developed market cash cycle expertse

and track record to drive changes in policy around the management
and flow of cash in New Markets to encourage central bank and
financial insatution outsouraing,

We can demonsirate 10 governments that the private sector has

a significant role to play In secunng the world that we Iive inand in
defivening services that have histencally been under government control
In most cases it can be done mare efficiertly by the private sector
and at reduced cost to the government, and therefore the taxpayer,
at a tme when public sector sperding 1s under significant pressure

We nvest in the development of our managers to ensure that
we have the expertise to continue to drve the strategy forward
and ensure high quality succession planning

We continue to acquire capability-bulding businesses which bring
sector or market specfic expertise ta the group and add value
1o our service offening and business model

We can continue to build on our good reputation and excellent brand
to differentiate ourselves from our competitors and buld allances with
key international customers

By leveraging our existing expertse in specfic markets and broadening
our capability into new, complementary areas, we can drive growth
and deliver continued improvements in our business performance

Strategy

Our strategy will lead

to longer term, recurring
revenue and outsourcing
partnerships with customers
in key segments

G45 plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009
Cvervew

Business review

Governance

Financeal staternents

Shareholder informauon

How well do you think the G45
strategy is understood by investors?

The market understands us well in terms of the key sectors and
segments of our business which hold the most value

Perhaps what we need to communicate more clearly 1s the fact that,
whilst each of those areas are strong n their own nght they are even
better together —as a whole

Exporting our developed markets government expertise into other
countries driving the development of cash solutions in New Markets
and developing secure solutions for mufti-national customers across
numerous countries are huge opportunities for our business and drive
greater value for our investors

Performance

How would you sum up the
group performance in 2009?

The undertying perfarmance of the business was very strang in 2009,
partrcularly given the economic cnsis and the impact of exchange rates
on the overall result Earrungs for the year were up 22% on the previous
year and even f you exclude the impact of exchange rate movements
earmings were up by 12%

There was definitely a slow-down i organic growth as the economic
downtum took effect In essence. it removed any opporiunities for
nflationary growth due to the global decline in RPI, meaning that pnce
increasing was almost impossible However, | am pleased to say that
our volume growth was very strong and ahead of the markat

Qhur cash generation was also strong and we incurred no significant
bad debts — a real achievement given the state of the global economy
dunng the year We controlled capital expendrture well whist stil
nvesting in areas such as [T secunty technology, state-of-the-art
vehicles and premises

Performance Performance

Profits for the year
were up 2% excluding
currency impacts

The underlying
performance of the
business was very
strong in 2009

[+14
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Chief executive’s interview continued

Which parts of the group performed well?

The real highlights were in the cash solutions businesses

the New Markets countnes and across the government sector —
all areas where we have strong competitive advantage and the
expertise to drive market-leading growth

Even in businesses which struggled to delver the finangial results that
we expected they stll outperformed their competitors in their own
markets and contnbuted to the overall success of the group by sharng
expertise and helping to spread best practice across the orgarisation
They alsc worked extremely hard to control the cost base to minimise
the impact on profit margins

Overall, 2009 was a tough year However we were able to hit our
shori-term performance targets by carefully managing the cost base and
we continued our commitment to the long-term strategy by rvesting in
strategic capability-buikding acquisitions and hirng sector experts to drive
business development in key strategic sectors over the longer term

Which parts of the group didn’t
perform to your expectations?

There were no specific under-performers Improvements could be made
in some businesses which did not meet cur nternal profit margin targets
In places such as Continental Europe, where businesses have been unable
1o pass on substanual cost increases such as wage nses mandated by
governments and regutators We are working hard to make sure this
balance 15 corrected over time and that margins in these businesses

are in bne with our expectations in the future

Economy

How did the economic crisis
affect the business?

Generally, our business s resihent to economic pressures, but the

depth of the recent crsis is unprecedented in modern trmes The global
fall in inflation meant that there was a lack of growth in some developed
markets The rapid and substanual fall i interest rates had some effect
on the cash outsourcing model in some markets as the drivers to manage
the cash cycle more efficently became less mportant to the banking and
retad sectors Many of our customers were under pressure to reduce the
cost of secunty significantly whilst not compromising their secunty
standards — this 1s both a challenge and an opportunity for us

Economy Economy

Generally our business We focused on managing
15 resiient to economic our debtors and drving
pressures but the recent operating and overhead
cnsis 15 unprecedented efficencies

n modern times

One of the challenges we have particularty nan econormc downturn,
15 to manage the trade-off between organk growth profit margin
percentage and debtor management Ve have to accept that there

15 a balance to be had and whilst growth for us n 2009 was slower than
the previous year we did very well on drving profit margins and cash
flow performarice

What measures did you have to take
to minimise the impact of the crisis?

We focused heavily on managing our debtors and driving efficencies
in the operation and overheads We implemented pay freezes in
economies where forecast RPl was below 3% and RP| only-based
pay awards elsewhere

We ncreased our headroom and our range of funding sources

by issuing a corperate bond of £350m in May 2009 This required
us to put in place a credit rating which we did through Standard and
Poor's Our rating 1s BBB and our headroom at 31 December 2009
was £6147m, which 1s a very comfortable level

How do you think the economic outlook
is going to affect the business performance
in the next 12 months?

We are expecting the challenges of 2009 to continue into 2010

We hope to be emerging from the recession In terms of GDP growth
RPI growth and interest rates towards the end of the year, gmng us a
springboard into 201

We believe that pressure on public sector spending will further drive
the need for governments to outsource specfic areas to the private
sector which 1s an opportunity for us

Outlook

What is going to be your biggest challenge
or biggest nisk in 2010?

Alack of economic improvement — 2 prolonged perod of deflavonary
environments with low interest rates could be a nsk to the business
performance Others nught be managing the business reputation
against a backdrop of ncreasing nsks such as global terronsm and
balancing the risk and reward of being responsible for outsourced
services In the government sector

Qur biggest challenge 1s keeping our pecple motivated and focused
on the long-term strategy delvery despite the ongoing short-term
trading pressures

Outlook

Pressure on public

sector spending will drive
government outsourcing -
an opportunity for us




What targets are you setting for
yourself and the business in 20107
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The G4S strategy is to

We are targetng profit growth well zhead of worldwide GDP focus on secto rs Where

growth Over the longer term we are targeting improvements in

our post tax return on invested capital which we believe 15 a good secu rity an d safety

strategic measurement of performance As economies improve,

we expect organic growth to return to high single digit levels are key con 5i d e ratio ns
What other developments are in the and where we have

plan for 20107

Some of the areas that we intend to focus on even more in the future

significant competitive

are compliance, ethics, environmental impact and our reputation d iffe re n ti atio n o

We want to make sure that our policies in these areas are fully
understood throughout the orgarisation and are put into practice

by our employees around the world This is particularly true for some The next sections highlight the market opportunities

acquisitions — we need to ensure that they Iive up to G45 standards
very quickly once they have become part of the group

We have recently established a Corporate Sociat Responsibility {CSR)
Committee to focus on these ssues, chared by Mark Ellott, one of our
non-executive directors The committee will ensure that cur CSR strategy
remans an integral part of the group plan and monitor comphance with
our policies across the group

How would you summarise the general
outlook for the group in the mid term?

The economic pressures fram last year will continue into 2010 and
we will continue to focus on minimising their impact We have shown
that we can do this whilst driving the strategy forward — and this wall
be an angoing focus for 2010

However we expect good orgaric growth from continued outsourcing
In key sectors to leverage our expertise in cash solutions to drive change
in key markets and to utilise our secure solutions approach to take on
more multi-national customers across the world — turning their securtty
challenges into opportunities

Whilst the challenges of 2009 will continue into 2010 we are confident
that we have the expertise the opporturities and management to
perform well in the year ahead

SIGNATURE
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Nick Buckies
Chef Sxecutive Officer
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We are targeting profit
growth well ahead of

worldwide GDP growth

in 2010 IMAGE
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and G45 capability in some of the key sectors
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Securing the delivery

of government services
and promises — at home
and abroad
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Case study | Government
Mangaung Prison

We helped builkd innavaton into South
Alncas Mangaung Correcuonat Centre
the second larpast private prison in the
world Here we balance the safe and
secure accommadation of nearty 3000
maumum-security offenders with

our duty Jor care rehabditaton and
community autreach

As part of the design buld and finance
consortium we ensured the complex
was built to allow  development and
rehabilitation and community imuatnes
The end result complete wath school,
chapel education facliies and access to
activies such as agniculture has created
an emvironment where the opportunities
for effectve long term rehabilitation are
not imited by size or scope

G45 plc Annual Report and Accourts 2009

Sector profiles

Government

As a trusted partner to governments
worldwide, we secure borders, protect
embassies, rehabilitate offenders and
keep some of the world’s most important
buildings safe and secure.
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Customer needs and drivers

Increased outsourcing

A sharper global focus on secunty in the past decade has led to
government outsoureing across a number of markets A history

of successful outsourcing within developed markets has bolstered

a behef in competition and confidence in private sector involverment

Competition raising standards

Governments require high guality operavonal delivery and evohang
standards within a structure that demonstrates cost effectiveness
to the taxpayer Qutsourang has allowed competition that has
drven performance up and costs down It has also enabled
performance benchmarking with the public sector and new ways
of thinking 1o be ntroduced to the benefit of both private and
public sector aperations

Scale of opportunities

Government contracts accounted for around 28% of total G45
revenues In 2009 We anticipate further government outsourcing
opportunities will arse n developed markets as pressure on public
spending intensifies and government departments seek to manage
ther budgets without compromising on service delvery standards
or the integnty of vital front line public services

Market overview

Strong position

Government contracts provide defensive, long-term relagonsthips
which have traditionally seen double digit growth Qur pedigree

n the government secior within developed markets has honed

our skills in bidding for and managing complex government contracts
We are now taking our UK and US government expertise into
developing markets Our geographical foctonint, coupled wath this
expertise, gives us a unique competitve advantage in this sector,

and we see significant opportunities to drive government
outsourang i new markets

Spotlight on justice

In the UK where currently 89% of pnsens are operated by the
public sector the Government has announced a number of nttatives
this year to increase the share of pnsons run by the private sector
such as recornmending that new prnisons be privately operated and
introducing others to private secior benchmarking We believe
there are further opportunities within the global justice market as
other countries outsource parts of their justice system to improve
performance and cut costs

o%
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Capabilities

Homeland security

Managing homeland secunty is a pnionty for governments around
the world Effectve border protection from Jmmigration support
to entry paint securtty 15 central to thus — a field in wihich G4S has
proven its capatiliies across widely differing terrains and cultures

Foreign affairs

Cur global footprint and diversity aflows us te work with
governments around the world on a range of secunty and capability
requirements 1o ensure they can conduct theyr foreign affairs
effectively — with the secunty upon which they rely — to ensure
international relabionstups can be fostered and flounsh

Defence

We support defence orgarusations araund the world providing
practical and resutts-driven soluttons for our chents which resutt in
better protection of therr key assets — including people, equipment,
facities and reputations — alongside cost savings and improved
performance

Justice

As a leading supplier of secunity solutions to the justice departments
of governments globally, we manage pnsans and rehabiitation
facilities, and further support the justice sector through providing
electronic monitonng of offenders in the community, court and
pohce services, and iImmigration services

Energy and utilities

We have unrvalled expenence of protecting crivical supply chans
and assets In industnes ncluding oll and gas electnaty water, nuclear
power renewable energy. chermical supplies and telecommunications

Emergency services

From effective crisis management to specabst traning and
recrutment, we help emergency service providers around the
world respond to changing crcumstances and ensure fong-term
effectrveness

Localfstate government

(45 15 a trusted partner of local and state governments around the
world enabling them to deliver their services more securely against
a backdrop of diverse and complex secunty challenges

Non-government organisations (NGOs)

We have a 20-year pedigree in prowding a range of services to
international peace and stabilty organsations allowing them to
carry out effective and sustainable stabilisation and post canflict
reconstruction from humanianan ad delivery to mine dlearance
and disposal
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Case study | Government

GCHQ

Case study | Gavernment

Electronic monitoring

GCHQ 15 2 wial part of Britan s
inteligence machingry playing a erucial
role in the defence of the UK As part of
the consortium responsible for design
build and management of GCHQ's
accommodatian G45 has been
entrusted with ane of the UK's most
comprehensive and secure facilities
management contracts

Around 350 G45 stalf delrver a full
service contract including 1T energy and
utdity management logistics marroom
and ute visitor and accommeoedation
management 10 4 300 workers across
a site the size of 17 football piiches

Case study | Government

US Border Patrol

G455 the world s largest provider
of eleetronic monitonng services
montonng the movements of
35000 offenders worldwide every
day - 12000 of them n the UK

MNaugnal Audit Office stztistics show
that an electronicalty monitored curfew
15 just one fifth of the cost of a prison
term in Britain As a robust alternative
to custody curfews not only reduce
pressure on the prison population

but ako provide other cengfits

Qur ability 10 deliver 3 workforee that
possess smilzr qualfications to the
federal agents and tecure transport
expertise has allowed us to provide 3
©exible sevice 10 nne kCauens across
2 1993 e border separating the

LS and Mexico

Our customer benefits from a
government approved prowvider using,
ahigh calibre workforce that requires
208 hours of training per employee to
mee! the contract s special requrements.
Qur fexible response capabiity o

scale up or down allows the customer

10 release federal enforcernent personnel
for other duties.
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Optimising the cash cycle and
assuring the customer experience
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Case study | Financial nstitutions

Nedbank

G45 plc Annwal Repart and Accounts 2009

Sector profiles continued

Financial institutions

As protector of banks' most precious assets
we help money make the world go around
through efficient cash cycle management
and protection of assets and people across
the globe.

MNedbank South Afnecas fourth largest
bank has trusted G45 lor the last

|0 years to meet the multiple secunty
challenges of pratecung bank assets
and 115 employees across its network

n a country with 2 complex cnme
environment AL Nedbank the G4S
solution encompasses every aspect from
visitor and site safety across 16 sites
housing 4 500 emplayees to protectng
semor personnel aganst threats faced
by international business professionals
as they travel around the world

Case study | financial nstitutions

Bank of America
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Case seydy | Finanaal msttutions

London cash centre

Our techrology and financial wstitutions
experuse allows one of the world s
largest barks to focus on its 53 millon
customers whie we {ake care of Bank of
Amenca s secunty Our unque approach
for Bank of Amenca has given the USs
most extensve bank branch network
complete secunty coverage wncident
reporung and business nteligence across
6 100 lacaveons in 30 states By combinng
the sector knawledge of our secunty
officers with the latest technology

we have become an integrated

partner helping our customer drive

ats performance up and costs down.

G453 London cash centre sets the
ndustry standard for speed secunty and
efficency in cash Cytke managemen* and
1 dong so plays awital part in keeping
cash flowng 2round the heart of the U<s
economy The development of G455
state of the art cash centre hasbeen an
impartant addibon to the oitys economie
nfrasiructure The ute handles 72 0G0
services every month managing cash
flaw through banxs, ATMs and retaders
across the aty Thus allows cash to be
processed on demand to drive masumum
effiency for customers and mantaing
the levels of service rebability reguired

1o ensure the health of the

UK s cash flow

Customer needs and drivers

Strong pedigree

With ongins in cash handling going back many decades our UK
cash solutions expertise has allowed us to develop long-standing
relationships with central and retal banks in the 65 countres in
which we operate our cash management services

Attuned to customer needs

Qur banking customers want to maximise the efficency of all

their operations from how hard their cash works for them to how
their bulldings and employees are protected Our banking customers
want partrers who can operate thew cash cyde at maximum
efficency, high productmity and optimum security so ther money

15 kept moving around the economy, always avalable to consumers
and not sat 1n bank depoesits incuming central bank interest charges

Market overview

Pressures are opportumties

The banking sector i most markets has expenenced
unprecedented turmoil In the last year, particulariy in the UK
Europe and US This has resulted in an increased willingness
by banks to outsource, as pressured banks look to maxirise
operations as cost effectively as possible

Smart technology

Meanwhile the cash ¢cycle 1s becoming increasingly shck and
sophisticated as product innovations and new technology 1s
embraced to ensure cash 1s constantly available to consumers,
and the cost of cash 15 minimised for banks This 1s drmng cash
forecasting business opporturities as banks look to therr cash
management partner to forecast amounts needed to keep ATMs
working and minimising the amount of notes sat idly in unused
machines Technological advances are also drmving opportunities
in ATM technology, servicing and diagnostics

Solutions i action

As a resutt customers are looking at new areas of outsourang

We believe this will lead to more opportunities in a number of areas,
from technalogy sofutions to mare support of In-branch operations,
where our advance into supportng bank branches will aid the move
of 2 growing number of banks to create “branches of the future

The more developed Western markets hold strong opportunities
for outsourcng however we see evidence that within emerging

and New Markets, commertial banks are increasing their nterest

In outsourcing developments
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Protecting retall assets
and ensuring efficienc
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Case study | Retail

Jewelry Television

Chur experuse in secure transportabion
and our global logisocs capabiity
ensures more than five mill on pac<ages
are deivered te more than 20 countnes
frem 300 vendors worldwide for the
USAs largest onkne and televsion
channel jewallery retalder This integrated
partnership with our cient has allowed
Jewelry Television ta benefit from
improved cost control total visibility

of the process, less exposure to nisk

and shnnkage and improved secunty
and customer serace
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Case study | Retal

CASH160
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Sector profiles continued

Retail

We've takeen the skills that have led us to

be one of the world’s most trusted cash
management outsourcers for banks and
tailored them to protect retailers’ valuables
and help them re-engineer the way they
manage their cash cycle.

Our umgue retal cash manzgement
solution CASH360 makes Marks &
Spencer s cash cycle more gfficient
allowing one of the UK s most popular
retaders to concentrate on 1ts customers
CASH380 developed in house by

G45 with the retal market in ming
a¥ows us to run retaders back ofice
cash manage~—ent for opuma! efficiency
secunty and to mewmisa potental losses

Drawing on exasting GA45 expertise in
secure cash management. technology
solutions and logistics CASH360 exploits
opportuniues for mproved acCuracy
secunty and productvity for retaders
while aflowang retaler employees

10 fotus on senang ther customernt

not countng cash

Customer needs and drivers

Widening security landscape

Retail customers want high calibre secunity offerings that delver
value for money Tradionally retalers have sought 1o outsource
protection of ther stores, and employees but now they are looking
1o partners who can help them manage their back office processes
and therr takings more efficiently too

Solidity of cash

Cash has existed for five millenniz and remains king in the 2|st
century Globally it 1s the preferred method of payment among
consumers According to Retal Banking Research's "Future of Cash
and Payments” report, 77 5% of Europe’s 388 billion retail payments
in 2008 were made using cash

Paying at a cost

We estimate the average retailercan spend up to | 7% of
turnover managing cash In the fiercely competitive retail sector
where margins are becoming ever tighter and every penny
counts, our retall custorners continue to lock for ways to minimise
those costs

Market overview

Smarter solutions

We believe continued competition to increase sales and minimise
costs will drive retalers to further cutsource and embrace emerging
technology to increase efficiency, reduce nsk provide accurate sales
data, and ensure retail staff are maxirmising customer sales rather
than focusing on cash manzgement and logistics

Revolutionising retail

We believe 2010 wall be the start of a decade of innovation in cash
management as new offenngs such as our CASH360 product enable
retallers to rmunimise losses through fraud and theft and improve back
office efficency. thereby making cash an even more cost-effective
method of payment for businesses to process With new software
developments we also see opportunities for more improved
real-time cash data to be avalable to our retad customers st

as 1t 15 for our banking customers.
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Protecting crucial supply chains
and critical national assets
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Case study | Energy and Utihnes
EDF Energy
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Sector profiles contnued

Energy and Utilities

We are a vital behind-the-scenes cog of
energy and power providers worldwide,
helping protect vital supplies, keeping
vulnerable energy workforces safe, and
ensuring power businesses run at maximum
efficiency in more ways than one.

Power giant EDF Energy works with us
to look after many of its sites across the
UK where our response ranges from site
based security officers to deployments
secunng assets aganst metal theft
protecting against protestoractvity

and providing meter reading

Hoover Dam

The Ives and Iivelthoeds of miflions

of Amencans depend on the Hoover
Dam —z magaficent example of cntical
nayonal ifrastructure The Hoover
Dam helps prevent widespread flooding
provides water to and states and ds
hydroelectnc power generators makes
a sigmficant energy contribution

With our state-of the art Symmetry
Enterpnse Secunty Management System
in operation at the Hoover Dam all
aspects of its secunity operations are
controlled and co ordinated with the
same predson as the dam aself
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Case study | Energy and Utlines
South Texas Project

Nuclear Operating
Company

Warlang closely with our South Texas
Project customer has allowed G4S ta
come up with a serwce that combines
the expertse of our securty officers
with technology and nsk expertise ta
protect a key US nudlear faclity dunng
normal operation and a chaffenging
expansion project

The South Texas Progect s trust in our
ability to manage its current secunty
programme has led us to alse provide
developmental secunty consultancy for
the construction of two adjoining new
reactor facilities which oresent difficult
secunty challenges and comphance wath
new defensive requirements

Customer needs and drivers

Secunty in focus

With ever growing pressure on energy providers to secure supplies
for years to come through investment in new production plants and
protection of vital resources secunty has come to the fore in the
energy and utilies sector

Regulatory business drivers

The market for security across much of the energy market has been
led by regulation paricularty of nuclear power which has been an
area of double-digit profit growth for us

Combined response

Increased regulation is dnving a focus on cost efficency robust
asset protection and a facus on intefigence and nsk led securtty
capabilities, together with experence of securtty provision within
challenging and unpredictable environments

Scale of challenge

Security challenges within the energy and utilities arena can be diverse
— from protecting the copper and metal contained within electncity
cables to ol or nudear facility risk assessmenit and pipeline protection

Market overview

Global demand

With scepticism over the benefits of emerging alternative energy
sources, and the lack of nfrastructure in many continents, the draw
on the world's ol and gas reserves will continue to grow The sector
has also been highlighted in a recent Chatham House report as
requiring $6 5tr of nvestment n exploration and production over
the next 20 years to meet projected demand

O1l and gas wn focus

The Middle East — the world's largest reservorr for od reserves —is the
core for future ol preductien Middle Eastern countnes are currently
responsible for neary one-third of global ol production With 60% of
proven world o)l reserves and 41% of proven world reserves of natural
gas In the Middle East we beleve cur expertse in this area, together
with our global footprint and experience of operating in diverse
geo-political regions, will be a competrtive strength

Alternative energy sources

In developed markets such as the US and UK, there is focus on
nuclear energy as nations look towards what they believe are more
low carbon energy solutions Here regulation 5 driving an increased
demand for not only a phiysical securtty presence but involvement
In design of new facilities, secunty systems integration, and partners
with approved regulatory training
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Ensuring the safety of travellers
and the efficency of the
international transport system
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Case study | Ports and Airports
Oslo Awrport
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Sector profiles continued

Ports and Airports

We ensure the safe passage of travellers, crew
and cargo and the efficiency of the international
transport system through a full range of aviation
operations spanning 61 airports and 81 airlines
across 34 countries, and at 20 ports worldwide.

Last year we saw the safe passage of

18 km passengers through Oslo Awrport
where our focus on delvenng for

our customer has contnbuted to the
arport being heralded as one of the
most effic ent and punctuzl airports

n Eurcpe by both the Air Transport
Research Socety and Associatian of
European Aurlines

Case study | Ports and Airporis
Gothenburg Port
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Case study | Ports and Airports
Adesta

Qur intelligent secunty systems ensure
Scandinawias largest port Gothenburg
15 well protected aganst terronsm and
adheras 1o global mantime secunty
Lzws With 11000 arrrvals at the port
each year and 43 milion tonnes of cargo
traffic, we ersure the port 15 safe secure
and working at optamum level withun
niematonal manume secunty lws

Cur acquiinion of US based Adesta will
help positon GAS 1n the US seaports
market as wel as support our growth

n the chemical secunty space Adestas
market penetration in US seaports

- 1ogether with «ts experuse m cuting
edpe technology integrauon — will help
us deftver a solubion that integrates

all sezport secunty related actraties
Adestas sirengths are viewed as an
atiractve and complementay fit to help
us expand our sector presence and burdd
our technology capabihties

Customer needs and drivers

Terror threat drivers

Compliance with new and emerging security legislabon and counter-
terronsm measures 15 drving customer needs for operators of arports
and ports globally Customers want opumum securtty levels, supenor
customer service levels and a flexible service that is very cost effective

Customer pressures

The aviation sector has suffered extensively as a result of the global
economic cnsis Airlines collectvely lost around $11bn in 2009, as they
were particuarly affected by the 20% drop in business passengers
{source |IATA) who ordinanly prowde a substantially hegher yield than
economy passengers This decrease In passenger numbers has led to
reduced capacity which has in turn affected arports

Market overview

Growth predictions

Global aviauon demand predictions suggest the sector will grow

in the next 12 menths Passenger numbers are still increasing in the
Middle East and Chinese domestic markets Auwrport infrastructure
15 not expected to keep up with passenger growth over the next
ten years, potenually resulting in a shortfall of capacity In the order
of one bilion passengers Arrports and airines will be looking more
to cost-effectve flexible secunty providers who have consulting
capability new technology integratcn expertise and who can
redesign systems and interfaces

Legislation-led pert investment .
In the ports secior, compliance with international securtty standards
and evohang poris legislation i dmving customer requirements

With 480 million containers being moved around the world every
year container and port faaility secunity 1s an area of growing focus
LS government legislation on higher secunty standards for any global
port that wants to export to the US by 2012 1s driving substantia)
investment in this area

Scale of opportumities

Key opportunities for the port sector lie with the large intemauonal
private port operators who have collectvely committed more than
$25bn of investment in buillding new green/hrown field terrminals
globally to expand their portfolios and capacity

Our response

These international operators collectively manage or own In excess

of 300 port terminals globally In 90% of cases they outsource therr
secunty requiremerts and here we bebieve our historical development
of secunity protection of physical lecations with integrated systemns,

and our unique global foctpnnt, wil be a competitive advantage
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Creating a safe environment
for recreation and exploration

Case study | Leisure and Events

The Champtonships, Wimbledon

The Champronships Wimbledon

15 probably one of 1~e most high profile
and presugious sporting events in the
world and G45 plays a huge role i the
success of the iconic tennis tournament
45 provides an event management
solution for The Championships and
each year preparations begin many
months before the "+t volley on court
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Case study | Lesure and Events

Africa International Youth
Football Tournament

Our events experuse allowed young
football hopefuls in Serra Leone to realse
thew dream of ptapng thewr international
opponents at home n a ¢country that
has been starved of high class sportung
events due 1o the perception it 1s unsafe

The FC Johansen Footbal Chub staged the
ve-dzy ntematioral agans* exght specaty

imated teams from South Amenca Europe

and Afnca to grve people n Sierra Lecne

the opportunity to watch hrgh standard

football on ther home soil | atso gave

young local players the opportunity

to display and compare thear skalls

in front of a home crowd

and ebservers from Europe

and other parts of Africa
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Leisure and Events

As an expenenced partner to flagship
international sporting and music
events, we ensure safety and security
at some of the most exciting events
in the entertainment calendar.

IMACE
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Customer needs and drivers

Customer experience

In the events world, secunity 15 nextricably linked to customer
service Customers are keen to ensure event-goers enjoy a
first class experience within a safe and secure environment

Business drivers

In a market dictated largely by the appearance fee percentages
paid to performers and participants, customers want a cost-
effective service that does not compromuse on the ethics of
safety and secunty

Capable partners

They also want a security partner that can demonstrate flexibility
continued development in customer service, an understanding

of counter terronsm measures and attention to detall at operational,
tactical and strategc levels

Leisure pressure

The events industry has previously been shown to be resiient
aganst recession however current financial constraints have
affected speaific sectors such as sports and hospitality

Live music’s resiience

The Iive music sector remains bugyant with major outdoor events
retaning strong ticket sales, which in turn generates more detaled
planning needs and higher levels of staffing,

Growth opportuntties

Recent successes in Ireland and the Middle East and cther
international collaborations, have shown the potential offered

to GA4S by the events industry Our UK events expertise has been
coupled with regional capabilities to demonstrate our offenng,
particifarly in new and emerging markets where event secunty
has traditionally not been an area of focus

21
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Divisional review

Secure solutions

Profile

The secure solutrons business covers a broad range of solutions for both commercial
and government custormers G45's secure solutions strategy 1s to use our nisk
management and securtty expertise io encourage greater outsourang of commercial
and government facilities where securty and safety are strategic issues in areas such
as ports, arports and the oil and gas sector (see pages 16 and [8) This will result in
an ncreased number of long-term strategic customer partnerships across the group

Services

G4S provides a wide range
of secure solutions including

Risk management and consultancy services Monitonng and response services

Secure facility outsourcing Management of juvenile and adult custody facibities

Electronic monitonng of offenders

Awviation secunity services

Secure repatnation of immigration detainees

Fire protection and emergency response

Manned security services

Secunty traning services

Electronic security systems

Project management

KPIs and financial

highlights

During 2009, the secure
soluttons business achieved
good organic growth of 3 5%
and margins were up on the

CRAPH
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same period last year to 6 8%

#2005 to 2008 at 2009 exchange rates and
excluding all businesses disposed of during

the perad
Strategy Use our expertise and geographic presence to differentiate our business
Drive outsourcing and minimise commadrtisation of traditional securtty services
Offer an integrated securtty solution to customers
Drevelop longer term, recurnng revenue and outsourang partnerships n key sectors
Key operational Growth achieved across all regions in 2009
highlights

Strict cost control and improved business mix helped grow margns from
6 6% in 2008 to 6 8% in 2009

The govermment sector; the largest of G4S key customer groups, grew 16%
in the UK and 11 5% overall in 2009

New Markets grew strongly at 8 6% and improved margins to 8 2%
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The secure solutons business continued rts strong performance with good organic growth of 3 5% and margins mproved to 6 8%

Turnover PBITA Organc
£m im Margms growth
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
Europe* 26370 24431 1766 1587 67% 65% 27%
North Amenica® 1,495 3 14495 848 833 57% 57% 00%
New Markets” 15351 13462 1262 1058 82% 79% 86%
Total secure solutons® 56674 52448 3876 -3478 6 8% 66% 35%
Exchange differences - (508 B) - (309)
At actual exchange rates 5.6674 47360 3876 3169
"Al constant exchange ratas
Europe Continental Europe
Turngves FBITA Organc The Contnentat Europe region faced the biggest challenges of the
2009 20%3 2009 20%3 2009 Ma{go"; grggoxg economic downturm as mandatory above inflation, wage rate increases
" were implemented in sorme countnes However stnct cost control
UK Ireland M393 9426] 973 7B0; B3 83X 74% including significant cost cutting in the Baltics which saw revenues decline
Convnental Europe* (4977 (5065 | 793 BO7| 53% 54%|-05% by 17%, mited the profit mpact. Overall organic growth was -0 5% and
Total Europe* 2637024491 | 1766 I1587 | 67% 65% | 27%  margins were slightly below the prioryear at 5 3% The secunty systems

*At constant exchange rates

Orgare growth in Europe was 2 7% compared 1o 8 3% in 2008
Margins improved to 6 7% helped by a strong performance in the
UK government segment

UK & Ireland

There was good organic growth of 74% in the UK & Ireland and margins
strengthened further to 8 5% This was despite a serous economic
downturn in freland which saw revenues decline more than 14% and
miargins decline to less than 2% Key contract wins in 2009 included an
extension to HMP Parc prison the renewal of a national meter-reading
contract with a mayor utibty provider an extension of the Electromic
Monitoring contact for parts of the UK, a new Electronic Monitorng
contract for Northern Ireland and a PFl contract to provide facilities
management services at the Dublin Cnminal Courts complex which
opened in November 2009

UK & Ireland Continental Europe

Contract retention

i Continental Europe
remained high at
more than 95%

The UK & Ireland region
grew 74% organically in
2009, despite a declne of
more than 4% in Ireland

business, which accounts for around 30% of Continental European
secure solutions revenues, performed well in a very difficult emvironment
mairtaning revenues and margins overall Strong performers included
the Netherlands due to good performances in the avation and justice
services sectors Norway as a resutt of a positive impact from aviation
and the Statoil contract and Romania as a result of 2 new contract win
with Petrom

Contract retention in the region was high at more than 5% and
we believe we have ganed market share with our solutions strategy
outperforming single service providers

“The UK & Ireland secure
solutions businesses
performed very robustly in
2009, helped by particularly
strong growth in the
Government sector and
despite a serious economic
downturn in Ireland.”

David Taylor-Smith
CEC GA45 Secure Solutions, UK & frefand
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Dmnsional review continued

Secure solutions continued

North America

Turmover PBITA Organic
fm £m Margins | growth
2009 2008 2009 2008 200% 2008 2009

North Armerica® 14953 14495 848 833| 57% 57%| 00%

*At constant exchange rates

Organk growth in North America was flat. If the loss of a large contract
in the commercial nuclear sector 1s excluded, organic growth was 2 8%
Margins were unchanged at 5 7%

In the United States there was no growth in the commercial sector
due to contract wins and renewals being offset by service reductions
for some custormers Customer retention was excellent at more
than 90%

New contract awards in 2009 induded electrornic monitoring
of offenders in the community for Cook County and secure solutions
contracts with Crty of Houston, City of Chicago and TD Amenitrade

Contract renewals and extensions imcluded a secure solutions contract
for Bank of Amenca locations nationwide (see page {3) Mernil Lynch
worldwide an extensian to the protective services confract at the
Savannah River nudear site for a minmum of five years and protective
and emergency services for NASA at 14 locations across the

United States

In 2009, the US business made three important strategic acquisiions —
Adesta, which will sgnificantly enhance capability in seaport secunity
and the chemical and petrochemical industries in NMorth America

and intemationally; All Star, which broadens G45 North America's

US government outsourcing capability and share of the government
sector; and lastly NSSC, which has risk consufting and secunty solutions
expertise focused on the chemicat and nuclear power sectors

In Canada the organic growth rate of 2 1% was in lne with the prior year
and continued cost focus meant that margins were improved In February
2010, G4S was awarded a contract by the Canada Border Services
Agency to help secure the Canada border

North America Morth America
Customer retention The US business made
was excellent at more three important strategic

than 90% acquisitions — Adesta,
All Star and N55C
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*In 2009, the G4S North
America secure solutions
business made significant
progress in strategy
implementation, acquiring
niche capability in sectors
such as seaport security,
nuclear power and chemical
industry security and
government outsourcing,
We were also delighted
to renew two of the larger
contracts in the portfolio
with Bank of America
and NASA”

Grahame Gibson
COO and Regional President, North Amenca
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New Markets
Tomover PBTA Margre ‘;’rm "Considering the‘worfd

2005 2008 | 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 economic situation in 2009,
Asia® 5220 4559{ 4li 360 79% 79%| 56% IMAGE | believe the region delivered
Middle East* 4245 3741 | 385 3ir| 91% 83%[134% REMOVED a good performance achieving
Africa® 3056 2659| 290 238| 95% 90%| 68% doubile digit organic growth
Latm Amenca & and creating over 33,000
Carbbean® 2830 2503| 176 149| 62% 60%| 94% new jobs.”
Total New Markets*  {53511,3462| 1262 1058 82% 79%| 86% Dawid Hudson

Regronal President North Alnca, Middle East
*At constant exchange rates and Southem Asia (NAMESA)

In New Markets, organic growth was excellent at 8 6% and margins “We managed to maintain
were higher than the prior year due to improved performance particutarly wth | 1 di
in Africa and the Miidle East The New Markets businesses have also gro .e_VE ,s, and improve
benefited from the implementation of the groups key sector strategy — IMACE profitability.
focusing on areas such as oil and gas, events and aviation New contracts REMOVED Willem Van de Ven
won duning 2009 1n these sectors included Baghdad Intemmational and Qatar Regionai Presclenit. G5 Sub Saharan Alnes
arports, the HEA Club World Cup tournament in UAE the Abu Dhaty
and Macau Grand Prix and we are currently mobilising several large
cantracts in Papua New Guinez for the oll and gas industry
Asia
Organic growth in Asia was 5 6% and margins were 79% India, the
largest rmarket in the region achieved double digit revenue growth and
improved marging The outlook for the Asta regon looks encouraging in
2010 despite the loss of the DIAC {(immigration management) contract
in Australia Macau dechned 13% in 2009 but s expected to mprove
in 2010 as investrment 1s returning to the casino industry
Towards the end of the year new secunity rules were ntroduced “(54S Latin America and the
which will allow foreign ownership of manned securtty companies in Caribb had "
China Licences are expected to be issued during the second half arn . ean had a very strong
of 2010 and this 1s a positive development for the medwm term IMAGE year in 2009. Star performers
(G4S also acquired Hil & Assocates Asas leading nik consuttancy firm, REMOVED were Ecuador, Peru, Argentina,

which wall prowide addrtional nsk consultancy and risk management
capability across the region

Middle East

In the Middle East, growth continued to be excellent across the region
with improved margins of 9 1% Qatar and UAE performed particularty
strongly, mainty as a result of the new arrport contract in Qatar and
federal wage legislation in UAE

Africa

Adnca performed very strongly with organc growth of 6 8% and margns
of 95% This was helped by strong organic growth in Nigeria, Morocco
Kenya and the care and justice services business in South Afncaand a
contunued focus on higher margin work in South Africa secure solutions
which has reduced its contract portfolio by 20%

Latm America & Canbbean

Owerall, the Latin Amenca & Canibbean regron has performed well
helped by a number of large contract wins in Argentina, Ecuador and
Peru, giving organtc growth of 207%, 38 9% and |4 3% respectively
Overall for one region organic growth was 94% and margins were 6 2%

Trinidad and Chile.”

Jeff Morrow
Regional Presdent Laun Amenca and the Canbbean

New Markets

Organic growth
was excellert at 8 6%

25
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Divisional review continued

(Cash solutions
Profile

The cash solutions business is the management of cash for financal institutions
and retallers Our deep understanding of the cash cycle ensures that money
1s moved safely and efficently around an economy at a considerable cost saving

to our customers, and allows themn to focus on their core businesses

Services

G4S provides a wide range
of secure logistics iIncluding

Financial nstitution cash outsourcing

Data and document management services

ATM network management

Cash logstics

ATM cash management services

Secure international transportation of cash

ATM engineening services and valuables

Retail cash management solutions — CASH360
KPls and financial
highlights
The cash sclutions busmess GRAPH GRAPH CRAPH GRAPH
continued s very strong REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED REMQOVED
performance with arganic growth
of 4 7% and margns of |1 4%

*2005 10 2008 a1 200% exchange rates and
exchuding all busnesses dispased of dunng
the penod

Divisional strategy

Play a key role in the managerment of the cash cycle on behalf of central banks,
commercial banks and retailers, leaving them to focus on thenr core business

Use our developed market cash cycle expertise and track record to encourage

central bank and financal instrtution outscurang in New Markets

Introduce innovative technolagy such as CASH360 (see page 15)

’

Key operational
highlights

Growth was achueved in all regions

Strict cost control helped cash solutions margins mprove to 114% from 11 3%

New Markets grew strongly at 12%

The first CASH360 sales have been achveved
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The cash solutions business performed well with organic growth of 4 7% and margins of |1 4%
Turnover PBITA Organic
fm £m Margins growth
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
Europe* 9292 9048 1020 S89 11 0% 109% 25%
North Amenca® 988 959 41 09 41% 09% 33%
New Markets* 3132 2792 463 442 14 B% 158% 120%
Total cash solutions® 13412 12799 1524 1440 11 4% 113% 47%
Exchange differences - 8749 - {104
At actual exchange rates 13412 11925 1524 1336

*At constant exchange rates

Europe

Organic growth in Europe was 2 5% and was impacted by lower mnterest
rates lower inflabon and a reduction In some services by customers
but cost control measures ensured margins improved to 11 0%

Inthe UK & ireland the cash solutons business performed well wath
good organic growth and margins holding firm The fifth super branch
cash managernent centre in the UK was opened in London n January
2009 SMI, a leading international cash management consultancy
business, was acquired early n 2009 to add to the group's exssting
cash management and consultancy capability SMI acts as a consuftant
to central banks on bank note secunty and central bank processes

The first CASH360 sales have been achieved in the UK wath a strong
pipeline of plots

Elsewhere in Europe, orgaruc growth was affected by a reduction in

transportation and ATM services but continued strong growth was
achieved in Greece, Romania and Latvia

North America
In North America the business in Canada stabibsed under the new
management team, mproving profit margins from 0 9% 2008 to 4 1%

i1 2005 The Canadian cash solutions business also achieved positive
turnover growth for the first time since 2006

New Markets

Organic growth in New Markets was excellent at 12 0% with margins
lower at 14 824 due to the re-negotated tolls contract in Colombia and
the impact of some significant robbenes in Saud Arabia South Afnca
one of the largest new markets for cash solutions, performed very

well amidst challenging market conditions Excellent growth and strong
margins were achieved in UAE and Malaysia New cash flow forecasting
software has been introduced in Malaysia which will help customers
reduce the cost of cash

Europe

Acquisttion of SM,

a leading intemational
cash management
consuftancy business

“In 2009, the G4S cash solutions
business worked closely
IMAGE with its retail and financial
REMOVED institution customers to
provide effective and low cost
cash management solutions
during the economic crisis.

We believe these relationships
and strong market positions

will ensure our continued
growth in the medium and

long term.”

Ken Niven

Drvisional President G45 Cash solutions

the moment.”

Ted Devereux

Regional President. Asiz Pacific

North Amenca

New Markets

“We had good results from
our Malaysian and Indonesian
IMAGE cash solutions businesses,

REMOVED both benefiting from financial

institution outsourcing which

seems to be gaining pace at

The new management
tearn in Canada have
improved profit margins
from 09% to 4 1%

Organic growth in
New Markets was
excelent at 12%
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Delivering performance through
responsible behaviour

GA4S plays an important role in socety We make
a difference by helping people to operate in a safe
and secure envircnment where they can thrive
and prosper Qur size and scale means we touch
the lives of millions of people across the globe and
we have a duty and desire to ensure the influence
we have makes a positive impact on the people
and communrties In which we work

As one of the world's largest global employers, we have a responsibility
to ensure that our employees are cared for and are given every
opporiunity to develop and flourish as & result of being part of G45

Integnty 1s one of the group's core values — being a responsible
business partner, employer, customer and supplier is an important
part of our strategy and forms an essentral foundation on which we
carry out cur business

Responsible behaviour gives us licence to operate in existing markets
and helps to bulld our reputation in new ones To underline the
mportance of corporate responsibility we published our first
stand-alone corporate social responsibility report for 2008 and
continued to invest In the systems and processes we need to
strengthen our performance in this area

‘We manage four key corporate responsibility issues descnbed in
bref below in more depth in the rest of this section of the report,
and in greater detail In the 2009 CSR report

CSR management

CSR related 1ssues have been a key part of our business philosophy
since the creation of G45 in 2004 as part of our Integnty Value Stream
‘Working Group — a group set up to ensure compliance with the groups
ethical performance standards

In January 2010 we established a CSR Committee chared by G45
non-executive director, Mark Elliott to ensure that CSR 1ssues remain
at the forefront of the group's strategy and that we continue to have
a positive impact on people and communities whilst contnbuting to
a sustainable future for our business and everyone connected to it

The CSR Commitiee meets quarterly and reports into the Audit
Committee n order to ensure that our CSR strategy remains aligned
to Issues such as sk managernent, audst and compliange

G4S plc
Board

Nominations
Committee

Audit
Committee

Rernuneration
Commuttee

Safeguarding our integnty
How we set expectations and make sure that we attain high
ethical standards

Secunng our workforce

Keeping our people safe 15 our main prionty — but we also need to
ensure that we source the nght people for the rght roles and that
our people feel Istened to and supported in their working Ives

Securing our environment
Reducng resource usage lowers our impact on the environment
and helps us increase the efficency of our operations.

Securing cur communities
We can make our business stronger through mnwvestment in stable,
safe communittes where our staff live and work.

IMAGE
REMOVED

More n cur Carporate Socia!
Responsibility report 2009

More on Risk on page
38

l
CSR

Committee

l

Ethical Trading &
Business Practices

Employrent lssues Health & Safety

Workforce Drersity
& Inclusion

Humar Rughts Clmate Action

Community &
Sacial Investment

Stakehelder engagement

Dunng 2009 we have developed our communication and engagement
with key stakeholder groups to ensure that our strategy s aligned to ther
aeeds and that as our CSR programmes develop, we seek input and
adwvice from those around us

G4S engages with a wide range of stakeholders including

Customers The very nature of our work requires us to understand
customers business sssues and risks, and provide an appropriate solution

Employees: In 2009, G4S conducted one of the Targest ever employee
surveys — recemving responses from 169 000 employees in 107 businesses

Investors In 2009 GA4S held two group meetings for CSR investors
including one hosted by Lord Condon our non-executive deputy
chairman and senior independent director as well as responding to
enquines from nvestors and ethical invesiment advisers

Industry assocations Many G4S managers and employees play an active
role In ndustry bodes and assoaations such as the Ligue Internationale
des Societes de Surveillance, the international association of leading
security companies and the European Works Counal o improve
standards and share best practice




Polictes and standards

To ensure good governance, we set group-wide standards in criucal
areas such as finance HR, security and communicabions, reflecting the
(45 values and business strategy In order to deal with major cultural
and legal varations around the world we leave space for businesses

1o localise their approach to Implementing these standards but without
compromise to the standards themselves

CSR goals

Our main focus in 2009 has been on ensuning that the KPI measurement
systems we have introduced are embedded in the business and are
prowviding us with accurate and mearungful data on which we can build
our CSR strategies This will enable us to set realistic targets in the future
and monitor accurately our progress against them

Our targets include

Environment. Introducing carbon reduction measures to enable us to
achieve an annual carbon ntensity reduction of 4 5% each year to 2012

Diversity and inclusion Aurning for all businesses to have carred out

an assessment of their current position on diversity and inclusion by
the end of 2010

Diversity and inclusion Targeting at least 20% female participation n
our high patential management development programmes

Health and safety Conducting a complete review of the H&S strategy n
every business by the end of the year

Employee engagement. Ensuring that alt fromt-line employees have
the opporturity to take part in a feedback survey at least once every
two years

Audrt and compliance Conducting a full annual on-site internal audit of
each of our major business units and an internal audit at least every three
years for all other businesses

Community investment Carrying out an assessment of our current
community investrment and impact by the end of the year, with a view
to Increasing our investment over tme

“Not only has the company
engaged in constructive
IMACE negotiations with labour

REMCVED organisations, to resolve

disputes and work out

structures to handle labour
rights issues in challenging
environments, but it has also
demonstrated an excellent
approach to investor dialogue
during the process.”

Jakob Konig, Analyst
GES Imvestrnent Seraces
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Performance and progress in 2009
Safeguarding our integnty

Business ethics

We believe that having a clear business ethics policy 1s essential to
reinforce our principles throughout the orgarisation and help make
them a reality wherever we operate

The GAS Business Ethves Policy was first introduced over five years

ago and since then has been continually developed to ensure it remains
current and comprehensive The 2009 policy 1s avalable on the G45
website and describes the standards that we apply in our dealings

with employees, customers, suppliers, shareholders znd governments
covenng topics such as

- Qurapproach to being a good corporate atizen, ncuding human
nghts the environment and local communities

- Our standards of business practice, covering issues such as bnbery
and corruption treatment of customers, suppliers and competrtors

- Our approach to corporate governance compliance with the law,
accounting standards and reporung

- Our commitments ta our employees, Incorporating Internatonal
labour standards, health and safety and dversity and inclusion

Each year we ask all seniar leaders in G4S to personally reaffirm

their commitment to the policy and i 2009 to ensure that the polcy
15 more broadly understood throughout the organisation, 1t was
cascaded throughout the business so that every employee coutd be
made aware of the standards of behaviour that are expected of them
and their colleagues

The mechanisms used to embed these principles vary according
to local taws and cultures and include practices such as

- An emplayee induction programme

Employee handbooks

Establishing employee traning programmes

Promotion of local business ethics and conduct polices

Discussions with employee representatives

N

Reinforcement via communication channels such as newsletters
and team bnefings

<

The appointment of cheef comphiance officers in some businesses

1%
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Corporate soaal responsibility continued

Compliance

Failure 10 demonstrate integrity to our wide range of stakeholders
could damage our reputation and mpact upon our ability 1 grow
and develop our business in line with the group strategy, therefore
monitorng complance with our policy on ethical business practices
s 2 key part of ensuring we live up to our integrity” goals

Sources of information that allow us to monitor comphance
and to support the maintenance of our ethical standards inchude

> Internal audit
- Global whistle-blowing facility
2 External audtit

- Ongoing management reparting, nduding the G4S nsk
management process

The chart below shows the internal audit actvity dunng the last two
years i terms of assignments completed in different areas

GRAPH
REMOVED

In 2009 due to extra staffing we were able to increase the number of
internal control audits by 14% and financial reviews by 13% compared
to 2008

The increase in the number of Investigatians and business support work
reflects an additonal 43 off-site reviews to increase assurance over small
businesses not visited during the year

Secuning our workforce

ks wital In an organisation of the size and complexity of G45 to have

clear standards to ensure that all employees are treated with respect,
dignity and fairmess wherever in the world they work, i line with the
G4S values

We firmly believe that compliance with these HR standards forms the
basss of a strong relationship wath employees based on trust Such a
relationship &5 a prerequisite for engaging employees in the business and
ganing their commitment to perform at therr best for the benefit of
customers and G45

Our HR: standards cover issues such as

< Performance appraisals

= Traning, development and succession
Recruitment, selection and screening
Health and safety

Diversity and inclusion

Yoo 3

Transparent and far procedures for disciplinary matters,
gnevances and redundancies

3

Reward and recogniton

+

Labour refations and freedom of association

- Local ine and HR managers are responsble for ensunng comphance
with these standards

Safety

The nature of our business means that many G45 employees operate
in hazardous environments where crime or viclence present particular
1ssues for society, and a3 a result they can become victims of attacks by
third parties Tragically, 36 G4S employees died in 2009 as a result of
such attacks While this figure 1s sigrificantly lower than in 2008, when
54 employees died we reman committed to investing tme, resource
and energy to find new ways to protect our employees as they carry
out their cntical roles i society and setting the benchmark for heatth
and safety across the industry

To support our health and safety strategy we have defined standards
with which afl G45 businesses must comply going substantially beyond
the legal requirements in many parts of the world These cover areas
such as setting strategy and policy, measunng and reporting on KPls,
involvernent with stakeholders, identifying health and safety nsks and
reviewing performance

This expertise 15 being further enhanced with the appointment of a
global health and safety adviser from the Intermational Organisation of
Employers 1o help us ensure that G4S benchmarks well aganst other
mult-national employers

Employee engagement

We beheve that employee engagernent 15 an important drver of
sustainable business performance as employees who are fully engaged
will do ther very best at work and care passionately about delivering
first-rate service for our customers

To generate strong levels of employee engagement we therefore take
care to create an environment where people feel proud of G45 feel
valued as indniduzls, and have the opportunity to undertake work that
they find enjoyable and fulfiling.

Thus strategy 15 reinforced by a range of global standards which have
been designed to ensure all businesses work 1o continually improve levels
of engagement among their employees and help reinforce our position
as a leading global employer

Engaging our workforce helps create a wirtuous arde, with increased
employee motvation and loyafty generating higher levels of productmity
and customer service which delivers a positive and prolonged impact
on our bottom Ine leading n turn to increased job secunty and more
dwverse career opportuniies

We therefore expect all managers to treat each employee as a unigue
indmdual and encourage our emplayees to actively engage with G4S
and create an environment where we can work together to look after
our mstual long-term interests




Employee feedback

To help embed our employee engagement strategy in 2009 we
undertaok our first global employee survey in which we asked our
people around the world how they wewed G4S as an employer By the
end of the year over 163,000 employees in 107 businesses had taken the
opportunity to share their view — a response rate of almost 30% and an
excellent resutt given the significant proportion of remote warkers in
GA4S We beleve this to be one of the largest global surveys of its kind
and are very proud that our ¢olleagues around the world took the time
to share their views on working with G45

GRAPH
REMOVED

Labour relations

2009 saw the global labour refations chmate in the group move forward
significantly as the company began to implement s Ethical Employment
Partnership (EEP) with UNI the global union federation Signed in late
2008, the EEP 15 designed to drive improvements in employment
standards across the security industry while helping to ensure that
employee and union rights are respected throughout the group, resulting
In a positive impact on employees, ther families and their communitues

Secunng our environment

Reducing resource usage lowers our impact on the environment and
helps us increase the efficency of our operations We have made
significant progress over the last two years in measuring carbon
emissions and settng carbon intensity reduction targets We calculate
that dunng 2009, G45 businesses emitted some 628 000 t/CO2e

GRAPH
REMOVED
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In March 2009, G45 established a three-year environmental strategy
which can be summansed as folfows:

- Systematically measure the carbon emissions of the group for
at least 90% of the business

- Comply with all relevant legislation and codes of conduct

- Seek environmental business oppartunities which comply with
the G45 business strategy

- Implement carbon reduction technologies to reduce carbon ntensity
measured against our revenue by 4 5% per year from 2010 to 2012

- Develop an organsation to support the G45 Climate Action &
Environmental Policy

- Communicate the G4S Clhimate Action & Erwvironmental Policy
and Objectives to key stakeholders

Engaging with employees on climate ssues

In 2009 G45 launched The Brg Think' to highlight the 1ssues surrounding
chimate change and encourage our employees to think about the steps
however small that they can take themselves to help limit dimate change
As amajor global employer we believe that our staff are cntical to the
success of our Clhimate Action Programme and their ndividual actions
can result n wige-ranging and effective energy efficences

Securing our communities

The group provides funding for four major long-term community-
based intiatives around the world as part of our commitment to being
a good corporate ctizen These klude a childrens home in Shanghai
a tree-planting programme n Malaw, Gifts 4 Schools in Jamaica

and a school for underprivileged children in Delhi

In addrtion, In every country where we operate, we seelk to make a
positive impact on the local communities where our staff, customers and
suppliers live and work. Around the world we encourage our businesses
1o invest In community projects, whether directly with cash or through
staff volunteenng, fundraising and provision of G4S services

Many of G45' specialist business activities deliver immense community
benefits Our mine action teams remove unexploded ordnance from
former conflict zones across the world making them safe for farming
housing and economic development. Staff in our pnsons in the UK
US, Australia and South Afnca run programmes dedicated to helping
offenders turn away from a life of cnme after release from custody
benefiting the communities to which they return

Focusing on children and young people

Different countnes across the world face different challenges to
thewr societies and sooal wellbeng With operations in more than
110 countnes we are very aware of the many worthy causes and
projects which deserve our support Our general strategy 1s for our
business units to support local programmes and chanities which reflect
the 1ssues faced by their local communities Therefore, G4S provides
funding, volunteers and serwvices o a broad range of organisations in
the communities n which our employees Iive and work As well as
directly benefiting the communities concerned  this action improves
our engagement with our staff and deepens our relationships with
our customers

The majonty of our local programmes focus on the health, education,
welfare and support of children and young people, although some
GA4S businesses focus on the elderty the poor and other disadvantaged
or vulnerable groups

3l
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Resilient and stable

We ended 2009 with very strong cash generation
equivalent to 90% of PBITA — well ahead of our target
of 85% Following the £350 million bond placing we
remain in a very robust financial posruon with fimancal
headroom of more than £600 milion




Basis of accounting

The financial statements are presented n accordance with applicable
law and Internaticnal Finanoial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the
European Ureon { adopted IFRSs ) The group’s significant accounting
policies are detalled in note 3 on pages 64 to 69 and those that are most
criticat and/or require the greatest level of judgement are discussed

n note 4 on page 70

Operating results

The averall results are commented upon by the chairman in his
statement and operational trading 15 discussed in the operating review
on pages 8 to 27 Profit from operations before amortisation of
acquisition-refated intangible assets (PBITA) amounted to £500 3m,
an increase of 21% on the £4150m in 2008 and an increase of 10 0%
at constant exchange rates

Associates

Inchuded within PBITA 1s £1 2m (2008 £34m) in respect of the group's
share of profit from associates principally from the business of Space
Gateway in the US which pravides safety services to NASA

Acquisitions and acquisition-related
intangible assets

Investment in acquisitions in the year amounted to £1532m
This comprises a cash outlay of £157 5m, deferred consideration
of £6 2m offset by a £10 5m tax refund relating to earler years
This investment generated goodwill of £82 3m and other
aequisttion-related intangible assets of £51 9m

The group undertook several acquisiions in the year, the most significant
of which were Adesta LLC a leading US systems integrator in the design
and operation of secunty systems and command and control centres

for government and regulated services acquired on 31 December 2009
for $66m and All Star International, one of the premier facilities
management and base operations support companies providing services
to the US Government, acquired on 23 November 2009 for $599m

Investment in acquistbions
In the year amounted to
£153 2 million net
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Other acquisiiions included the purchase of controlling interests in
SecPoint Securnty Limited, a secure solutions business i Ghana, Sunshine
Youth Services a juvenile justice business in the US, CL Systems Limrted
a cash solutons business in Greater China, SMI a cash soluuons business
in the UK, NSSC, a US nsk consufting business to the nuclear power
industry and the publc sector and Hil & Associates, Asias leading
provider of specialist nsk miigation consulting services

The group also completed the muinarty buy-outs of certain businesses
in New Markets during the year

The largest acquisiuon in 2008 was the purchase of the Global Solutions
group ("GSL"), an nternational leader in the provision of support services
for governments, puble authonties and the private sector; based in the
UK, on 12 May 2008

Other signficant acquisitions in the pror year ncluded ArmorGroup
an nternational prowder of defensive, protective security services
headquartered in the UK, Touchcom, a security consultancy and design
business in the US, RONCO, an intermational prowider of humanitanan
mine acton and ordnance services, specalised securtty and training,
headquartered in the US MJM Investigations, a provider of insurance
fraud mitigation and daims servicesin the US Rock Steady providing
event security in the UK, Trave! Logstics a provider of passport and
wisa services In the UK, and Progard the market leader in professional
security services in the Republic of Serbia

In addiion the group acquired the 49% of its business in Macau that
it did not already own and completed the purchase of the remaining |
minenty nterest In the multi-service businesses in the Baltic States !

The contnbution made by acquisiions to the results of the group dunng
the yearis shawn n note 17 on pages 80 to 83

The charge for the year for the amortisation of acquisiuon-related
intangble assets otherthan goodwil amounted to £83 2m Goodwill
1s not amortised Acquisition-related intangible assets included in the
balance sheet at 31 December 2009 amounted to £2 043 9m goodwill
and £36) 2m other

At constant exchange rates  PBITA increased 21%
PBITA increased by 100%  to £500 3 milhon
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Financing items

Finance income was £81 7m and finance costs £196 Om, gving a net
finance cost of £114 3m Net interest payable on net debt was £89 Im
This 1s an increase of 10% over the 2008 cost of £81 Om due pnncipally
to the impact of exchange differences The group's average cost of gross
borrowings n 2009 was 4 7% compared to 5 5% in 2008 The cost based
on prevaling interest rates at 3| December 2009 was 4 5% compared to
4 6% at 31 December 2008

Also induded within finanang are other net interest costs of £6 2m
{2008 £72m) induding the unwinding of the discount on put
options over minanty interests and a net cost of £190m (2008
net income of £3 7m) in respect of movements in the group's net
retrement benefit obligaticns

Taxation

The taxation charge of £100 0m prowided upon profit from operations
before amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets represents

a tax rate of 26%, compared to 27% in 2008 The group beheves that

an effective tax rate of around this level is sustanable going forward

as a resuft of the ongoing rationalisation of the post-merger group legal
structure and the elimination of fiscal inefficiencies The amartsation of
acquisiuor-related intangible assets gives nse to the release of the refated
proportion of the deferred tax hatility established when the assets were
acquired, amounting to £23 3m Potential tax assets in respect of losses
amounting to £44%97m have not been recognised as their utrhsation

1$ Uncertain

Disposals and discontinued operations

The group disposed of its manned secunty business in France an

28 February 2009 In addimon dunng the year the group disposed of
a number of small businesses including the captve wsurance business
in Luxembourg on 23 December 2009 as well as discontinuing the
systems instaflation business in Slovakia

Ouring the prior year the group disposed of its secure solutons
businesses in Germany on 15 May 2008 and of s security systems
business in France on 31 july 2008

The loss attrbutable to discentinued operations comprises a profit
of £5 6m in respect of post-tax trading of discontinued businesses and
a loss of £12 5m in respect of the disposals made in the current year

The result from discontinued operations in 2008 comprises a loss

of £11 7m in respect of trading of bath the 2008 and the 2009 disposals,
a £12 Om profit in respect of disposals an imparment of £294m in
respect of the carrying value of the group s manned secunty business in
France and a £} 6m profit in respect of adustments to pror year dsposaks.

The net cash proceeds from business disposals receved in 2009
were £8 3m

The contribution to the turnover and operating profit of the group from
discontinued operations 1s shown In note & on pages 71 to 74 and therr
contribution 1o net profit and cash flows s detalled In note 7 on page 75

Profit for the year

Profit for the year was £2192m, compared to £164 9m in 2008

The increase represents the £85 3m increase in PBITA less the £298m
ncrease In net interest ¢ost, the £15 4m increase in amortisation of
acquisiion-related intangible assets the £64m increase in the tax
charge less the £20 6m decrease n loss from discontinued aperations

Minority interests

Profit attnbutable to minority interests was £16 7m in 2009, shightly
higher than the £13 7m for 2008 reflectng minority partner shares

in the group s organic and acquisitive growth, less a reduction in minonty
shares in net profits consequent upen the group increasing its interasts
in certan subsidiaries

Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations
was |4 4p compared to | Ip for 2008 These earrings are unchanged
when caleulated on a fully diluted basis, which allows for the potential
impact of outstanding share options

Adusted earmings as analysed in note |6 on page 79, excludes the

result from discontinued operations, amortisation of acquisition-related
intangible assets and retrement benefit abligations finanang items all net
of tax, and better allows the assessment of operational performance, the
analysis of trends over time, the companson of different businesses and
the projection of future performance Adjusted earrungs per share was
20 2p, an increase of 22% on 16 6p for 2008

Dividends

The directors recommend a final dividend of 4 16p (DKK 0 3408)

per share This represents an increase of 130% upon the final dvidend
for the year to 31 December 2008 of 3 68p (OKK { 3052) per share
The intenm dividend was 3 02p (DKK 02599) per share and the tatal
dvidend, if approved, will be 718p {DKK 06007) per share representing
an increase of 11 7% over the 643p (DKK 0 5624} per share total
diwdend for 2008

The proposed dwidend cover 1s 2 8 tmes (2008 2 5 times) on adjusted
earnings The group's intention 1s that dividends continue to increase
broadly in ine with normahsed adjusted earmings

The tax rate in 2009 was Profit for the year was
26% compared to 27% £2192 millon compared
in 2008 to £1649 million in 2008

The directors recommend
a final dvidend of 4 16p,
up 130% on 2008
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Cash flow The additional retirement benefit payments in 2008 included a
ane-off payment of £54m in respect of the acquired GSL scheme
The primary cash generation focus of group management is on the )
percentage of operating profit converted wto cash From 2007, the The group’s free cash flow, 2s defined by management 1s analysed
groups target conversion rate was raised from 80% to 85% Cperating as follows
cash flow as defined for management purposes was as follows
2009 2008
‘
1009 2008 i -
£m [ Operating cash flow 4499| 3532
PBITA 500.3fF 4150 Net nterest pad (86.7) (BOO)
Less share of profit from associates (12) (34 Taxpad (678) (820)
PBITA before share of profit from associates New finance leases {7y (7
(Group PBITA) 4991 416 Freecash flow 2757|1741
Depreciztion and amortisation of intangible assets .
ather than acquisition-related 13621 1161 Free cash flow is reconaled to the total movement n net deb as follows
(Profitfloss on dispasal of property plant
and equipment (0.3) 2] 2009 3008
Movernent in working capital and provisions (154) (153 tm fm
Net cash flow from caprtal expenditure (1697 (613 Freecashflow 2157|1741
Operating cash flow 4499 3532 Cash flow from discontinued operations (12.7) (272
Operating cash flow as  percentage of group PBITA|  90% 85% Addiuonal retirement benefit contnbutions (99 (323
Net cash outflow on acquisitions (153 5)| 6297}
Capnal expenditure relative to the depreciation charge can vary from Net cash {outilow)inflow from disposals (?5) 3
year to year due to the timing of asset replacements It was 125% of Net cash flow from associates 24 122
depreciatron in 2009, compared to 139% n 2008 Overall operating Dndends pard to minority nterests aso) (119
ash generation for the year was good, as a result of the maintenance
of financial disapline across the organisation Share issues less share purchases (7N 280
The managerment operatng cash flow calculation is reconcled to Dnvidendss pard o equity holders of the parent (47 (150
the net cash from operating activities as disclosed in accordance MNet cash flow from hedging financal nstruments (102 (659)
with 1AS7 Cash Flow Statements as follows Mavernent in net debt in the year 570) (3566
ye
Foregn exchange transhtion adustmentsto net debt | (28 7)) (186 2)
1‘:._?: mgg Net debt at | January (1,3477)) (8049)
Cash flow from operaung actvities (IAS 7 definvon)| 509 2| 3730 Net debt at 31 Decermber (1,433 4)) (1 3477)
Net cash flow from capital expenditure (169.7)] (1613
Add-back cash flow from disconbnued operations 127 272 Net debt represents the groups total bo ngs less cash, cash

equivalents and liquid investments The compoenenits of net debt

Add-back addrtional retirement benefit contnbutions | 299 323 are detaled in note 39 on page 105

Add-back tax pad 678 820

Operating cash flow (G4S defintion) 449 9| 13532
Adjusted EPS was 20 2p, Operating cash flow was Operating cash flow as a
an increase of 22% on £4499 million percentage of operating

i6 6p for 2008 profit was 90%
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Financtal review continued

Financing and treasury activities

The groups treasury function 1s responsible for ensuring the avatlability
of cost-effective finance and for managing the groups financal rsk ansing
from currency and interest rate volatiity and counterparty credit
Treasury 1s not a profit centre and 15 not permitted to speculate in
financial nstruments The treasury department s policies are set by

the board Treasury 1s subject to the controls appropnate to the nsks

1t manages These nsks are discussed i note 33 on pages 95 to 97

Financing

The groups funding position s strong, with sufficient headroom against
avallable comrmitted facilities and very little debt matuning before 2012

The groups prmary source of finance 1s a £1 Ibn mutt-currency
revolving credit facility provided by a consortium of lending banks
at a margin of 0 225% over Libor and matuning on 28 June 2012

The group also has US$550m in financing from the private placement
of unsecured senor loan notes on | March 2007, matuning at various
dates between 2014 and 2022 and bearing interest at rates between
577% and 6 06% The fixed interest rates payable have been swapped
into floating rates for the term of the notes at an average margin

of 0 60% over Libor

On 15 July 2008, the group completed a further $514m and £69m
private placement of unsecured senior loan notes, maturing at vanious
dates between 2013 and 2020 and bearing interest at rates between
609% and 756% The proceeds of the sssue were used to reduce
drawings against the revolving credit facility $265m of the US dollar
receipts have been swapped into sterling for the term of the notes

On 9 iMarch 2009, the group obtaned a BBB credit ratng from Standard
& Poor's This credit rating supported the group s inaugural transaction

in the public bond market, a £350m note ssued on 13 May 2009 beaning
an interest rate of 775% and maturing in 2019

At 31 December 2009, the group had other short-term committed
facilities of £45m and uncommitted faclites of £515m

The group’s net debt at 31 Decernber 2009 of £1 433 4m represented a
geanng of 99% The group headroom at 31 December 2009 was £6147m
The group has sufficient capacty 1o finance current nvestment plans

The group obtained The group’s headroom
a BBB rating from at 31 December 2009
Standard & Poor's was £614 7 milion

in Marech 2009

Interest rates

The groups iInvestments and borrowings at 3| December 2009 were,
with the exception of the issue of private placemment notes in jufy 2008
and public nates in May 2009 at vanable rates of interest nked to
Libor and Eurtbor, with the group's exposure being predominantly to
interest rate nskin US dollar and euro The group's interest risk policy
requires treasury to fix a proportion of this exposure on a shiding scale
utiising Interest rate swaps The maturity of these interest rate swaps
at 31 December 2009 was kmited to five years The market value of
the Loan Note-related pay-vanable receve-fixed swaps outstanding
at 3| December 2009, accounted for as far value hedges was a gain
of £390m The market value of the pay-fixed recewve-vaniable swaps
and the pay-fixed recene-{ixed cross-currency swaps outstanding at
31 Decermber 2009 accounted for as cash flow hedges was a gan

of £8 7m

Fareign currency

The group has many overseas subsidianes and associates denorminated

IN various currencles Treasury policy 1s to manage significant translation
nisks In respect of net operating assets using foreign currency
denominated loans where possible The group no longer uses foreign
exchange contracts to hedge the residual portion of net assets not
hedged by way of loans The group beheves cash flow should not be put
at sk by these instruments in order to preserve the carrying value of net
assets, given the changed hiquidity environment following the global credit
crisis At 31 December 2009, the group s US dollar and euro net assets
were approximately 75% and 87% respectively hedged by foreign
currency loans

Exchange dfferences on the translation of foreign operations induded

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income amount to a loss
of £64 7m (2008 gain of £1009m) These differences are net of a £28 7m
loss {2008 £1862mj) on the retranslation of net debt and a £10 2m cash
cutflow (2008 £659m) from forward exchange contracts

The market value of forward contracts outstanding at 31 December
2009 was a loss of £0 Im




Cash management

To assist the efficient management of the group s interest costs and its
short-term deposits, overdrafts and revohving credit faciity drawings,
the group operates a global cash management system At 31 December
2009, more than 110 group companies particpated in the cash pool
Debut balances of £146 9m and credit balances of £147 Sm were held
within the cash pool The group met the conditions of IFRS allowing
balances within this cash pocl to be offset for reporting purposes

Retirement benefit obligations

The groups primary defined benefit retrement schemes are those
operated in the UK but 1t also operates such schemes in a number

of countnes, particularly in Europe and North America The latest full
actuanal assessments of the UK schemes were carmed out at 31 March
2007 in respect of the Group 4 scheme (approximately 8,000 members),
at 5 Apnl 2006 in respect of the Secuncor scheme (approximately
20,000 members) and at 31 March 2005 in respect of the GSL scheme
(approximately 2 000 members) acquired during the prior year These
assessments and those of the groups other schemes have been updated
to 31 December 2009 The group's funding shortfall on the valuation
basis specfied in 1ASIF Emplkoyee Benefits was £328m before tax or
£236m after tax (2008 £286m and £206m respectively)

The valuation of gross abiliies increased duning 2009 largely due to

a decrease in the appropriate AA corporate bond rate in the UK from

6 3% t0 57% and compounded by an increase in inflation from 3 1%

to 3 6% in the UK However the value of the assets held in the funds
increased by £143m which helped to partly offset the increase in babilites
during 2009

The group believes that the short-term volatiity in reported retrement
benefit obligations in response to movements in asset pages and financial
creumstances, is of imited relevance in the context of habilities which are
exceptonally long term in nature and furthermore that, over the long
term investment retums on the retirement benefit scheme assets will be
sufficient to fund retirement benefit obligations. However, in recogniion
of the regulatory obligation upon pension fund trustees to address
reported defiots if they anse, the group anticipates that additional cash
contrputions will continue to be made at least at a level smilar to that

in 2009 The three schemes in the UK have cominned under one trustee
body with effect, from | January 2009 and will all be formally actuanally
assessed at 5 Apnl 2009

The groups funding shortfall for its defined benefit retirement schemes
was £236m after tax
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Corporate governance

The groups palicies regarding rsk management and corporate
governance are set out In the Corporate Governance Statement
on pages 47 to 49

Going concern

The directors are confident that after making enquines and on the
basis of current financial projections and avalable faclives they have
a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources

1o conunue in operational exstence for the foreseeable future For this
reason they continue to adopt the gong concern basis in preparing
the financial statements

SIGNATURE
REMOVED

Trevor Dighton
Chief finaneial of cer
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Group principal risks

Our risk assessment and
management process

The group operates around 150 businesses spread
over more than |10 countries and across a range

of product areas Most of the nsks identified below
are market specfic and so the diversity of the group's
operations means any particular issue should have

a lmited impact

The group operates a management structure that

15 appropriate to the scale and breadth of tts actvities,
and the internal audrt department operates under

a wide remrt to ensure stnict adherence to group
authorisation procedures and control standards

as outlined here

GRAPH
REMOVED

Risk and potential impact

Price competition

The secunty industry compnses a number of very competitive markets |n
particular; manned security markets can be fragmented with relatively low
economic barners to entry and the group competes with a wide vanety of
operators of varying sizes Actions taken by the group's competitors may place
pressure upon 1ts pricing margns and profitabiity

Major changes in market dynamics

Such changes in dynamics could include new technologies, government legislation
or customer consolidation and could, particularly i rapid er unpredictable impact
the groups revenues and profitability

Security can be 2 high profile ndustry There 5 a wade and ever-changing vanety
af regulations applicable to the group s businesses across the world, with a recent
development being an increase of restnction of foreign ownership in some
countrnes Failure or an inability, to comply with such regulations may adversely
affect the group's revenues and profitability

Cash losses

The group 1s responsible for the cash held on behalf of its customers tncreases in
the value of cash lost through cnminal attack may increase the costs of the
group’s nsurance Were there to be falures in the contral and reconciliation
processes surrounding customer cash these coutd also adversely affect the
groups profitability

Onerous contractual obligations

Should the group commit to sales contracts specifying disadvantageous pneing
mechanisms, unachievable service levels or excessive liability, it could mpact s
margins and profitability

Defined benefit pension schemes

A prolonged penod of poor asset returns and/or unexpected increases In
longewity could require increases in the current levels of addiional cash
contnbutions to defined benefit pension schemeas which may constrain the
groups ability to invest in acquisiions or capital expenditure adversely impacting
its growth and profitabliy

Inappropriate sourcing of staff

The group’s greatest asset 15 1its large and comrmitted workforce However were
the group to source inappropnate staff whether as permanent employees,
temporary workers or sub-contractors the result could be detnmental 10 the
group's reputation and ¢ould adversely affect the group s growth and profitability

Poor operational service delivery

Should the group fail to meet the operational requirements of its customers
1t could impact its reputation, contract retention and growth

Financing

I, due to adverse financial market conditions, nsufficent or only very costly
financial funding were available, the group might not be in a pesition to
implement rts strategy or nvest N acqursibons or caprtal expendrture, adversely
impacting its growth and profitability This ndudes possible bank bankruptcy, loss
aof headroom particularly from maovement of exchange rates unavaiability of bank,
bond or other sources of financng and downgrading of the GAS creds rating




Mitigation
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— Group management continually monitors competitor actmity to ensure that — The group will be undertaking a proect to refine the customer

the group can react quickly to any competitor actions which would directly
affect the group’s results

— All business plans and strategic planning includes competitor and SWOT
analysis and the priang strategy for contracts 1s managed through business
unit and regional price approval levels Significant pnce reductions require
group capex committee approval

measurement system during early 2010 which should further enhance
competitor analysis

— The group performs strategic and business planming at group division,
region and business unit level to ensure that specific local regulation
requrernents are met Monthly business unit trading reviews ensure that
market changes are dentfied quickly and actions taken to maintain
performance and ensure that business objectives continue to be achieved

—The group also monitors local markets and engages with local
governments around the worid invelving the group legal department
where appropniate to ensure adherence to regulatory requirements
to entify any restrictions that could adversely impact the group's
activities and take appropriate actions

— The group has formal systems and policies in place documenting physical
security procedures and securtty directives and adheres to a secunty
framework to help reduce the nsk of cash losses

— The group also aperates caplive nsurance business units 1o mitrgate aganst
the financial risk of logses and attacks

— All transactions are subject to strict authenisation hirmits and regular
reconuhations of cash balances are performed for both cash in ATMs
and cash held on customers’ behalf

—In addition there 1s regular reporting of any cash losses/attacks and audits
of secunty are performed in branches

— Recently the group has implemented a number of actions around recruiting
regional cash reconcliauon managers (o ncrease the frequency and profile
of cash reconaiiations throughout the group

— Any new contracts entered into are subject 1o defined approval process
cntena Standard contracts with standard terms and conditions are used
where possible Non-standard contracts which expose the group to
maternal nsk (e g unhmited hability) are subject to rsk assessment and
depending on the level of nsk exposure are referred for regional and
group legal department review

— The group maintains a contract nsk database and management system to
monitor the ongoing risks involved The contract management system was
subject to a major upgrade duning 2609

— The performance of the group s pension schemes and deficit funding plans
are reviewed regularly by both the group and the trustees of the schemes
taking actuanal and investment advice as necessary

— The results of these reviews are discussed with the beard and appropriate
action 15 taken Please refer to note 34 to the group accounts for further
details of the groups retrement benefit plans and upcoming valuations

— The group has standard recrutment policies and procedures in place
to ensure that only appropnate staff are recruited These include formal
vetting procedures camed out during apphcation with formal sign-ofT that
the group standards have been met before a new staff member, temporary
worker or sub-contractor s able to commence work

- Steps have been taken to further tghten controks and increase independent
mionitonng of business unit compliance with these standards For 2010
onwards a formal business unit compliance review by regional human
resources management has been instigated

— Particular attention s gven to acquired businesses 1o ensure that they meet
the group standards

— Group-wide operational procedures and standards are in place and
enforced in all business units There is also a robust supervision structure
which allows managernent to monitor the progress and delivery of the
group's contracts and customer relationships

— The group treasury department rmonitors and follows polices to mitigate
against hquidity refinancing and currencyfexchange rate nsks Refer to
note 33 to the group accounts for more detals

~The group’s histonca! main source of funding has been a revolving bank
fachity of £1 Ibn that s due for renewal in 2012 Recently the group has
sought to diversify its sources of finance by 1ssuing a number of private
placement bonds both in the US and more recently in the UK
These have spread out the refinanang requirements over the next ten
years 10 ensure the group has access to sufficent funds to meet its business
and strategic plans
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Alf Duch-Pedersen (53)

Chairman

Charrman of the Nomination Committee

Alf was appointed to the board in May 2004 and becarne ts chairman

in june 2006 He s also charman of the Nomination Commuttee

Alf's career has involved managing multinavonal companies based in
both Scandinavia and the LUK and covering a range of industnes from
manufacturing and financial services to food and food producis He was
president and chief executive of Tryg-Baltica A/S from 1991 to 1997 and
fulfiled the same roles at Darisco ASS from 1997 to 2006 He 1s now
chairman of the board of Danske Bank A/S

Mark Seligman (54)

Non-executive director

Charmman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee

Mark was appointed to the board in January 2006 and i1s the chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
Having qualified as a chartered accountant with Price Waterhouse
Mark spent 12 years with 5G Warburg before jotring BZW in (995
Then, following the takeover of BZW he became Head of UK
Investment Banking at CSFB and subsequently deputy chairman of
CSFB Europe In 2003 he became charman of UK Investment Banking
for CSFB and in 2005 became a serior advisor 16 Credit Suisse Europe
He 15 an alternate member of the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers,
chairman of the Industrial Development Advisory Board and

a non executive director of BG Group plc

Thorleif Krarup (57)
Non-executive director
Member of the Audit Comrrittee

Thorieif was apponted to the board in May 2004 and 15 a member

of the Audit Committee A former charman of TDC {Tele Danmark

Corporation) and former group chief executive of Nykredit A/S

Unbank A/S and Nordea AB Thorleif s currently chairman of Exigon

AJS Sport One Danmark AfS and Nutn Pharma ASA He is akso ‘
depusty chawman of H Lundbeck A/S, ALK-Abello A/S and LF} A/S

and a director of the Lundbeck Foundauon
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Mark Elliott (<0}

Chief executive

Non-executive director

Nick was appointed to the board in May 2004 and was the company s
deputy chief executive and chief operating officer before becoming
chief executive in July 2005 Nick joned Secuncor in 1985 as a projects
accountant. In 1996, he was apponted managing director of Secuncor
Cash Services (UK) and became chief executive of the security dvision
of Secunicor in 1999 He was appomnted to the board of Secuncor plc
In 2000 and became its chiefl executive in January 2002 Nick s also

a non-executive director of Armva plc

Trevor Dighton (50)

Member of the Remuneration and Norrination Committees

Mark was appointed 1o the board in September 2006 and s 2 member
of the Remuneration and Nomination Comrmittees Based m the USA
he worked for [BiM between 1970 and 2008 having occupied a number
of semor management positions mcluding General Manager IBM Europe
Middle East and Afnca, where he was responsible for the companys
operations n more than |10 countnes Mark s now the non-executive
chairman of QinetiQ Group PLC and 2 non-executive director of Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier Group plc a member of the supervisory
board of Reed Elsevier NV and chairman of Reed Elsevier’s remuneration
committee He also serves on the Deans Advisory Council and the
Technology Advisery Council at Indiana University

Lord Condon (3)

Chief financial officer

Deputy chairman and senior independent director

Trevor was appanted to the board in May 2004 An accountant,

he joined Secuncor in 1995 after a previous career which included
posts in both the accountancy profession and i industry including five
years in Papua New Guinea, three years in Zambia and seven years
with BET plc He joined Securicor's vehicle services dvisionin 1995,
was appointed finance director of its secunty dmsion in 1997 and
became rts deputy group finance director n 2001 He was appomnted
to the board of Securicer ple as group finance director in June 2002
Trevor became the company's chief financial officer in July 2004

Grahame Gibson (57)

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Audit and Nomination Committees
Senior independent director

Lord Condon was appointed to the board in May 2004 He became
deputy charmnan of the board in September 2006 and 15 chawrman of
the Remuneration Committee amember of the Audit and Nomination
Committees and the senior independent director Paul joined the
Metropolitan Palice in 1967 and, after holding various senior
appaintments in the pahice force, ncluding a penod as Chief Canstable
of Kent he served as Commussioner of the Metropolitan Police between
1993 and 2000 He was created a lfe peer in 2001 and is an advisor to
international sports governing bodies and a member of the Adwisory
Board of Vidient Systems Inc

Bo Lerenius (63)

Chief operating officer

Non-executive director

Graharne was appointed to the board in Apn! 2005 He joined
Group 4 n 1983 starting as Finance Director (UK) followed by a
number of senior roles, including Deputy Managing Director (UK),
Vice President (Corporate Strategy) Vice President (Finance and
Administravon) Vice President Operations (Central & South Eastern
Europe and UK) and Chief Operating Officer of Group 4 Falck.

In July 2004, he became the groups dwistonal president for Amencas
& New Markets Grahame became chief operating officer in July 2005
and is also regional president for North Amenca secure solutions

Member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees

Bo was appointed to the board in May 2004 and 1s a member of the
Audit and Remuneration Commitiees After a dverse early business
career, he served as chief exeautve of Emstromgruppen AB a Swedish
bulding matenals company between 1985 and 1992 when he joined
Stena Line AB, where he was dhef executive and wvice charman In 1999
he became group chief executive of Associated Britsh Ports Holdings plc
He 1s now the non-executive charman of Mouchel Group Plc and a
non-executive director of Land Secunities Group plc and Thomas Cook
Group Pic, chairman of the Swedish Chamber of Commerce for the
United Kingdom and a senior advisor to the infrastructure fund of
Swedish venture caprtal group EQT
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Grahame Gibsen

Chief executive officer

Nick has worked in the secunty industry for 25 years focusing
throughout this time on the commeroial and strategic aspects of
all areas of secunty seraces

After a vanety of commercial roles throughout the group he was
responsible for driving significant profit improvements i many Secuncor
businesses throughout the 1990s as a business unit managing director
and dwisional chief executive of the secunity dmsion He was also
nstrumental in the development of Securicor's secunty sector focus,
becaming Group Chief Executive in 2002, and in bringing together
Group 4 Falck and Securicor to create the new combined group

Nick became Chief Executrve of G45 in July 2005 Nick s Charrman of
the Ligue Internationale des Sociétes de Survelllance, the international
association of leading security companies

Trevor Dighton

Chief operating officer and divisional president —
secure solutions

Grahame has been involved i the secunty industry for 27 years having
Joined Group 4's UK operating company in 1983 as Finance Director

Since that time Grahame has held a number of operational, managemen,
and board posiions in the UK, USA, Denmari, the Netherlands
and Austna

His broad expenence of the secunty industry and management of
businesses across a diverse range of cultures has been invaluable to
the group throughout its development Grahame joined the board
of G45 in April 2005

Grahame 15 a board member of the Ligue Intermationale des Societes
de Survellance

Ken Niven

Chief financial officer

Divisional president - cash solutions

Trevor has worked in the secunity industry for 24 years After several
years in both the accountancy profession and commerce working in
the finance function and general management he joined BET in 1986
as finance director of ther Secunty and Communications Division

Trevor jomed Secuncor mn 1995 and, followang a number of years as
finance director of the security dmsion he was appointed to the board
of Secuncor plc in June 2002 as group finance director He became
chief financial officer of G4S in Juty 2004

Trevor is a Fellow of the Chartered Insutute of Management Accountants

Ken has 14 years' experence in the securty industry, having joined
Securicor n 1996 as operations director of the UK cash services business
where he was later promoted to managing director and was instrumental
in the development of new product areas, ncuding cash centre
outsourang and establishing Securicor s independent ATM network.

Ken was apponted to his current role in July 2004 and s responsible

for the group’s cash solutions division, which includes all of the major
cash solutions business units and for shanag cash solutions best practice
throughout the entire organisation Ken joned the secunity mdustry
following a successful career within the logstics management industry
where he held senior roles at Express Foods Excel Logistics and
Coxa-Cola

Ken 15 President of ESTA, the European cash services association,
and 1s a member of the Chartered Institute of Logrstics and Transport
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Saren Lundsberg-Nielsen

Group general counsel

Seren began his career as a lawyer in Denmark and since 1984 he has
had a wide range of legal expenence as General Counsel for internatuonal
groups in Denmark, Belgum and the US before joining Group 4 Falck

in 2001 as General Counsel Ssren has been involved in a wide range

of successful mergers and acquisttions during his career; including the
acquisition of Wackenhut and the merger of Group 4 Falck and Secuncor
Seren now has overall responsibility for all internal and external lega!
services for 545 as well as the groups insurance programme

Seren 15 2 member of the Darush Bar and Law Society. a board member

of the Dansh Blood Donation Society, member of the Adwisory Board

of the Danish UK Chamber of Cemmerce and author of the book
Executive Management Contracts”, published in Denmark

Irene Cowden

Group HR director

Irene has spent her career in HR management specialising in employee
relations, organisational development talent management and
compensation issues She has been invohsed in major change projects
including the cultural and integration aspects of mergers and acquistions
as well as large scale organisational change nvalving workforce
restructuring, working in partnershyp with major trade unions

Irene has worked in the secunty industry for 32 years and has held
director level positions at business unit dvisional and corporate level
She was appointed to the Board of Secunicor ple in 2002 as Group
HR Drrector

Irene 15 a member of the Chartered Institute of Personnel and
Development {MCIPD)
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Report of the directors for the year ended 31 December 2009

The direciors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report together with the audrted financial statements of G4S ple and the consolidated financial
staternents of that company and s subsidianes, associated undertalongs and joint ventures ('the group' ) for the year ended 31 Decernber 2009

G45 plc has its pnmary ksting on the London Stock Exchange and a secondary listing on the NASDAQ OMX exchange in Copenhagen

| Principal activities of the group
GA4S plcis a parent company with subsidianies, associated undertakings and joint ventures

The principal actraues of the group compnise the provision of secure solutions (induding manned secunty services, care and justice services and
securty systerns) and cash solutions (including the management and transportation of cash and valuables) as well as the undertaking of other
outsourced business processes in sectars where secunty and safety risks are considered a strategic threat

2 Group results
The consolidated result for the year 1s shawn in the consolidated income statement on page 58

Detalls of the development and performance of the groups business duning the year, its posibon at the year end, future developments pnnopal nsks
and uncertanties, prospects of the group and other information which fulfils the requirements of the Business Review are contained on pages 4 to 39
and are incorporated in this report by reference The Corporate Gavernance Statement set out on pages 47 to 49 1s also ncorporated in this report
by reference The group's financial risk management objectives and poliaes In relation 1o s use of financial Instruments and ris exposure to price
credi, iquidity and cash flow risk, to the extent matenal are set out In note 33 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 95 1o 97

3 Dividends

The directors propose the following net dvidend for the year:

- Intenm dwidend of 302p (DKK 0 2599} per share pard an 30 October 2009
- Final dnadend of 4 16p (DKK 0 3408) per share payable on 4 June 2010

Shareholders on the Darish VP register will receve their dmdends in Danwsh kraner Shareholders who hold their shares through CREST or in
certificated form will receive their dwidends in sterling unless they prefer to receive Danish kroner; in which case they should apply n writing to
the Registrars by no later than 5 May 2010

4 Significant business acquisitions, disposals and developments

In January 2009 Wackenhut Valeres SA was disposed of n Parama

In January 2009, Gottschalk Feuerschutzaniagen GrioH & Co KG was disposed of n Germany

in February 2009, G45 disposed of G45 Holdings (France) SAS, the holding company for the group s French secunty services businesses
In February 2009 Secura Mande International Limited and Shiremoor International Engineenng Limited were acquired in the UK
In March 2009, the business and assets of ADT Secunty Services were acquired in Taiwan

In April 2009, the business and assets of Sunshine Youth Services were acquired in the US

In May 2009, the company issued £350m, 775% bands due 13 May 2019

In Jure 2009, Archive Solutions Lirnited was acquired in Kenya

in June 2009, the business and assets of Paafic Security Alarm were acqured in Guam

In June 2009, the Fogl Knight group was acquired in Australia

In September 2009, 83% of Control Systems Argentina SA was acquired

In November 2009 a number of companies in the Hifl & Assocutes group were acquired primanly in the Asia Paafic region

In November 2009, Champions of the West, Inc {trading as Al Star International) was acquired in the US

In December 2009, Adasta LLC and Adesta LP were acquired in the US

In December 2009, Nudlear Secunty Services Corporation was acquired « the LS
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5 Capital

The authorised and issued share capital of G45 plc at 31 December 2009 1s set out on page 104 (note 37 to the consolidated financial statements)
There were 410 568 639 shares i issue as at 12 March 2010

Information concerning the company’s shares held under option 1s set out on page 104 (nate 37 to the consclidated financal statements)

Resolutions granting the directors power, subject to certan conditions to allot and make market purchases of the company’s shares will be proposed
at the company's Annual General Meeting The resolutions are set out In the Notice of Meeung on pages 120 to 121 and further explanation is
provided on pages 123 o 127 At 31 December 2009 the directors had authority in accordance with a resolutron passed at the company's Annual
General Meeting held on 26 May 2009 1o make market purchases of up to 140,000,000 of the company’s shares

The company does not held any treasury shares as such However the 5 543 818 shares held within the G4S Employee Benefit Trust ( the Trust )
and referred to on page 105 {nrote 38 to the consolidated financial statements) are accounted for as treasury shares The Trust has wawed its nght
1o receve dmdends in respect of the company's shares which 1t held during the penod under review

6 Research and development expenditure

Research in connection with the development of new seraces and products and the improvement of those currently prowided by the group is carmed
out continuously Research and development written off to profit and loss during the year amounted to £5 8m (2008 £3 5m)

7 Payment of suppliers

It 1s the company's and the group’s policy to pay supphers in accordance with the payment terms negotiated with them Thus prompt payment
1s normally made to thase suppliers meeting their obligations The company and the group do not follow any formal code or standard on
payment practice

At 31 December 2009 the trade creditors of the company represented 31 days (2008 26 days) of annual purchases
At 31 December 2003 the consolidated trade creditors of the group represented 37 days (2008 40 days) of annual purchases

8 Employees

In 2009 the first group-wide employee survey was carmed cut offering employees the opportunity to provide feedback on their experience of
waorking for the group Every employee was asked a number of questions about their involvernent, development and engagement with the group,

and more than 169000 employees responded — almost a third of the total workforce Around the world, employees responded posttively to being
nvotved in such a constructive process and the overall feedback was very encouraging with four out of five employees who responded saying they
would recommend G45 as an employer to a fnend Having now analysed the feedback n detall, each business s n the process of developing an action
plan to encourage even greater fevels of engagement by the time the survey 1s repeated in 2011

During the year the company also began rolling out the Ethical Employment Partnership which it entered into at the end of 2008 with UNI, the global
union federaton The agreement s designed to dnive improvements in employment standards across the secursty Industry while helping to ensure that
employee and union nights are respected throughout the group, and has already resuited in a positive impact on employees their fammilies and their
communities The first phase of mplementation covered South Africa and India nvolving around a quarter of the group s employees, and in both
cases the new level of socal dialogue has been well recerved as employees start to see tangible benefits affecting ther everyday lives

Attracting and retaining talented indmiduals continues to be essential to the success of the group and the dversity of its workforee helps it meet its
customers expectations The overall approach of the group to diversity and inchusion 1§ to ensure that it appoints promotes and develops employees
in accerdance with therr talents and aptrtudes, regardless of any disability To encourage loyalty and retain employees’ skills, the group also aims to
retain exsting employees who become disabled wherever possible Further details of the group’s approach to employee engagement and social
dialogue are included in the group's separate Corporate Socal Responsibility Report

92 Political and charitable contributions

The group remawns committed to the suppart of chanites the community, job creation and trarung Charitable contnbutions by the group during
the year amounted to £311.000 (2008 £313000) The purposes for which such contributions were made znd the amount donated to each purpose
were chid welfare £117000 health and medicat £38,000, NGOs £38000 poverty relief £5 500 locat communities £50 500 environment

£21 000, prisoner welfare £29000, and sports £12,000

The company and its subsidianes have made no contnbutions dunng the year to political parties carrying on activities, or to candidates seeking
election, within the EU

One of the company’s subsidianes in the US has however made contnbuuens totaling $3,000 n aggregate to a number of candidates and organisations
seeking election or carrying on actvities in the US

10 Substantial holdings
The directors have been notified of the following substantial shareholdings at 12 March 2010 of the ordinary shares in the capital of G4S plc

Skagen Stichting Administratiekantoor 171,939.961 (12 19%)
BlackRock, Inc. 91,587,666 (649%)
Legal & General Group Plc 51 880641 (3 68%)
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Il Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audi Ple, chartered accountants, as audrior to the company and for thewr remuneration to be fixed by the directors
will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting

12 Directors
The directors, biographical detadls of whom are contaned on pages 40 and 4| held office throughout the year

The directors retinng by rotation are Alf Duch-Pedersen, Nick Buckles, Lord Condon and Mark Elhott who, being eligble, offer themsebves for
re election The board beleves that they possess experience and expertise relevant to the company s operations that they continue to be effective
that they are comntted to the success of the company and that they should be re elected at the Annuzl General Meeting

Of those directors proposed for re-election, Alf Duch-Pedersen, Lord Condon and Mark Elliott do not have contracts of service and Mr Buckles'
contract of service has no unexpired term since It 15 not for a fixed term

The contracts of service of the executve directors are terminable at |2 months' notice None of the non-executive directors has a contract of service

The company has executed deeds of indemnity for the benefit of each of the directors in respect of labdies which may attach to them in ther
capacriy as directors of the company These deeds are qualfying third party indemnity provisions as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act
2006 and have been In effect since 3 November 2006 A copy of the form of indemnity 15 available on the company’s website In addition, indemnities
have been granted by the company in favour of certain of the directors of certan of the group's subsidianes in Germany and the Netherlands

The company has maintained a directors and officers’ hability insurance policy throughout the year under review

Details of directors interests (including thewr family’s interests) in the share capnal of G45 plc and of the directors’ remuneration are set out on
pages 50 to 55

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors report confirm that so far as they are each aware there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the company s auditor s unaware and each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make
himself aware of any relevant audit iInformation and to establish that the compary s auditor 1s aware of that information

None of the directors had a materal interest in ary contract significant to the business of the group dunng the financial year

By order of the board 3
Peter David l ,&
Secretary

15 March 2010

The Manor
Manor Royal
Crawley
West Sussex
RHIOSUN
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Corporate governance statement Shareholder nformation

The board's statement on the company s corporate governance performance 1s based on the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
published in June 2008 (“‘the Combined Code’ ) which ss available on the Financial Reporting Council's webste (hitpffwww frc org ukicorporate/
combinedcode cfm)

The Combined Code requires companies to disclose how they apply the code s main principles and to confirm that they comply with the codes
provisions or, where they do not comply to prowide a careful and dlear explanation of their non-compliance which aims to ustrate how therr actuat
practices are consistent with the code's principles and contribute to good governance

a Application of Combined Code principles

The board compnises the non-executive chairman {Alf Duch-Pedersen) a non-executive deputy chairman (Lord Condon} four other non-executive
directors the chief executive (Nick Buckles) the chief financial officer (Trevor Dighton) and the chief operating officer (Grahame Gibson) The board !
considers all the non executive directors to be independent The serior ndependent director is Lord Condon

All continuing directors are subject to election by shareholders at the next Annual General Meetng following ther 2ppointment by the board and will
submit themselves for re-election at least every three years

Membership of the three board committees s as follows

Audit Committee

Mark Seligman (chairman from May 200%)
Lord Condon (joined Novemnber 2009}
Thorterf Krarup (chairman until May 2009)
Bo Leremus

Remuneration Committee

Lord Condon {ghairmany)
Mark Eliott

Bo Lerenius

Mark Sehgman

Nomination Committee

Alf Duch-Pedersen (charmany
Lord Condon
Mark Eliott

Mr Seligman who 1s the member of the Audit Committee with recent and relevant financal expenence, became chairman of the Audit Committee
following the company's Annual General Meeting on 26 May 2009, taking over that role from Mr Krarup, whe remains a member of that committee
Lord Condon joined the Audit Committee in November 2009 The terms of reference of each of the above commuittees are avallable on the
company’s website

It 15 intended that the charmen of the three committees will be available to answer questions at the Annual General Meeting which 15 an important
opportunity for communication between the board and sharehelders, particularty private shareholders Following each resolution at the Annual
General Meeting the meeting is informed of the numbers of proxy votes cast and the same information 1s subseguently published on the

company s website

There were nine board meetings dunng the year ended 31 December 2009 One of the meetings was also an extended two-day board and strategy
session at which presentations on the development and implementation of the company s strategy were made 1o the board by seruor executves
Cne of the board meetings was held at a subsidiary company s offices in the USA to enable the board to have greater interaction with some of the
businesses in cne of the group’s main markets All members attended each of the board meetings except that Mr Dighton and Mr Elliott were each
absent from one meeting and Mr Krarup was absent from two Non-executive directors also attended meetings and conferences held by varous
regions and business units In order to gain a closer understanding of the group

At each meeting, the board recemves reports from the chief executive the chef financal officer and the company secretary, an HR report which
includes summarnes of developments on HR and health and safety matters and an investor relatons report which includes analysts reviews and any
comments recerved from major shareholders since the previcus board meeting After meetings of the board committees the respective committee
chairmen report to the board on the matters considered by each commuittee In addition, the board receves monthly management accounts

There are nine board meetings scheduled for the current year including a one-day strategy review session

There 1s a detaded schedule of matters reserved to the board which was reviewed and revised dunng the yearand s now set out under twelve
separate categones strategy and management, structure and capital financial reporting and centrols internal controls contracts communication
board membership and other appontments remunerztion delegation of authority; corporate governance matters policies and other By way of
example, board agproval is required for major nvestments, Including the acquistion or dispasal of any business worth more than £5m, any changes
to the group s long-term objectives and commercial strategy; and the annual operating and capital expenditure budgets
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Corporate governance statement contnued

a Application of Combined Code principles continued

Each of the directors has disclosed to the board any situations which apply to them as a result of which they have or may have an nterest which
conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the company In accordance with the company's articles of assocation, the board has authonsed such
matters The affected directors did not vote when their own posttions were considered Where the board deemed 1t appropriate, such authonsation
was given subject to certan conditions The board reviews such matters on a regular basis

In the year under review the Audrt and Remunerauon Committees both met four times and the Nomination Committee met three times
All members attended each of the meetings except for Mr ot who was absent from one meeting of the Nomination Commuttee

The performance of the board and its committees has been evaluated using a questionnaire-based seli-assessment process which was introduced
and informed by the external consuitancy which conducted an evaluation of the performance of the board and the board s committees in 2008

In addition the charman held indmdual meetings with each of the directors to discuss therr performance and ther view of the board as a whole
Reports generated by this process have been considered by the board, the charman and by each of the Audit and Remuneration Committees and a
number of actrons have been agreed as a means of improving performance As a result, more presentations will be made 10 the board by operational
managers, even more boand participation in strategy development will be facilitated and the board will gve greater direction to the board committees
The Remuneration Committee concluded that it should provide more explanation of its actrvities and the Audit Committee 1s to give greater
guidance on the 1ssues which are 1o be presented to 1t.

The charman held meetings with the non-executive directors without the exacutives present and a review of the performance of the charman by
the non-executive directors without the chairman present, was led by the senior independent director

The chief executive and the chief financial officer hald regular meetings with ndiidual nstrtutional shareholders to discuss the group's strategy and
financial performance although price sensitive mformation s never divulged at these meetings 1t 1s intended that all the directors will attend the
company's Annual General Meeting and will be avalable to answer questions from shareholders

The Nomination Committee 1s responsible for making recommendations on board appointments and on maintaiming a balance of skills and expenence
on the board and its committees During the year it has carefully considered the skills and expenence avallable on the board and concluded that whilst
the current blend provides the nght array of knowledge and understanding the tme 1s nght to plan for the future needs of the board External search
consultants have therefore been engaged to assist with the process of refreshing the non-executve element of the board using a description of the
role and capabiliies requred drawn up by the committee and approved by the board The board itself has also given careful consideration to the
succession planning process for the groups senior executive managernent

Audit Committee meetings are attended by representatives of the group auditor, the cheef financial officer the group financial controller the head of
group intemal 2udit and the company secretary The committee considers the group s annual and hat-yearty financial statements and any questions
raised by the auditor on the financial statements and financial systems |t also reviews, amongst other matters the groups financial reporting and
internal auditing processes, whistle blowing arrangements, nsk management procedures and internal controls

The Audit Committee has recommended that the board re-appoints the existing external auditor having reviewed rts performance of audit services
for the company reports on the performance of the firm as a whole 1ts Independence given the non-audit services it prevides to the group and its
policy and practice an audit partner rotation, as well as the cost of its serces The committee will keep the matter of the choice of external auditor
under review at regular ntervals

The Audit Committee has established a policy on the provision by the external auditor of non-audit services, so as to ensure that the independence
of the audit 1s not compromised Besides the formal audit function the auditor is permitted to provide consuttation and due diigence seraces related
to mergers and acquisitions audits of employee benefit plans reviews of internat accounting and control policies general advice on financial reporting
standards and corporate tax services Fhe audiior 1s prohibited from providing other services without specific permussion from the Audit Committee
The value of non-audit services provided by the auditor must not exceed the fees charged for the statutory audt, save in the event of a major
transformation deal The auditor has written to the Audit Commuttee confirming that in its opinian it 1s ndependent

The work of the Remuneration Committee s more fully described in the Directors Remuneration Repaort which appears on pages 50 to 55
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b Compliance with provisions of Combined Code
The company complied throughout the year under review with the provisions set out in section | of the Combined Code

< Risk management and internal control

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the group’s system of nternal control and for reviewing its effectiveness The system 15 designed
1o manage rather than eliminate the nisk of falure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
matenal misstatement or loss

The nsks assocated with the group s activities are reviewed regularly by the board which considers mzjor risks and evaluates their impact on the
group Poliwies and procedures, which are reviewed and monrtored by the head of group internal audit, are in place to deal with any matters which
may be considered by the board to present significant exposure

The key features of the groups nsk management process, which was in place throughout the year under review and since are

* A common nsk management framewark s used to provide a profite of those risks which may have an impact on the achievement of business
objectives

* Each sigruficant nsk s documented, showing an overview of the risk, how the nsk s managed and any improvement actions The risk profiles ensure
that internal audit reviews of the adequacy application and effectiveness of sk managerment and internal controls are targeted on the key nisks

* Risk management cormnmittees have been established at regional, dvisional and group level The regional committees meet at least annually and the
divisionat and group committees meet quarterly A standard agenda covering risk and control 1ssues 1s considered at each meeting and nsk profiles
are reviewed and updated at each meeting

* Risk and control self-evaluation exercises are undertaken for each operating company, for most companies at least twice a year, and updated nsk
profiles are prepared Similar exercises are undertaken as part of the integration process for all major acquistions The results of the company nsk
evaluations are assessed by the regional and dmsional nsk management committees’

The process which is reviewed regularty by the board in accardance with the internal control guidance for directors in the Combined Code, 1s carned
out under the overall supervision of the group nsk management commuittee This committee, which reports to the Audit Committee, includes both
the chief executive and the chief financial officer

The Audt Committee undertakes a high level review of nsk management and intemnal control Both the diasienal nsk management committees and
the group rsk management committee receive internal audit reports and regular reports on nsks They monrtor the actions taken to manage risks

The internal control system includes clearty defined reporting lines and authorisation procedures, a comprehensve budgeting and monthly reporting
system, and written policies and procedures In addition to a wade range of intemal audit reports, senior management also recesve assurance from
other sources including secunty inspections, third party reviews, company financial control reviews external audi reports summaries of whistle
blowing activity and risk and control self-evatuations

The group has in place robust internal controd and nsk management systems for financial reporting, The group has a single global consolidation system
which 1s used for both internal management reporting, budgeting and planning as well as external reporting. The group has a comprehensive budgeting
process with the budget being approved by the board Forecasts for the year are reported at least quarterty Actual results at business unit region and
group level are reported monthly and vanances are reviewed Each business has an internal financial review performed annually by a finance team
from erther region or group 1o check the accuracy of financial reporting and compliance wath the group finance manual

The board has reviewed the groups nsk management and intemal control system for the year to 31 Decernber 2009 by considenng reports from the
Audit Committee and has taken account of events since 3| December 2009

By order of the board
Peter David
Secretary

15 March 2010

* Because Wackenhut Services Ine ( WSI *) 1s governed through a proxy agreerment under which the group 1s excluded from access to operational information it s not subyect to the same nisk
management process as 15 apphed to other group compames The board has however satsf ed itself a3 o the adequacy of the mtermal control processes adodted by WS|
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Directors’ remuneration report at 31 December 2009

This report, prepared on behaif of and approved by the board, prowides details of the remuneration of each of the directors and sets out the
company s resnuneration pohiaes for the current financial year and, subject to ongoing review for subsequent finanaal years The report will be
put to the company's Annual General Meeting for approval by the shareholders

The Remuneration Committee met four times durng the period under revew The members of the committee, all of whom are considered to be

independent, are Lord Condon (chairmany), Mark Elliett Bo Lerenius and Mark Seligman The committee 15 responsble for setting all aspects of the \
remuneration of the chairman, the executive directors, the three other members of the group executve caommittee and the company secretary

It 15 also responsible for the operation of the company’s share plans Its terms of reference are available on the companys website

Duning the year, the committee receved adwice from Towers Perrm, Forster & Crosby Inc' { Towers Perrin') as the commitiee s appointed

advisors on executive and senior management remuneration matters Towers Pernn has akso provided a small amount of management remuneravon

nformation to the company dunng the penod under review Their terms of apponiment are avalable on the compary's website In addition Alithos '
Lirited (“"Althos"} has been appointed by the committee to venfy the caleulation of certain elements of payments due under the company’s

performance share plan Alithos has not provided any other services to the company during the period under review

Nick Buckles, chief executive provided guidance to the committee on remuneration packages for senior executives within the group
Further guidance was receved from the group's HR director Irene Cowden Nerther Mr Buckles nor Mrs Cowden particpated in discussions
regarding their own remuneration

Remuneration policy

The policy for the remuneration of the executive directors and the executive management team aims to achieve
* the abifity to attract, retain and motwate high calibre executives,

* a strong knk between executrve reward and the group's performance

* abgnment of the nterests of the executrves and the shareholders and

* provision of mcentive amrangements which focus appropriately on both annual and longer term performance

In terms of market positioning, the overall objective is to achieve remuneration levels which provide a market competitive base salary with the
opportunity to earn above market norms through the company's incentive schemes on the delivery of supenor performance A significant proportion
of total remuneration 1s therefore related to performance, through partiapation in both shert-term and long-term incentve schemes On average,
the performance-related element of remuneration for executive directars amounts 1o around 50% of the total package for target performance

and around 65% of the total package for stretch performance The committee believes that the current balance is appropnate given its desire to
ersure a strong link between performance and remuneration whilst, at the same time, avoiding a system which might incentrvise Inapproprate
nsk-taking The balance between long- and short-term incentives, and between basic salary and performance related bonuses 15 therefore kept
under close review but the commuttee is satisfied that the existing long-term incentive scheme allied to the claw back processes and mimimum
shareholding requirements which have been introduced recently provide suitable controls and incentives which are designed to avord rewarding
excessive risk taking or behaviour aimed at short-term unsustainable, gans

GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVED

The committee 1s akso satisfied that the incentive structure for the board daes not raise environmental social or governance nisks by inadvertently
motivating rresponsible behawour

Bonus payments do not form part of salary for pension purposes

| Towers Pernin and Alithos have each gven and not withdrawn therr whitten consent to the ssue of this document with the indusion of the reference o thewr respective names in the form
and content i which they appear Copies of the consent letters are avaitable for inspection at the company s registered office
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Elements of remuneration

a Base salary and benefits

The salaries of the executive directors are reviewed with effect from | January each year Interim salary reviews may be carmed out following
signuficant changes in responsibility The salaries take account of a benchmarking exercise based on smilarty sized companies with a sigmificant part of
therr business overseas and also reflect responsibility indmdual performance, internal relatvities and salary and other market information supplied by
Towers Pernn Benefits include pension arrangements and the provision of 2 company car {or a cash allowance in heu of a car) heakh insurance and
Ife assurance As in 2009, the executive directors have agan requested that their base salares are frozen in 2010, to take account of both pay and
employment conditions across the group as wel as the current economic circumstances The committee has acceded to this reguest, but is conscious
that this decmion 15 not consistent with the campany's stated remuneration pelicy or the continuing strong performance of the group as a whole

As a result the committee will continue to monitor the market closely and, when conditions permit, it s the committee s intention to more closely
align base salanes with its competitive rid-market policy Once again, as was the case n 2009, the non-executive drectors have also asked that their
fee levels are not changed in 2010

b Performance-related bonus scheme

For the year under review, the executive directors participated in an annual performance-refated bonus scherme payments under which were
dependent on the attanment of defined PBTA {profit before tax and amortisation) targets of the group, adjusted for the effect of any exceptional
rtems and discontinued operations and using constant exchange rates The comrmuttee beleves that PBTA best reflects the various key drivers of
business success within the group The maxmum bonus entitiement for the executive directors 1s an amounit equal to 125% of base salary (150% n
the case of the chief executive) 60% of maximum bonus entrtlement was payable on achievernent of the budgeted target and the amount of bonus
increased on a straight-line basis up to 100% of maximum bonus entitlernent for achievernent of a stretch profit target Any bonus due above 50%
of the indvidual s maximum bonus entrdement would be awarded as deferred shares which would not vest for three years For achievement of a
threshold level of profits which 1s at least 95% of the budgeted profit target a bonus payment of 35% of maximum bonus entitlement was due, with
ne bonus payable for performance below threshold

A claw back provision was included in the 2009 annual bonus rules by which any deferred shares awarded and dividends ansing therefrom could be
clawed back if the 2005 profit figures are restated materially n line with a recommendation by the Audit Committee within two years of the year end

The committee has approved the retention af the same rules as descrnbed above for the 2010 annual bonus scheme but has extended the daw back
provisions so that they apply to cash payments as well as tc deferred shares

The group performed extremely well in 2009 in what were very difficult econonic condittons in many of its key markeis PBTA increased by £78 2m
{£51 7m at 2009 constant exchange rates), exceeding the target of £3577m, but falling below the maximum full stretch target which was £417 5m
thus 35% of the maximum stretch target was achieved The Remuneration Committee has therefore agreed that the resulting bonus payment will be
at 74% of maximum benus entitlement

The PBTA target used for the above scherne 1s the same as the company s budgeted PBTA for the corresponding perniod (assurning constant exchange
rates) The PBTA target allows for adjustments in respect of any matenal, non-budgeted changes which take place during the year, such as acquistions
disposals etc Thus for example should a planned disposal not be completed by the year end, the committee reserves the right to re-insert the
operating profit or loss for the business In question in the actual and budgeted PBTA targets

¢ Performance Share Plan {long-term incentive plan)

The Performance Share Plan {' PSP ) was introduced in July 2004 Under the plan, the executive directors and certain other senior executives receive
conditional allocations of the company's shares which are released to them only on the achievement of demanding performance targets

The maximum annual award of shares payable under- the plan 1s two and a half times base salary The annual award approved by the committee for
the year under review 1s two tmes base salary for the chief executive, one and a half tmes base szlary for the other executive directors and one times
salary for senior executives below board level The extent te which allocations of shares under the plan vest 1s determined, as to two-thirds of the
award, by the company’s normalised earmings per share growth relative to the RPI over a single three-year penod and as to the remaining third of the
award by the company s ranking by reference to TSR (total shareholder return, beng share price growth plus dwidends paid) using a bespoke global
group of |6 support services companies as a comparator group, again over a single three-year pencd

In relation to awards made in years prior to 2007, the conditions subject to which allocations of shares vest under this plan differ in a number of
respects half of any award 1s determined by the company s normatised earnings per share growth refative to the RPI over a single three-year penod
and the other half of the award by the company s ranking by reference to TSR using the FTSE 100 constituent companies as at the date of the award
as a comparator group agamn over a single three-year penod There Is no provision for retesting

The following targets will continue to apply to two-thirds of awards granted since 2007, with the three-year EPS (garmings per share) penod ending
on 3| December in the third year (so for awards made at the beginning of 2009, the period ends on 31 December 2011)

Awverage annual growth n EPS Propertion of allocaton vesting

Less than RPI + 6% per annum NI

RPY + €% per annum (18% over three years) 25%

RPI + 6%—1% per annum Pra rata between 25% and 100%
RPI + 11% per annum (33% over three years) 100%4

The same targets apply to the first half of awards granted in years prior to 2007
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¢ Performance Share Plan (Jlong-term mcentive plan) continued

The following targets apply to the remaining one-third of each award granted since 2007

Ranking of the company aganst the bespoke comparator group by reference to TSR Proporuon of allocation vesung

Below median Nil

Median 25%

Between median and upper quartle Pro rata between 25% and 100%
Upper quartie 100%

The same targets apply to the second half of each award granted in years prior to 2007, but the ranking applied 1s that of the company aganst the
FTSE 100 constituent companies as at the date of the award

in addition, participants in the PSP will receive a further share award with a value equivalent to the dwvidends which would have been paid in respect
of future PSP awards vesting at the end of the performance penod

In relation to awards made before 2007 there will only be a transfer of shares under the second half if the growth in EPS of the company has
exceeded the growth in RP by 10% over a performance pericd of three financial years

Furthermore, there will only be a transfer of shares under the final third {or second half n respect of awards made before 2007) if the Reruneration
Committee is satisfied that the company s TSR performance is reflective of the company s underlying performance

The Remuneration Committee beheves that a combination of earnungs per share growth and total shareholder return targets is the mest appropriate
performance measure for the performance share plan, as it provides a transparent method of assessing the company's performance bath in terms of
underlying financial performance and returns to shareholders The company calculates whether the EPS performance targets have been achieved by
reference to the company s audited accounts which provide an accessible and objective measure of the company s earnings per share, whist TSR
ranking will be determined by Towers Pernn whose findings are venfied by Alithos

Awards will not normally vest where an employee ceases 1o be employed within the group unless cessation of employment 1s due to death, injury
disability redundancy, retirernent or following a change of control of, or sale outside the group of his or her employing company In these situations,
vesting will occur in the normal course and the performance targets will need to be satisfied Only a proportion of the award, based on the time
which has elapsed from the award date to the end of the last complete month in which the employee was employed, will vest in these circumstances
n most cases The Remuneration Cemmittee does however retan the ability to alow for a greater award to vest if it consders it to be appropriate
in exceptional circumstances

The company's current policy 15 to use market purchased shares to satisfy performance share plan awards

The Remuneration Committee believes that continued shareholding by executive directors will strengthen the alignment of their interests with
shareholders interests Accordingly, whilst executive directors of the company have previously been expected to retain shares to the value of 30% of
the after-tax gains made on the vesting of performance share plan awards until they have bult up a shareholding equivalent to one tmes base szlary,
a formal policy has now been adopted under which, in future executive directors will be required to retain 50% of after tax PSP vestings until a total
shareholding equal to 100% of base salary (150% for the chief executive) 15 achieved

Following a review of the operation of the PSP by the Remuneration Committee ncluding detaled analysis of the current EPS and TSR targets
the committee s satisfied that the current EPS and TSR measures and targets remain appropriate for 2010 and that, as in 2009, the committee
will remove the impact of currency movements from the calculation of both EPS and TSR

Fees, service contracts and letters of appointment

The chairmans annual fee 1s £270,000 The anaual fee for the non-executive directors, which 1s set by the chairman and the executive directors 1s
£54,100, with a further £44,550 for the role of deputy chairman £16 700 for the chairmanshyp of each of the Audit and Remuneration Committees
and £10000 for the role of seniar iIndependent director No other fees are paid for membership of the board committees These fees are subject to

penodic review which takes Into account comparative fee levels in other groups of a similar size and the anticpated tme commitment for the
non-executive directors

The serace contracts of those who served as executive directors during the penod are dated as follows

Nick Bucktes 2 June 2004
Trevor Dighton 2 june 2004
Grahame Gibson 6 December 2006

The contracts of Messrs Buckles, Dighten and Gibson are terminable by the company en 12 months natice The contracts are terminable by the
executive drrectors on |2 months notice There are no lquidated damages provisions for compensation payable upen early termination, but the
company reserves the nght to pay salary in lieu of notice The directors’ contracts do not provide for the payment of a guaranteed bonus in the event
of termination It s the company's policy that 1t should be able to terminate service contracts of executive directors on no more than 12 months'
notice and that payments for termination of contract are restricted to the value of salary and other contractual entrtlements for the nctice penod
The Remuneration Committee (s satisfied that the current arrangements are appropriate and in line with best practice

The charman and the other non-exacutive directors do not have service contracts but letters of appointment Mr Seligman and Mr Ellott have each
been granted two-year extensions to therr inrial three-year terms of appointment. Those extensions began respectively on | January and | September
2009 The other non-executive directors were each granted three-year extensions to their inial letters of appontment, such extensions having begun
on 19 May 2007 All continuing directors are required to stand for re-election by the shareholders at least once every three years

It 1s the company's policy that executive directors may each hold not more than ane external non-executive appomtment and may retain any
associated fees Mr Buckles i1s a non-executive director of Arriva ple for which he received fees of £45,000 in the year ended 31 December 2009
MNerther of the other executive directors currently holds an external non-executive appontment
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The performance graph below shaws the total cumulative shareholder return of the company over the five years to the end of December 2009
based on a hypathetical sharehalding worth £100, compared with the return achieved by the FTSE 100 constituent companies over the same period
The drrectors believe this to be an appropniate form of broad equity market index aganst which to base a comparison given the size and geographic
coverage of the company and the fact that the company is itself a member of the FTSE 100 The graph also compares the company's performance
over the same penod with the bespoke group of companies which 1 used now for comparative total shareholder return purposes in the company s
performance share plan {Until 2007, the FTSE 100 constriuent compantes were used for this purpose) The values attnibutable to the bespoke
comparator group companies have been weighted in accordance with the market capitalisation of the comparues calculated at spot exchange rates

as at each year end

GRAPH
REMOVED

The peer group currently comprises Atikins WS, Brambles, Brink's, Bunzl, Capita, Compass Garda G45 Hays, MITIE, Prosegur Rentokil Inttial,

Rexarm, Securitas, Serco and Sodexo
The following information has been audited:

Base salaries and bonuses

Benefits'
{exduding Performance
Salary and pension Related 2009 2008
Fees centnbution) Bonus? Total Total
14 £ 4 4 Is
Chairman (non-executive)
Alf Duch-Pedersen 270000 - - 270,000 260,000
Executive directors
Nick Buckles (see notes | & 2 below) 761,400 49,088 845763 1,656,251 147777
Trevor Dighton (see notes | & 2 below) 475,240 34452 439,882 949,574 885,873
Grahame Gibson (see notes | 2 3 & 4 below) 621,904 45,734 557799 1,225,437 1075972
Other non-executive directors
L.ord Conden 125350 - - 125,350 117085
Mark Eliott 54,100 - - 54,100 52,265
Thorler Krarup 61,058 - - 61,058 68790
Bo Lerenus 54,100 - - 54,100 52,265
Mark Seligman 63,842 - - 63,842 52265
Sir Malcolm Willamson (reured 30 May 2008) - - - - 27825
Total 2486994 129,274 1843444 4,459,712 4010097
Notes

I Benefits inchade the cost of prowadng Ife nsurance wiich was dealt with previousty as pa-t of the cost of pensions Mo new benefits have been provded

2 Any bonus due above 50% of the indmdual s maxsmum bonus entilement (150% of base satary for Mr Buckles and 125% for Messrs Dighton and Gibson) will be awarded as deferred
G45 shares The number of shares which wall be awarded wil be the amount of bonus i quesuon draded by the average middle market dosing pnce of the company s ordinary shares over
the three days immediately following the date of the company s prefimnary results announcement. 16 March 2010

3 The company pard arr ‘ares amountng to U5330 170 ‘or flghts betwee~ the U< and the USA for r Gibsons w-fe and crddren. Ths sum s taxabie tn the USA and not incuded n tre

figures zbove

4 Mr Gibson recerves part of hus salary in sterling and part in US$ The LSS element has been translated into sterling for the purposes of his salary at the exchange rates prevaling in each

month in which Mr Gibson was paid
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Base salaries and bonuses continued

The annual base salanes of the executive directors and the annual fees of the non-executive directors at 31 December 2009 were

Executive directors

Nick Buckles £761,400
Trevor Dighton £475,240

£51,887 &
Grahame Gibson $B890400
Non executive directors £
Alf Duch-Pedersen {charman) 270000
Lord Condon 125350
Mark Eliott 54,100
Thorlef Krarup 54.100
Bo Lerenius 54,100
Mark Seligrnan 70,800

Directors’ share options

Granteddunng ~ Outstanding at Opuon prke

Opton AL311208 2009 3112 09 e

MNick Buckles A 95,000 - - 164 00
B 75000 - - 13375

C 55,000 - - 15300

D 700000 - - 10800

Trevor Dighton A 55,000 - - 16400
B 40000 - - 13375

C 30000 - - 15300

D 350000 - - 10800

Option A = Securicor Executive Share Option Scheme exercsable unul Decernber 2007
Option B = Secuncor Executive Share Option Scheme exgraisable until june 2010
Option €= Secuncar Execitive Share Opuion Scheme exeraisable untd December 2010
Opuon O = Secuncor Exeautrve Share Option Scheme, exarcisable untd December 2011

The above options which had been granted over Secunicor ple shares were rolled over Into options over G4S plc shares No further grants of options
under these schemes will be made

Mr Buckles and Mr Dighton exercised theiwr options over all the shares descnbed above on |} November 2009 when the market pnce was 25| 80p
per share

As a result of implementation of the Scheme of Arrangement of Secuncor ple in July 2004, the performance conditions for the executive share options
referred 1o above ceased to apply This would not occur under the current Performance Share Plan

Directors’ interests in Performance Share Plan

Shares awarded Market prce

condit:onalty Date of at date Vesung 2006
Ardl 208 dunng year award of award date awards At 31209
Nick Buckles 1,508,215 820032 160309 18890p 160312 341,085 1,987,162
Trevor Dighton 825,720 383877 160309 18850p 160312 206,720 1,002,877
Grahame Gibson 928,600 420298 160309 18890p 160312 241,600 1,107,298

The conditions subject to which allocztians of shares vest under this plan are described under ¢ Performance Share Plan on pages 51 and 52
Dunng the year under review the following Performance Share Plan awards vested

Nick Buckles — 341,085 shares gross (341 085 maximum award |00% vested, 201,240 shares released after tax and NIC)
Trevor Dighton — 206 720 shares gross (206,720 maximum award, 100% vested, 121,964 shares released after tax and NIC)
Grahame Gibson - 24| 600 shares gross {241 600 maximum award, 100% vested, 174423 shares released after tax and NIC)

The market price at date of award {17 March 2006) was 192 75p per share, the market pnce at the vesting date (17 March 2009) was 191 70p
per share

The commitiee has decided that the EPS portion of the 2007 PSP award, based on EPS growth from 2007 to 2009 mchusive, wall vest i March 2010
o the extent that the performance test has been achieved However any vested awards will reran subject to risk of forferture and will not be
released to particpants until june 2010 as per the ongnal terms of the plan

To assist with the administration of the plan the automatic nght to the release of vested awards was removed [n future participants or the compary
will be required to request the release of any vested shares from the trustee of the plan
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Directors’ interests in shares of G4S plc (unaudited)

{including awards of deferred shares but excluding shares under option and shares awarded conditionally under the Perforynance Share Plan
both as shown above)

A3l 1209 AL31 0208
Nick Buckles 1,602,194 1399773
Lord Condon 2,029 2029
Trevor Dighton 1,052,061 920493
Alf Duch-Pedersen 128,560 128 560
Mark Elliott 25,000 25000
Grahame Gibson 927,382 763 594
Thorlelf Krarup 3,206 3,206
Ba Lerenius 16,000 16 000
Mark Selgman 50,496 50495

All interests shown above are benefical
There have been no changes in the directors’ holdings since 31 December 2009

As at 31 Decemnber 2009, each of Nick Buckles, Trevor Dighton and Grahame Gibsen also had a deemed interestin 5,543,818 ordinary shares
held in the G45 Employee Benefit Trust

Dwectors’ pension entitlements
p

For the pencd under review, both Nick Buckles and Trever Dighton partcipated in non contributory categones of the group s defined benefit pension
scheme with a normal retirement age of 60 Mr Dighten accrued pension at a rate of (/30ths and Mr Buckles accrued pension at a rate of 1/52ths of
thewr final pensionable salanes Their rates of accrual have not changed in the time since they joined the scheme An actuanal reduction 1s apphed to
pensions payable before normal retirement age Pension can continue to accrue at the same rates beyond normal retirement age

For death before retirement, a caprtal sum equal to four times pensionable salary 15 payable, together with a spouse s pension of 50% of the member's
prospective pension at the age of 60 plus a return of any contributions paid prior to the admission to the non-contributory category

For death n retrement, a spouse s pension of 50% of the members pre-commutation pension 1s payable

Post-retrement pension iIncreases are payable at the rate of 5% per annum in respect of pension earmed up to 3| December 1994 and in Ine with
the increase In the Retal Prices Index subject to a maximum of 5% per annum in respect of pension earned after that date

With effect from 6 April 2006 Mr Gibson opted for enhanced protection and receives a salary supplemnent in ieu of pension of 40% of his basic salary
Pension entrtlements and corresponding transfer values increased as follows dunng the 12 months ended 31 December 2009 (all figures are n £000s)

Increase m Value of net Total change Transfer value Transfer value

Gross increase accrued Total accrued nerease in In transfer of accrued ol accrued

n accrued pensian net pension at accrual over value dunng pension at pension at

pensian®” of nflauon® 3112059 penad® penod? 3112099 3112087

Nick Buckles 15 15 345 243 466 6,255 5785
Trevor Dighton 18 18 99 426 494 2364 | 870
Grahame Gibson 0 0 230 0 35 3684 3649

Notes

(1) Penwon accruals shown are the amounts which would be paid annually on retrement based on serace o the end of the year with the excepton of Mr Gibson whose accrual ended on
5 April 2006

(2) Transfer values have been cakulated in accordance with the current transfer value basis adepted by the trustees of the G45 Pension Scheme

{3) The value of netincrease (4) represents the incremental value to the director of hes service during the year calculated o0 the assumpuon that service terminated at the year end It s based
on the increase in accrued pension (2) with the excepuon of Mr Gibson whase accrual ended on 5 Apnl 2006

(4) The impact of changes in market condions has been much sralker than in 2008 o the increase in transfer value s manly due to the ncrease 1 the a~ount o benefit over the year
(5} Irflation was negatve over 2005 but znncrease of 0% was ass.med n the calcutaucns asove

(6) Mr Gibson recewves a salary supplement in heu of pension of 40% of his base salary

Lord Condon P Q ﬁ Q
Charman of the Remuneration Committee

15 Mareh 2010
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect
of the annual report and the financial statements

For the year ended 3| December 2009

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual report and the group and parent company financial statements i accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the directors 16 prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year Under that law they are
required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the
parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and zpplicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satsfied that they give a true and far view of the state of
affars of the group and parent company and of their profit or foss for that penod In prepanng each of the group and parent compary financial
statements the directors are required to

* select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
+ for the group finanaal statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU

+ for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any matenial
departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial statements and

* prepare the financal statements on the going concern basis unless rt 15 nappropriate to presume that the group and the parent company will
continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other iregulantes

Under applicable law and regulations the directors are a'so respensible for preparing a Directors Report Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Corporate Governance Statement that complies with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegrity of the corporate and financial nformation ncluded on the comparny s website
Legislauon in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other ursdictuons

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Each of the directors the names of whom are set out on pages 40 and 41 of this annual report confirms that, to the best of bis knowledge the
financal statements In this annual report have been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and gve a true and far view of
the assets liabiities financial position and profit of the companyy and the group taken as a whole, and the directors report including the Business
Review on pages 4 to 35, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the group
taken as 2 whoele together with a descripuion of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

This statement of directors responsbilities was approved by a duly authorised committee of the board of directors on 15 March 2010 and signed on
its behalf by Trevor Dighton Cheef financial officer

<.—-——-—_—"‘—\

P ans

Trevor Dighton
Chief financial officer
15 March 2010
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of G4S plc Shareholder wormation

We have audited the financial statements of G45 plc for the year ended 31 December 2009 set aut on pages 58 to 15 The financial reporting
framework that has been apphied in the preparation of the group financial statements s applicable law and International Financial Reparting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework that has been appled in the preparation of the parent compary financral statements
15 applcable law and UK Accountng Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practce)

Thrs report is made solely to the company s members as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part |6 of the Comparues Act 2006 Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company § members those matters we are required to state to them in an audrors' report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and
the company s members as a body for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responstbilities of directors and auditors

As explaned more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement set aut on page 56 the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for beng sausfied that they give 2 true and fair vew Qur responsibility 1s to audrt the financal statements in accordance with

applicable law and Internauonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standands require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s
{APBs) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audst of the financial statements

A descrption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB s website at www frc orguk/apb/scope/UKP

Opinion on financal statements
In our opinion

= the financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company s affars as at 3| December 2009 and of the
groups profit for the year then ended

* the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU

* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

* the financial staternents have been prepared n accordance with the reguirements of the Companias Act 2006 and as regards the group financal
statements Article 4 of the |AS Regulation

Opinton on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion

+ the part of the Directors Remuneraton Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

* the wiormation given in the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financral statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial
statements and

+ the nformation gaven in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 47 to 4% with respect to internal control and nisk management
systems in relation to financial reparting processes and about share capital structures 1s consistent with the firancial statemants

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, In our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from branches
not visited by us or

+ the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors' Rermuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

» certan disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or

* we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for aur audit, or
» a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by the company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

* the Directors’ siatement set out on page 56 in relation to going concern and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 47 to 49 relating to the comparny s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006
Combined Code speafied for our review

AL Busbde

Alan Buckle (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statuiory Auditor
Chariered Accountants

8 Salisbury Square

London

ECAY 8BB

15 March 2010
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 008
Notes im £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 56 1,008.6 59285
Profit from operations before amortisation of acquisiwon-related intangible assets
and share of profit from associates 499.1 416
Share of profit from associates 1.2 34
Profit from operations before amortisation of acquisition-refated
intangible assets (PBITA) 13 500.3 4150
Amarysation of acquisison-related intangible assets (83 2) 678)
Profit from operations before interest and taxation {PBIT) 58 417.1 3472
Finance income 2 81.7 1049
Finance costs i3 (196.0) {1894)
Profit before taxation (PBT) 302.8 2627
Taxation
— Before amortsation of acquisition-related intang ble assets (100.0) (894)
— On amortsation of acquisruon-related intangible assets 233 191
14 (76.7) (703}
Profit after taxation 226 1 1924
Loss from discontinued operations 7 69) (275}
Profit for the year 2192 1649
Attrbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 202.5 1512
Minonty miterests 167 137
Profit for the year 21912 1649
Earnings per share attributable to equity shareholders of the parent 16
For profit from continuing operations
Basic 14 ¢p 132p
Diluted 14 9p 132p
Far profit frem continuing and discontinued operations
Basic 14 4p g
Duluted 14 4p 11p
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2009 2008
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 19 2,043.9 20795
Other acquisiton-related intangble assets 15 361.2 4031
Other intangible assets 5 687 610
Property plant and equipment 0 546 0 5285
lrvestment in associates n 72 74
Trade and other recenvables b4 14 1980
Deferred tax assets % 178 1 1550
3,316 5 34325
Current assets
Inventones n 778 850
Investments b 84 4 927
Trade and other recevables b 1,348 5 13753
Cash and cash equivalents 28 3076 5621
Assets classified as held for sale 7 291 710
1,847 4 21861
Total assets 6 51639 S6186
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Bank averdrafts 2825 (375) {195 1}
Bank foans 29 {145 6) (879)
Obligations under finance leases 30 (23 1) (221)
Trade and other payables 31 (1,105 5) (1216 6)
Current tax habilites (55.2) (289
Retrerent benefit obligations 34 (54 6) (489
Provisions 3 (29 8) (339
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for szle 27 (309) {741)
{1,482 2) (17075)
Non-current habilities
Bank loans b (516 3} (8778)
Loan notes 9 nLisT (9019)
Obligations under finance leases 10 (62 6) (63 6)
Trade and other payables 3 (42 5) (63 5)
Reurement benefit obligauons 14 (213 0) (278 6)
Provisions 3 (68 3) (1167)
Deferred tax habihties 36 {123 1) (138 1)
(2,242 5) (24402)
Total liahiities 6 (3,724 7) 41477
Net assets 1,4392 14709
EQUITY
Share capital 37 352.6 3521
Share prermium ang reserves 1,054 | 10749
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,406 7 14270
Minority interests 325 439
Total equity 1,4392 14709

The conschdated financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for issue on |5 March 2010

They were signed on its behalf by
Nick Buckles Trevor Dighton
Director Director

//—l_.a_.
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Consolidated statement of cash flow
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Profit before taxation 3028 627
Adjustments for
Finance income 81 7T) (1049
Finance costs 196 0 1894
Deprecaton of property. plant and equipment 121 % 1050
Amortisaton of acquistion-related intangible assets 8312 678
Amortsation of ather intangble assets 151 I
{Profithloss on disposal of property plant and equpment and intangble assets other than
acquisition related (0.3) 21
Share of profit from associates (1.2) {(34)
Equity-settled transactions 71 50
Operating cash flow before movements in worlang capital 6421 5348
Decrease/(increase) in iInventones 20 (74
Decrease/(increase} in recervables 10 (444)
Increase m payables 44 436
Decrease n provisions 57 (142
Decrease n retirement benefit obkgations (329 (323)
Net cash flow from operating activities of continuing operations 591§ 4801
Net cash used by operating activities of discontinued operations (14 1) 50
Cash generated by operations 5770 4550
Tax pad (67.8) 829
Net cash flow from operating activities 5092 3730
tavesting activities
Interest recerved 1.8 172
Cash flow from associates 24 122
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisition-refated (187.1) (174 5)
Proceeds on disposal of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets
other than acquisition-related 17.4 132
Acguisition of subsidianes (157 5) 4194)
Net cash balances acquired/disposed of (12.2) 197
Dusposat of subsidianes 76 311
{Purchase)fsale of investmenis 09 56
Own shares purchased (99) (88}
Net cash used in investing actmties (328.4) (5037}
Financing activities
Share sssues 27 2768
Dmdends pad to minonty interesis (18 0) (9
Dradends pad to equity shareholders of the parent {(94.2) (750)
Proceeds on issue of loan notes 3468 3270
Repayment of revolvng credit faciities with proceeds from issue of loan notes (346 8) (3270
Other net movement in borrowings 237 1737
Interest pad (98 5) (972}
Net cash flow from hedging financial instrurents (10.2) 659
Repayment of obhgations under finance leases (24 2) (135)
Net cash flow from financing activities (218.7) 1870
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2009 2008
Motes tm £m
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 3 379) 563
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginning of the year 3607 2707
Effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (32 3) 337
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year b 2505 3607

1]



Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 3 December 2009

1009 2008
i{m £€m

Profit for the year 2192 1649
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations (93 3) 1820
Change in fair value of net investment hedging fimancial instruments 28 6 8 1)
Change in fair value of cash flow hedging financial instruments {22.8) 364
Actuaral losses on defined retirement benefit schemes (63.1) (1969)
Tax on items taken directly to equity 21.9 503
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (128 5) %3
Total comprehensive income for the year 90.7 1556
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 74,0 1419
Minority nterests 16.7 137
Total comprehensive income for the year 907 1556
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&1

Share Share Retaned Hedpng Transtauon Merger Reserve for Total
caputal premivm earnngs reserve reserve reserve own shares reserves
£m £m £m fm fm Lm £m
At | January 2008 3202 Ho 3170 (144) 360 4263 50 10871
Net recognised income/
(expense) attnbutable
to equrty shareholders
of the parent - - 110 (327) 1636 - - 1419
Shares issued 319 2449 - - - - - 2768
Dridends dedared - - 750 - - - - 750
Own shares purchased - - - - - - a8y 88
Owni shares awarded - - 60 - - - 60 -
Equity-settled transactions - - 50 - - - - 50
At 31 December 2008 3521 2559 2520 @z 1996 4263 (18 14270
At | |anuary 2009 35214 2559 2520 @71 1996 4263 s 14270
Net recognised income/f
{expense) atinbutable
to equrty shareholders
of the parent - - 1394 44 698 - - 740
Shares issued 05 22 - - - - - 27
Diwvidends declared - - 942) - - - - {942
Own shares purchased - - - - - - (99 {99)
Cwn shares awarded - - {85) - - - 95 ~
Equity-settled transactions - - 71 - - - - 71
At 31 December 2009 3526 258 | 2948 (427) 129 8 426 3 (12.2) 1,406 7

*See Note 38
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
| General information |
I

G5 ple1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Comparies Act 1985 The consoldated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the company and entities (its subsidianies) controlled by the company (collectively comprising the group) and the group’s
wierest in associates and jontly controlled entities made up to 31 December each year The nature of the groups operations and 1ts princpal actvities
are set out in note 6 and in the Operating and Financral review on pages 4 to 27 and 32 to 37 The group operates throughout the world and in a wide
range of functional currencies the maost significant being the euro the US dollar and sterting. The groups financial statements are presented in sterling
as the group’s pnmary listing 15 in the UK Foreign operations are included in accordance wath the policies set out in note 3 The address of the
registered office 1s given on page 130

2 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial staterments of the group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted for
use in the European Union (adopted IFRSS) The company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) These are presented on pages |11 to 119

3 Significant accounting policies

a Basis of preparation

The consohdated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the going concern basis and using the historical cost basis except for
the revaluation of certan non-current assets and financial instruments The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below Judgements made

by the drrectors in the applicaton of these accounting polices which have a sigrificant effect on the financal statements and estimates with a signdficant
risk of matenal adustment are discussed in note 4

The comparative Income statement for the year ended 3| December 2008 has been re-presented for aperauons qualifyng as discontinued during
the current year Revenue from continuing operations has been reduced by £144m and PBT has been reduced by £1 5m compared to the figures
published previcusly Further details of discontinued operations are presented within note 7 In addition, the comparative balance sheet as at

3| December 2008 has been restated 1o reflect the completion durng 2009 of the iniial accounting i respect of acquistions made during 2008
Adjustments made to the provisional calculation of the far values of assets and kabiities acquired amount to £19 Im, with an equivalent increase

in the reported value of goodwill The impact of these adustments on the net assets acquired 15 presented in note 17

b Basis of consolidation

Subsidiones

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group Control s achweved where the group has the power to govern the financal and operating policies
of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its actvities determined erther by the groups ownership percentage or by the terms of any
shareholder agreement.

On acquisition, the assets and labiliies and contingent habiiues of the acquired business are measured at therr farr values at the date of acquisiuon
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recogrised as goodwill Any deficiency in the cost of
acquisiion below the far values of the enufiable net assets acquired (1e discount on acquisition) 15 credited to the ncome statement in the year

of acqusiion The cost of acquisition includes the present vatue of consideration payable in respect of put options held by minority shareholders

The interest of minonty shareholders is stated at the minonty's proportion of the far values of the assets and liabilities recognised Subseguently any
losses applicable to the minonty interest in excess of the carrying value of the minonty iInterest are alfocated against the interest of the parent, except
to the extent that the mincrity has both a binding obligation and the ability to make an addwonal investment to cover the losses

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of control
or up to the effective date of disposal as approprate
Jont ventures

A joint venture 15 a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic actvity that is subject 10 joint control in that
strategic financial and operating decisions require the unamimous consent of the parties

The groups interest in joint ventures s accountted for using the proportionate consolidatron method whereby the groups share of the results and !
assets and lrabilities of a jointly-controfled entity 15 combined hne by kne with similar tems 10 the group s consokdated financial statements

Associates

An associate 1s an entity over which the group 1s In a position to exerase significant influence but not control or joint control through participation
in the financial and operating pohcy decisions of the nvestee

The results and assets and habilities of associates are incorporated in the group’s consolidated finanaial statements using the equity method of
accounting Investments in associates are camed in ihe balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisiion changes in the group s share of the net
assets of the associates less any impairment in the value of ndmdual investments Losses of the assocrates in excess of the groups interest in those
associates are not recognised

Transactions elminated on consolidation
Allntra-group transactions balances income and expenses are elminated on consolidation Where a group company transacts with a joint venture
or associate of the group profits and losses are ebrninated to the extent of the groups interest in the relevant joint venture or associate
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3 Significant accounting policies continued

< Forelgn currencies

The financial staternents of each of the group s businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business Transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency are translated at the rates of exchange prevaiing on the dates of the transactions At each balznce sheet
date, monetary assets and Jabilities which are denominated in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevaling on that date Non-monetary
assets and habilities carned at fair value which are denominated in other currencies are translated at the rates prevaling at the date when the farr value
was determined Non monetary tems measured at historical cost denominated in other currencies are not retranslated Gains and losses ansing on
retranslation are included in the Income statement for the perod

On consclidation the assets and habilities of the group s overseas operations iIncluding goodwill and far value adustments ansing on their acquisiion,
are translated into sterling at exchange rates prevating on the balance sheet date Income and expenses are translated nto sterfing at the average
exchange rates for the penad (unless this 1s not a reasonable approximation of the cumulatve effect of the rate prevailing on the transaction dates, In
which case income and expenses are transhted at the dates of the transacuens) Exchange differences ansing are recognised in equity together with
exchange differences arising on monetary items that are in substance a part of the groups net investment in foregn operations and on borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such nvestrnents where and to the extent that the hedges are deemed to be effectve

On drsposal translation differences are recognised In the income statement in the pencd in which the operation i disposed of

d Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with its treasury policy the group only holds ar ssues dernvative financial instruments 1o manage the group's exposure to financal nsk,
not for trading purposes Such financal msk includes the interest nsk on the groups vanable rate borrowings the far value risk on the group’s fixed
rate borrowings, commadity risk in relation to its diesel consurnption and foreign exchange nsk on transactrons on the translation of the groups
results and on the translation of the groups net assets measured in foreign currencies The group manages these nsks through a range of dervative
financial Instruments indluding interest rate swaps, fixed rate agreernents, commodity swaps commodity options, forward foreign exchange contracts
and currency swaps

Derwative financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet as financial assets or liabilies at fair value Farvalue is measured using one of the
valuation techriques based on one of the following valuation heerarchies as set out in IFRS 7 (Amended)

Level | — quoted pnces (unadusted) In active markets for identical assets or habilmes,

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices ncluded within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability ether directly (1e as pnces) or indirectly
{1e derved from prices) and

Level 3 — inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable nputs)

The gain or loss on re-measurement to far value s recognised mmecdhately i the incame statement, unless the dervatrves qualify for hedge
accounting Where dervatives do qualfy for hedge accounting the treatment of any resultant gan or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged as descnibed below

Far value hedge
The change In the far value of both the hedging instrument and the related portion of the hedged tem 15 recognised immedately in the incarme
statement

Cash flow hedge

The change in the far value of the portion of the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge 1s recogrised in equity and
subsequently recycled to the income statement when the hedged cash flow impacts the income statement The ineffactive portion of the fair value of
the hedging instrument s recognised immedately in the income statement

Net investment hedge

The change in the fair value of the portion of the hedging iInstrument that is determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised in equrty and
subsequently recycled to the income statement when the hedged net investment impacts the income statement The ineffective portion of the fair
value of the hedging instrument 1s recognised immediately in the Income statement

e Intangible assets

Goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by the application of the purchase method Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the groups interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and labilues and contingent labibities of a subsidiary assowiate or
jountly controlled entsty at the date of acquisiuon Goodwill ansing on the acquisiion of an addrtonal mterest from a minonty i a subsidiary represents
the excess of the cost of the additional investment over the carrying amount of the net assets acquired at the date of exchange Goodwill 1s stated at
cost, less any accumulated imparment losses, and 15 tested annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that amounts may be
wnpared In respect of associates the carryng amount of goodwili s included within the net invesiment in assocates On disposal of a subsidiary,
associate or jointly controlled entity, the attnbutable amount of goodwillis ncluded i the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Goodwill amsing on acquisiions before transition 10 IFRS on | January 2004 has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts, subject to being
tested forimpairment at that date Goodwill wnitten-off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and 1s not included in
determining any subsequent profit or foss on disposal
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3 Significant accounting policies continued

e Intangible assets continued

Acqusiton-refated intangible assets '
Intangible assets on acquisitions that are erther separable or anising from contractual mghts are recagrised at far value at the date of acquisttion

Such acquisition-related intangible assets nclude trademarks technology, customer contracts and customer relationshups The far value of acquisiuon-

related intangble assets 1s determined by reference to market prices of similar assets where such information is avalable, or by the use of appropnate

valuation techrugues, including the royalty relief method and the excess earmings method

Acquisition-related intangible assets are amorused by equal annual instalments over their expected economic Iife The directors review acguisition-
related intangible assets on an ongoing basis and where appropnate, provide for any impairment in value

The estimated useful fives are as follows.

Trademarks up to a maximum of five years
Customer contracts and customer relztionships up ta a maximum of ten years
Technology up to 2 maximum of five years

Other intangible assets — development expenditure

Development expenditure represents expenditure incurred in establshing new services and products of the group Such expendture 1s recognised
as an intangible asset only i¥ the following can be demonsirated the expenditure creates an identifizble asset its cost can be measured refiably it 1s
probable that it will generate future economic benefits 1t1s technically and commercally feasible and the group has sufficent resources to complete
development In all other instances, the cost of such expenditure s taken directly to the Income statement

Capitalised development expenditure 1s amartised aver the penod dunng which the expenditure 1s expected to be revenue-producing, up to a
maximum of ten years The directors review the capralsed development expenditure on an ongoing basis and where appropriate provide for any
impairment in value

Research expenditure 1s written-off In the year in which 1t 1s incurred

Other intangible assets — software

Computer software Is capitalised as an mtangble asset f such expenditure {poth intemally generated and externally purchased) creates an identfiable
asset, if 1ts cost can be measured reliably and if it 1s probable that it will generate future economic benefits Capitalised computer software is stated at
cost, net of amortisation and any provision for impairment Amorusation 1s charged on software so as to wnte-off the cost of the assets to their
estimated residual values by equal annual instalments over their expected useful economic lives up to a maximum of five years

f Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment Depreciation is provided on all
property plant and equipment other than freehold land Depreaation s calculated so as to write-off the cost of the assets to therr estimated residual
values by equal annual nstalments over their expected useful economic tives as follows

Freehold and long leasehold buldings up to 2%
Short teasehaold buikiings {under S0 years) over the Iife of the lease
Equipment and motor vehicles 10%-33 3%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over therr expected useful economic ives on the same basis as owned assets or where shorter,
over the term of the relevant lease

Where significant the residual values and the useful econormic Iives of property plant and equipment are reassessed annually The directors review the !
carrying value of property plant and equipment on an ongoing bass and, where appropriate provice for any iImpairment in value

g Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial kabilives are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Trode recenvables

Trade recenvables do not carry interest and are stated inially at thewr farr value The carrying amount of trade recenables 1s reduced through the use
of an allowance account The group provides for bad debts based upon an analysis of those that are past due n accordance with loca! conditions and
past default experience

PFl assets

Under the terms of a Private Finance Intiatve {PFI} or similar project, where the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset remain largely with the

purchaser of the associated services the groupss interest in the asset is classified as a finanaal asset and included at its discounted value within trade
and other recevables

Current asset investments

Current asset investments comprise investments In secunbies, which are classified as held-for-trading, Thay are inrally recognised at cost mcluding
transaction costs, and subsequently measured at far value Gawns and losses ansing from changes in fair value are recognsed in the Income statement.
Cash and cosh equvalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash balances and call deposits Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
group’s cash management are included as a cornponent of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash fiow statement.

Interest-beaning borrowings

Interest-bearing bank overdrafts loans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds receved net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges

including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are recogrised in the income statement on an accrual basis using the
effective Interest method
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3 Significant accounting policies continued

g Finanaal instruments continued

Trode payobles
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated ntially at far value

Equity mstruments
Equrty instruments 1ssued by the group are recorded at the value of proceeds recenved, net of direct issue costs

h Inventones

Inveritones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost represents expenditure incurred in the ordinary course of business in brnging
inventones to thewr present conditon and location and indudes appropnate overheads Costis calculated using erither the weghted average or the
first-n-first-cut method MNet realisable value 15 based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal
Provision 15 made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropriate

1impairment

The carrying value of the groups assets apart from inventones and deferred tax assets s reviewed on an ongoing basis for any ndication of
impairment and 1If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amount 1s estmated An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
whenever the carrying value of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds ds recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the greater of its net seling pnce and its value in use, where value In use 1 assessed as the estimated pre-tax
future cash flows dernving from the asset discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects current market assessmenis
of the ume value of money and the risks specific to the asset For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash flows the recoverable
amount Is determined with respect to the cash-generating unit to which the asset attaches

The recoverable amount of gocdwill s tested annually through assessing the carrying values of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
attaches Animpairment loss recognised in respect of a cash-generating unit 15 allocated first so as 10 reduce the carrymg value of any goodwill
allocated 1o the cash-generating unit and then to reduce the camying value of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis

Anmpairment loss in respect of goodwill s not reversed In respect of any other asset, an impairment loss 15 reversed if there has been a change In
the estimates used to determine its recoverable amount The amount of the reversal is Imited such that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
that which would have been determined (after depreciation and amortisation) if no imparment loss had been recognised

| Repurchase of share capital

When share capital recognised as equity 1s repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, Including directly attributable costs net of any tax
effects 15 recognised as a deduction from equity Where repurchased shares are held by an employee benefit trust they are classified as treasury
shares and presented as a deduction from equity

k Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contnbution schemes are charged as an expense as they fafl due Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are dealt with as payments to defined contrbution schemes where the groups obligations under the schemes are equrvalent to those ansing in a
defined contnbution reurement benefits scheme

For defined benefit schemes the cost of providing benefits 1s determined using the projected unit credit method with actuanal valuations being
carmed out at each balance sheet date The discount rate used 15 the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit rated corporate bonds that have
maturty dates approximating to the terms of the groups obligations The expected finance ncome on assets and the finance cost on labilities are
recognised in the income statement as components of finance income and finance cost respectively Actuaral gans and losses are recognised o full
in the penod in which they occur and presented outside the income statement in the statement of recognised ncome and expense

Past service cost 1s recogrised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested Otherwise it s amortised on a straght-lne basis over
the average period untyf the benefits vest

The reyirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obhgation as adjusted for
unrecogrised past service cost, reduced by the far value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation is imited to unrecognised past
service cost plus the present vatue of avatlable refunds and reductions in future contnbutions to the scheme

Long-temn service benefits

The groups net obligation w respect of long-term service benefits other than retirement benefits represents the present value of the future benefit
that employees have earned at the balance sheet date, less the fair value of scheme assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly

Share-based payments

The group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certan employees The farr value of share-based payments 1s determined at the date of
grant and expensed, with a corresponding Increase in equity on a straight-ine basis over the vesting peniod based on the group s estmate of the
shares that will eventually vest. The amount expensed 1s adjusted over the vesting penicd for changes in the estimate of the number of shares that
will eventually vest, save for changes resulung from any market-related performance condruons

The fair value of share-based payments granted in the form of options 1s measured by the use of the Black-Scholes valuation technique adjusted for
future dwvidend receipts and for any market-refated performance condiiens
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3 Significant accounting policies continued

I Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when a present legal or constructive obligation exasts for a future liability in respect of a past event and where the amount
of the obhgatron can be estmated reliably ftems within provisions include loss-making contracts external dams aganst the group s captwve INsurance
businesses <osts of meeting lease requirements on unoccupied properties costs of replacing assets where there 1s a present contractual obligation
and restructuring provisions for the costs of a business reorganisation where the plans are sufficently detalled and where the appropnate
communication to those affected has been undertaken at the balance sheet date

Where the tme value of money s matenal provisions are stated at the present value of the expected expenditure using an appropriate discount rate

m Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue represents amounts recenvable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business and 1s measured at the far value of the
consideration receved or recevable net of discounts VAT and other sales related taxes Revenue for manned securty and cash sclutions products
and for recurning services In secunity systerns products 1s recognised to reflect the period in which the senvice 1s provided Revenue on security

systems installations 1s recognised erther on completion in respect of product sales, or in accordance with the stage of completion method in respect
of construction contracts

Construction contracts

Where signficant secunity system installanons with a contract duration in excess of one month are accounted for as construction contracts

Where the outcome of 2 construction contract can be estimated reliably revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract actwvity at the balance sheet date This 1s normally measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work to date bear to
the estmated total contract costs except where this would not be representatve of the stage of completion Variations in contract work, dams
and incentive payments are included to the extent that 1t 1s kely that they will be agreed with the customer

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably contract revenue is recognised to the exdent of contract costs incurred
that are deermed lkely to be recoverable Contract costs are recognised as expenses as they are ncurred Where t 1s probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue the expected loss 15 recognised immediately as an expense

Canstruction contracts are recognised on the balance sheet at cost plus profit recognised to date less provision for foreseeable osses and less
progress billings Balances are not offset,

Government grants

Government grants in respect of items expensed in the income statement are recognised as deductions from the associated expenditure
Government grants in respect of property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred income and released to the income statement over the lves
of the related assets

Interest

Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate apphcable This 1s the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected Ife of the financal asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

Diadends

Dinaidend income from investments 1s recognised when the shareholders nghts to recerve payment have been estabhished

n Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recogrised in the income statement, except those that are directly attrbutable to the acquisiion construction or production
of qualfying assets, which are caprialised

o Profit from operations

Profit from operations is stated after the share of results of associates but before finance income and finance costs Exceptional riems of particular
significance including restructuring costs are included within prafit from operations but are disclosed separately

p Income taxes

Tax 1s recognrsed in the Income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised In equrty, in which case # 1s recognised In equnty
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current tax 15 based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported n the ncome statement because it excludes
items of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible 1 other years and it further excdudes iterns that are never taxable or deductible
The groups hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the consohdated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and s accounted for using the balance sheet kability
method Deferred tax habilities are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are recognised o the extent that

it 15 probable that taxable profits wall be avalable against which deductible temporary differences can be wtiised Such assets and labilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference anses from the inial recognition of goodwill n 3 business combination or from the inwial recogrition {other
than in a busness combination} of other assets and habdities in a transactron that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit
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3 Significant accounting policies continued

p Income taxes continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments 1n subsidianes and interests in joint ventures, except

where the group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary dfference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The camying amount of each deferred tax asset 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no fonger probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s measured based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantvely enacted by the end of the reporung penod

q Leasing

Leases are dassified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership 1o the lessee
All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the inception of the |ease at therr far value or if fower at the present value of the minimum
lease payments The corresponding lability to the lessar s ncluded in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligaton Amounts due from lessess
under finance leases are recorded as recevables at the amount of the groups net iInvestment in the leases Lease payments made or receved are
apportioned between finance charges ar ncome and the reduction of the lease lability or asset so as to produce a constant rate of nterest on the
autstanding balance of the hability or asset

Rentals payable or recevable under operating leases are charged or credited to Income on a straght-line basis over the lease term, as are Incentives 1o
enter Into operating leases

r Segment reporting

An operating segment 1s a component of the group that engages in business actvities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, Including
revenues and expenses that refate to transactions with any of the groups other components All operating segments operating results are reviewed
regularty by the groups CEQ 1o make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete

financial information 1s available
5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets {and disposal groups) dlassified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Non-current assets and disposal groups are dlassified as held for sale f their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use This condition 1s regarded as met only when the sale rs highly probable and the asset {or disposal group) s available for

immediate sale 10 its present conditicn The group must be committed to the sale which should be expected 1o qualify for recogniion as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classfication

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the groups business that represents a separate major lne of business or geographical area of operations
orisa subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale that has been disposed of has been abandoned or meets the critena to be classified as
held for sale

t Dividends

Dndends are recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the period i which they are paid Dmadends proposed or declared but not pad are not
recognised but are disclosed i the notes to the consolidated financial statements
u Adoption of new and revised accounting standards and interpretations

Standards and interpretation ssued by the IASB are only applicable if endorsed by the EU The Following rewisions to the IFRS wilt be applicable in
future penods subject to endorsement where apphcable

* Rewised IFRS 3 Business Combinauons 15 applicable for 2010 This standards wll affect the future accouniting for acquisiions There will be no
retrospective ympact.

* Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments Amendments to IFRS 7 finanad! Instruments. Disdosures are applicable for 2010 The Amendments
require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and hquidity rsk.

= 1AS 27 Amendment Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary Jomtly-Controlied Entity or Associate 15 applicable for 2010 The standard will affect the future
accounting for transactions with non-controfing interests There will be no retrospective Impact.

* Amendment to IAS 39 Finanadl nstruments. Recognitron and Measurement. Ehgible Hedged fterns and Amendment to IAS 39 Redossification of
Financial Assets Effectwve Date and Transition applicable for 2010

* IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1s applicable for 2010 The standard addresses how service concession operators should apply existing
IFRSs to thewr arrangements

The group does not consider that any other standards amendments or interpretations issued by the IASB but not yet applicable will have a significant
impact on the finangial statements

&9
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4 Accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparabon of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements estmates and assumptions that affect the
applcation of the group's accounting policies which are described in note 3 with respect to the carrying amounts of assets and habilives at the date of
the financial staternents the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financal statements and the reported amounts of Income
and expenses during the reporung period These judgements estimates and associated assumptions are based on histonical expenence and various
other factors that are believed to be reasenable under the crcumstances inchuding current and expected economic conditions, and In some cases.
actuariat techmques Although these judgements estimates and associated assurnptions are based on management’s best knowledge of current events
and arcumstances the actual results may differ

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed an 2n ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the peried in which the
estmate 1s revised and in any future periods affected

The judgements esumates and assumptions which are of most significance 10 the group are detalled below

Valuation of acquired businesses

The inrial accounting for an acquisiuon nvalves identifying and determining the farr values to be assigned to identifiable assets, habilities and contingent
habilities as well as the acousition cost In some instances, this intial accounting can only be determined provisionally by the end of the pencd in
which the acquisition 1s effected because the fair values andfor the costs are not known wath full certainty [n such an event, the inrtal accounting

can be completed using provisional values with any adjustments to those provisional values being completed within 12 months of the acquisition date
Addtionally n determining the farr value of acquisition-related intangible assets in the absence of market prices for smilar assets, valuation techniques
are appled These techmques use a vaniety of estimates including projected future results and expected future cash flows, discounted using the
weighted average cost of caprtal refevant to the acquisiion Furthermore management make an assessment of the useful economuc life of acquired
intangible assets upon recogrition Full detads of the far values of assets and labilmes of acquired businesses are presented in note 7

Assessment of the recoverable amounts in respect of assets tested for impairment

The group tests tangible and intangble assets, ncduding goochwil, for imparment on an annual basis or more frequently if there are indications that
amounts may be impared The impairment analysis for such assets is based prinaipally upon discountad estmated future cash flows from the use and
eventual disposal of the assets Such an analysis ncludes an estimation of the future anticpated results and cash flows annual growth rates and the
appropriate discount rates The full methedology and results of the group s impairment testing 1s presented in note 19

Valuation of retirement benefit obligations

The valuation of defined revrement benefit schemes is armived at using the adwige of qualfied mdependent actuanes who use the projected unit
credit method for determining the groups obligatons This methodology requires the use of a variety of assumptions and estmates, ncluding the
approprizie discount rate, the expected return on scheme assets, mortality assumptions future service and earmings increases of employees and
nflaton Full details of the groups reurement benefit obligabions induding an analysis of the sensiivity of the calculations 1o the key assumptions are
presented in note 34

5 Revenue
An analysis of the groups revenue 15 as follows
1009 2008
Notes im £m
Continuing operations
Sale of goods 158 0 1902
Rendenng of services 67268 56189
Revenue from construction contracts 123.8 1194
Revenue from continuing operations as presented in the ¢onsolidated income statement 6 7,008 6 59285
Discontinued operations
Rendenng of services 343 2233
Revenue from construction contracts 6.4 80
Revenue from discontinued operations 67 407 2313
Other operating incorme
Interest ncome 12.7 184
Net gain in far value of loan note dervative financial nstruments and hedged rtems (] -
Expected return on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 680 865

Total other operaung incorne 817 1049
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6 Business and geographical segments

The group operates in two core product areas secure solutions and cash solutions The group operates on a worldwide basis and derves a
substantial proporuon of its revenue and PBIT from each of the following geographucal regions. Europe (comprising the United Kingdom and Ireland
and Continental Europe), North Amenca and New Markets {comprising the Middle East and Guif States Latin America and the Canbbean, Afnca
and Asia Paafic)

Secure solurtions provides integrated secunty solutions for commercial customers such as sk consulting, manned secunty and security systems and the
pratection of criucal nabonal infrastructure for governments along with care and justice, secure facdities and border protection Cash solutions
provides the outsourang of cash cyde management for central banks financial nstitutions and retalers

The segment disclosures are based on the compaenents that the board monitors in making deaisions about operating matters Such components are
identfied on the basis of internal reports that the board reviews regularly in allocating resources 1 segments and in assessing their performance

This results in a segmental analysis which s smilar to that presented previously under [AS 14 (Segmental Reportng)
Segment information (s presented below

Revenue by business segment

Continuing Discontinued Conunung Drcontinued |
operations operations Tatal operaucns operatiens Total
2009 2009 2009 2008 008 2008 i
£m Em im £m fm £m |
Secure solutions
UK and Ireland 1,1393 - 1,139.3 9299 - 9299
Continental Europe 1,497.7 337 1,531 4 13786 2152 15938
Eurcpe 2,6370 137 2,6707 23085 2152 25237
North Amenca 1,495 3 - 1,495 13 12223 - 12223
Middle East and Gulf States 4248 - 424 5 3156 - 3156
Latin Amernca and the Carbbean 2831.0 - 281.0 2290 19 2309
Africa 3056 - 3056 2486 - 2486
Asia Pacific 5220 - 5220 4120 ol 4121
New Markets 1,535 1 - 1,535 | 12052 20 12072
Total Secure Solutions 5,667 4 337 5,701 1 47360 2472 49532 |
Cash solutions |
Europe 929 2 ol 9293 8591 02 8591 |
North Amenca 98.8 - 988 870 - 870
New Markets 332 69 3201 2464 139 2603
Total cash solutions 1,341 2 70 1,348 2 11925 141 1,206 6
Total revenue 7,008 6 407 70493 59285 2313 61598
Revenue by geographical market
Total Total
2009 2003
im im
UK and Ireland* 1,629.3 1,3977 ‘
Continental Europe 1,970 7 19853 :
Europe 3,600 0 33830
North America 1,594 1 13093
Middle East and Gulf States 4757 3539
Laun Amenca and the Canbbean 326.9 2726
Alrica 4267 3436
Asia Paaific 6259 4974
New Markets 1,855 2 14675
Total reveriue 7,049 3 61598 \

*UK 34d Ireland revenue includes £] 508m relatirg to the U< (2008 £ 278m)
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6 Business and geographical segments continued

Revenue from internal and external customers by business segment

Total gross Total gross
segment Inter-segment External segment Inter segrment External
revenus revenue revenye revenue révenue revenue
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008
im £im tm £m im tm
Secure solutions 5,709.7 (8 &) 5,701 1 49603 7n 49532
Cash solutions 1,348.6 (0 4) 1,348 2 12071 {05} 1,206 6
Total revenue 7,058 3 (9 0) 17,0493 61674 (76) 61598
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevaling market prces
PBITA by business segment
Continuing Discontinued Conunuing Dusconunued
operations operations Total ucns operations Total
200% 2009 2007 2008 2008 2008
£m &m fm £m £m £m
Secure solutions
UK and Ireland 97.3 - 973 768 (05} 763
Continental Europe 793 (107) 68 6 743 B0 663
Europe 176 & (107) 165 9 1511 B5) 1426
North Amenica 84.8 (an 8317 706 (1 6 690
Middle East and Gulf States k1: 31 - 385 264 - 264
Latin America and the Canbbean 17.6 - 176 138 02 140
Adrica ) 290 - 290 224 - 224
Asia Pacific 41 1 - 411 6 02) 324
New Markets 126 2 - 126 2 952 - 952
Tatal secure solutions 3876 (11 8) 3758 3le9 {101y 3068
Cash solutons
Europe 102 0 on 1019 940 ©1n 939
North Amenca 41 - 4| 08 - 08
New Markets 46.3 {15) 448 388 ©3) 385
Total cash solutons 152.4 {1.6) 150 8 1336 04 1332
Total PBITA before head office costs 540.0 (139 526 6 4505 (105) 4400
Head office costs (32 7) - (397 (355) - (355)
Total PBITA 5003 (134) 486 9 4150 (I05) 4045
PBITA by geographical market
Eurcpe 2718 6 {10 8) 2678 2451 B8e6) 2365
Narth Amenca 889 an 878 714 (16} 698
New Markets 1725 (5 1710 1340 ©3) 1337
Total PBITA before head office costs 540.0 {13 4) 526 6 4505 {105) 4400
Head office costs (39.7) - (397) (355) - (355)
Total PBITA 5003 (13 4) 486 9 4150 (105} 4045
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6 Business and geographical segments continued
Result by business segment
Continuing Duscontinued Contnuing Chscontnued
operations operations Total operayons operauons Total
1009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008
£m £m £m £m im £m
Total PRITA 5003 {12 49) 4869 4156 (105} 4045
Amortisation of acquistion-related
intangible assets B832) - 832 ©78) - 67 8)
Total PBIT 4171 {124 4037 3472 (105} 3367
Secure solutions 330.1 (11.8) 3183 2713 (101) 2612
Cash solutions 126 7 (1 8) 125 1 14 04 113
Head office costs (397 - 397) (35%) - (355}
Total PBIT 4171 (13.4) 403.7 3472 (105) 3367
Continuing PBIT as stated abave s equal to PBIT as disclesed in the income statement Discontinued PBIT as stated above 1s analysed in note 7
Segment assets and habilities
The following information 1s analysed by business segment and by the geographical area in which the assets are located
2009 2008
Total assets £m £m
By business segment
Secure solutions 31,8297 39924
Cash solutions 6539 6393
Head office 104.4 1805
Inter-segment trading balances (98 5) (86 6}
Total segment aperating assets 4,489.7 47256
By geographical segment
UK and Ireland* 1,5008 15435
Continental Europe 1,015 4 11635
Europe 2,5162 27070
North Amerca 9975 9563
Middie East and Gulf States 166 0 1714
Latin Amenca and the Caribbean 1617 1665
Africa 282 1 2604
Asia Pacific 3601 3198
MNew Markets 9599 9291
Head office 104 6 2196
Inter-segment trading balances (98 5) {864)
Total segment operating assets 4,489 7 47255
Non-operating assets 674 2 8930
Total assets 51639 56186

*UK and lreland operating assets include £1 431m of assets retat ng to the UK (2008 £1 527m)
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6 Business and geographical segments continued

Segment assets and habilities contnued

2009 2008
Total liabillties €m £m
By business segment
Secure solutions (1,017 6) {1051 3)
Cash salutions (219 5) (3569)
Head office 979) (1092)
Inter-segment trading bafances 98.5 866
Total segment operatng habiliies (1,236 5) (1430 8)
Non-operating liabidities (2,488.2) 27169
Totat fabilites (3,724 7) “1477)

Non-operating assets and labifities compnse financial assets and hiabilities taxation assets and labiies and retrement benefit obligations

Included within operating and non-operatng assets are £2 ém (2008 £64 S5m) and £26 5m (2008 £6 5m} respectwvely relating to assets dassified as
held for sale Included within operating and non-operating liabliues are £109m (2008 £584m) and £200m (2008 £15 7m) respecuvely relating to
liabilies associaied with assets classified as held for sate Disposal groups are analysed in note 27

Other information by geographical location

Impairment Impairment
losses Depreciation losses Depreciauon
recogmsed and Capital recagnised and Capital
n income amortisation additions nincome amertsation additions
2009 2009 2009 2008 200
By business segment £m £m £m £m £m £m
Secure soluticns - 165 2 2478 294 1130 7532
Cash solutions - 536 860 - 709 1096
Head cffice - 06 165 - - 25
Total - 2194 35013 294 1839 8653
Capital Capital
additions addisens
200% 2008
By geographlcal segment im £m
UK and Irefand 6612 5100
Continental Europe 661 965
Europe 1323 6065
North Amenca 1o 753
Middie East and Gulf States 82 691
Latin Amenca and the Carbbean 107 230
Afrca 437 453
Asa Pacdic 418 436
New Markets 105 4 1810
Head office 25 25

Total 350.3 8653
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7 Discontinued operations

Operations qualfyng as discontinued n the current penod primanty compnise the secuntty services business in France which principally comprises
Group 4 Secuncor SAS disposed of on 28 February 2009 Group 4 Falck Reinsurance S A, the captive insurance business in Luxembourg, disposed of
on 23 December 2009 and the systems installation business in Slovakia Further operations aualfying as discontinued i the prior year also compnsed

the secunity services business in Germany which pnnaipally comprised G45 Sicherhertsdienste GmbH and G4S Sicherhertssysterne GmbH, disposed
of on 15 May 2008

The results of the discontinued operations which have been included In the consolidated income statement are presented below

2009 2008
im £m
Revenue 407 2313
Expenses 54 1) (241 8)
Operating loss before interest and taxation (PBIT) (13 4) (105)
Net finance costs (03) (13
Attnbutable tax credit 193 0l
Total operating profit/{loss) for the year 56 (17
(Loss)fprofit on disposal of discontinued operations {(note |8) (125) 120
Goodwill impairment - (294)
Adpsiment in respect of disposals in the prior year - 16
Net loss attributable to discontinued operations (3] (275)

The attnbutable tax credit relates to the recogniion in 2009 of previously unrecognised tax attributes in G45 Government Services In¢, a US
group company

The 2008 goodwil mparrment charge relates to the security services businesses in France which includes principally Group 4 Securicor SAS to write
Jown net assets to ther recoverable amount based on the disposal in February 2009

The 2008 adjustrent in respect of disposals in the pricr year compnses £0 Im relating to the finalsation of the disposal of Cognisa Transportation, Inc
and £] 5m to wnte-off of assets and labilities releting to the disposal of G45 Cash Services (France) SAS

The effect of discontinued operations on segment results is disclosed in note 6

Cash flows from discontinued operations nduded in the consolidated cash flow statement are as follows

2009 2008
&m £m
Net cash flows from operating actmties (41 (VAN
Net cash flows from investing actvities @on 21
Net cash flows from finanang actaaties 13 60
(219) (170
8 Profit frorn operations before interest and taxation {(PBIT)
The income statement can be analysed as follows
2009 2008
Continuing operations £m m
Revenue 7,008 6 59285
Cost of sales (5,472.8) (46157}
Gross profit 1,535 8 13128
Administration expenses (L1?9) (3690)
Share of profit from assooates 12 34
PBIT 4171 3472

Included within adrministration expenses is £83 2m (2008 £678m) of amortsation of acquisitton-related intangible asseis
Revenue and expenses relaung to discontinued operations are disclosed in note 7
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9 Profit from operations

Prefit from continuing and discontinued operations has been armved at after charging/(credring)

2009 2008
tm £m
Cost of sales
Cost of nventones recognised as an expense 919 831
Wiite-down of Inventones to net realisable value 02 02
Adminsstration expenses
Amortisation of acquisition-related intangble assets 8312 678
Amortsation of other intangble assets 15.1 Il
Goodwll impairment - 294
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1211 1050
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equiprnent and intangible assets other than acquisition-related (0.3) 21
Imparment of trade recenvables 77 45
Liigation settlements 09 05
Research and development expenditure 58 35
Operzating lease rentals payable 1312 1243
Operzung sub-lease rentals recenable (103) €2
Cost of equity-settled fransactions 71 50
Government grants received as a contribution towards wage costs ()} (135
Net foreign translation adjustments 16 24
10 Auditors' remuneration
2009 2008
£m im
Fees payable to the company s auditor for the audit of the company s annual report and accounts 11 10
Fees payable to the compary's auditor and 1ts associates for other services
The audit of the company s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 42 32
Other services pursuant to legislation - 0l
Taxation services 04 03
Corporate finance services 06 04
Fees payable to other auditors for the audit of the company s subsidianies pursuant 1o legislation 06 06

The Corporate governance statement on pages 47 ta 49 outlines the company s established policy for ensunng that audt ndependence s not

compromised through the provision by the company s auditor of other services
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Il Staff costs and employees

The average monthly number of employees, n conunuing and discontinued operations including executive direciors was

2009 2008
Number Number
By business segment
Secure solruons 542,044 516 647
Cash solutions 50,804 44930
Not allocated including shared administration and head office 1é 299
Total average number of emplayees 592,964 561 876
By geographical segment
Europe 134,224 1753224
MNorth Amenca 48,995 51918
New Markets 409,629 380,619
Not allocated including shared administration and head office 1é 15
Total average number of employees 592,964 561876
Their aggregate remuneration, in continuing and discontinued operations comprised
2009 2008
im £m
Wages and salanes 4,059 8 35369
Soaal secursty costs 505 1 4672
Employee benefits 1579 133
Total staff costs 47228 41174
Information on directors remuneration share options long-term incentive plans and pension contributions and entrtlerments s set out In the
Directors' remuneration report on pages 50 to 55
12 Finance income
2009 2008
im £m
Interest income on cash, cash equvalents and nvestments 19 178
Other interest ncome 0.8 06
Expected return on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 480 865
Loss ansing from change In farr value of dervatve financal Instrumenis hedging loan notes (53 2) -
Gain ansing from fair value adjustment to the hedged loan note items 542 -
Total finance ncome 817 1049
13 Finance costs
2009 2002
im im
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 276 633
Interest on loan notes 66 4 36
Interest on obligatons under finance leases 70 39
Other interest charges 80 66
Gam arsing from change in far value of denvatrve financial nstruments hedging 1oan notes - 780)
Loss ansing from farr value adpustment to the hedged loan note items - 792
Total group borrowing costs 109 0 1066
Finance costs on defined retirement benefit obligavons 870 828
Total finance costs 196 0 1894

Included within interest on bank overdrafis and loans 1s a debit of £12 3m (2008 £1 5m} relaung io cash flow hedges that were transferred from

equity dunng the year

17
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14 Taxation

Continuing Discontinued Conunuing Owsconunued
operations operations Total operatiens operatons Totat
2009 2009 1009 2008 2008 008
im im Lm im £m £m
Current taxation expense/(credit)
UK corporation tax 190 - 190 105 - 105
Overseas tax 7312 on 711 730 03 727
Adjustments in respect of prior years
UK corporation tax (29) - an (38 - (38)
Overseas tax 8é 03 89 40) - 40)
Total current taxation expense/{credit) 919 (0 8) 97.1 757 03 754
Deferred taxation (credit)fexpense
{see note 36)
Current year (13 8) (18 5) (32 3) 0210 02 {19)
Adjustments In respect of pnor years (74) - (74 &7 - 67
Total deferred taxation (credi)iexpense (21 2) {18 5) 397N 549 02 52
Total income tax expensef{credr) for
the year 767 (93 574 703 ©1n 702

UK comporation tax s calculated at 28 0% {2008 28 5%) of the esumated assessable profits for the penod Taxaton s caleulated at the corporation

tax rates prevaiing in the relevant jurisdictions

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the ncome statement as follows

2009 2008
£m £m
Profit before taxation
Continuing operations jozs 2627
Discontinued operatrons (26 2) (274)
Total profit before taxation 276 6 2353
Tax at UK corporauon tax rate of 280% {2008 28 5%) 7758 871
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 97 101
Tax losses not recognised in the current year (19 3) 31
Different tax rates of subsidianes operating in non-UK wunsdictions @on 89
Adjustments for previous years {4 (2
Total ncome tax charge 57.4 701
Effective tax rate 20 8% 299%
In addiion to the income tax expense charged to the income slatement. a tax credit of £21 %m (2008 £50 3m) has been recognised in equity
I5 Dividends
Pence OKK. 2009 2008
per share pershare £m £m
Amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders
of the parent in the year
Final dwidend for the year ended 31 December 2007 285 Q2786 - 364
Interm dvidend for the six months ended 30 June 2008 275 02572 - 386
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2008 368 (3052 51.7 -
Interim dvadend for the six manths ended 30 June 2009 302 02599 425 -
9412 750
Proposed final dvdend for the year ended 31 December 2003 416 03408 58 4

The proposed final dmdend s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting If so approved 1t will be paid on 4 June 2010 10

sharehclders who are on the UK register on 7 May 2010 The exchange rate used to translate it into Danssh krone s that at 15 March 2010
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{6 Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to equity shareholder of the parent
2009 2008
£m £m

From continuing and discontinued operations
Earnings
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 2025 1512
Effect of diutive potential ordinary shares {net of tax) - 02
Profit for the purposes of diluted earmings per share 2025 1514
Number of shares (m)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,403 6 1,3577
Effect of diutve potential ordinary shares o1 13
Weghted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diuted earmings/{loss) per share 1,403 7 13590
Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations {pence)
Basic 14 4p Ip
Diluted 14.4p i lp
From continuing operations
Earnings
Profit for the year atinbutable to equity holders of the parent 202.8 1512
Adjustment 1o exclude loss/(profit) for the year from discontinued operations (net of tax) (note 7) 69 275
Profit from continuing operations 2094 1787
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares {net of tax) - 02
Profit from continuing operations for the purpose of diluted earmings per share 209 4 1789
Earmings per share from continuing operations (pence)
Basic 149p 132p
Driuted 149p 132p
From discontinued operations
Loss per share from discontinued operations (pence)
Bastc (0S)p (21p
Diluted {0 S)p (2 p
From adjusted earmings
Earnings
Profit from continuing operations 209 4 1787
Adustment to exclude net retirement benefit finance income/{cost} (et of 1ax) 137 27
Adustment to exclude amortisation of acquisiion-related intangible assets (net of tax) 59.9 487
Adusted profit for the year atinbutable to equity holders of the parent 283.0 2247
Waeighted average number of ordinary shares (m) 1,403.6 13577
Adjusted earmings per share (pence) 202p 16 6p

[n the opinion of the directors the earnings per share figure of most use to shareholders is that which 1s adjusted This figure betier allows the

assessment of operational performance the analysis of trends over time, the companson of different businesses and the project:on of future earnings

The denominators used 1n all earmings/{loss) per share calculations are those disclosed in respect of conuinuing and discontinued operauons
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17 Acquisitions

Current year acquisittons

The group undertook a number of acquisitions in the current penod Principal acquisitions in subsidiary undertakings include the purchase of the
entire share capital of SecPoint Secunty Limited a secunity solutions business in Ghana Sunshine Youth Services a juvenile ustice business in the
US, CL Systems Limited a cash solutions business in Greater China SMI a cash solutions business in the UK Adesta LLC aleading US systems
integrator in the design and operation of security systems and command and control centres for Gavernment and Regulated serwices, All Star
International one of the premier faclities management and base operations support companies prowding serwces to the US Government, NSSC

a US nsk consutung business in the nuclear power industry and the public sector and Hil & Assocates Asias leading provider of specialist risk

mitigation consulting services
In additien, the group completed the minonty buy-outs of certan businesses in New Markets

A summary of the provisional fair value of net assets acquired by geographical location 1s presented below

North New Total

Europe Amenca Markets group

£m £m £m £mi

Provisienal fair value of net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 20 520 74 614
Acquisition of minonty interests - (08) 78 70
Total provisional fair value of net assets acqured 20 512 152 68 4
Goodwll 17 461 370 84.8
Total purchase consideration 37 973 522 153.2

The following table sets out the book values of the identifiable assets and habilrties acquired and thewr provisional fair value to the group in respect of all

acquisihions made in the year

Fawr value
Bock value adjustments Fair value
m £m &m
intangible assets 14 505 519
Property plant and equipment 29 - 29
Investment in associates - - -
Inventones 45 on 44
Trade and other recevables 507 - 507
Deferred tax assets 03 - 03
Cash and cash equivalents 48 - 48
Trade and other payables {33 5) - (335)
Current tax habilites 08) - (0 &)
Prowisions {09) - 0"
Borrowings ©8) ~ {0 8)
Deferred tax habilties - (178) (17 8)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 288 326 614
Acqusion of minonty interests 70 - 70
Goodwill B4 8
Total purchase consideration 153 2
Satsfied by
Cash 159.3
Transaction costs' 67)
Contingent consideration 0.6
Total purchase consideration 153 2

1 Transacuen costs are rex o £10 5m recenvable relating to a refund of tax expenses ncumed when Group 4 Securicor ple acquired Secuncor plc n 2004
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17 Acquisitions continued

Current year acquisitions continued

Adjustments made to idenufiable assets and labties on acquisiion are 10 reflect thew far value These incliude the recogniion of customer-related
intangible assets amounting to £50 5m The fair values of net assets acquired are prowisional and represent estimates following a preliminary valuation
exeruse These estimates may be adjusied to reflect any development in the issues to which they relate

The goodwill ansing on acquisitions can be ascribed to the existence of a skilled actve workforce and the opportunities to obtan new contracts and
develop the business Nerther of these meet the cnitena for recognition as intangible assets separable from goodwil Goodwill ansing on acquistuon
includes £2] 7m ansing on the acquistion of minority interests

From therr respective dates of acquisition the acquired businesses contribution to the results of the group for the penod was as follows

Revenus PBITA Profit
Contribution from acquired businesses im im £m
SecPoint Security 37 I3 07
CL Systerns 3 05 -
Secura Monde 47 09 02
Sunstune Youth Services 97 09 09
Al Star 112 I 11
Others 3% 04 04
Total contribution from acquired businesses 345 51 33

If all the acquisitions had occurred on | January 2009 the results of the group for the penod would have been as follows

Revenue PBITA Profit
Graup's resutts If all acquisitions bad occurred on | January 2009 £m im &m
Group results for the penod 70086 5003 2192
Impact of backdating acquistions to | January 2009
SecPoint Securty 37 13 07
CL Systems 13 05 -
Secura Monde 50 09 02
Sunshine Youth Services 166 16 16
All Star 660 44 21
Adesta LLC &67 51 23
NSSC 156 25 I3
Hill & Associates 87 [(R)) (10
Other 81 08 05
Group result for the penod if all acquisitions had occurred on | January 2009 72003 5163 2263

Prior year acquisitions

The most significant acquisiion in subsidiary undertakings in the prior year was the purchase of De Facto 1119 Lmited the holding company of the
Globat Salutions group ("GSL ) an international leader n the provision of support services for governments companies and public authonies based
in the UK which was completed on 12 May 2008 Other prinaipal acquisitions in subsidiary undertakings in the pror year include the purchases

of ArmorGroup Intermational pke an international prowider of defensive, protective security services headquartered in the UK Jouchcom Inc

a secunty consultancy and design business in the US RONCG Consulting Corporation an international provider of humarutanan mine clearance and
ardrance services speciahsed security and traning headquartered in the US MM Investigations Inc, a prowider of insurance fraud mitigation and
claims services n the US the Rock Steady group of companies providing event secunity in the UK Travel Logistics Limited a provider of passport
and wisa services in the UK and Progard a market-leader n professional secunty services in the Republic of Serbia

In addition the group completed the acquisiion of a further 35% of Aktsiaselts G45 Balucs increasing 1o 100% its holding in this compary, the holding
company of the G45 subsidiznes n Estonia Latviz and Lithuania which provide both secunity services and cash services This transaction was largely
accrued at 31 December 2007 through the recognrtion of a put optron The group also acquired the 49% of G45 Macau Lumitada a provider of both
security services and cash services that it dig not already own

at
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17 Acquisitions continued

At 31 Decernber 2008 the far value adjstments made against net assets acquired were provisional The mitial accounting in respect of acquisitions
made during 2008 has since been finalised The net assets acquired and goodwall ansing in respect of all acquisitions made in the year are as follows

Farr value
Bock value adjustments Fair value
£m £m £m

Intangible assets 58 2090 214.8
Property plant and equipment 457 (165) 29.2
Investment in associates 14 - 14
Inventones 59 ()] 4.2
Trade and other recevables 1407 (46) 136 1
Deferred tax assets 8% 64 15.3
Cash and cash equivalents 584 15 599
Trade and other payables (nze {222) (135 1)
Current tax habilities 27N (I'5) 42
Obligatrons under finance leases (135 - (13 5)
Pravisions 29 (562) {53.3)
Borrowings (2567) - (256.7)
Deferred tax liabilities {13) {604 (61.7)
Net (Jiabilities)/assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings (1174) 538 (63 6)
Acquisition of mincrity interests 53 G5 58
Goodwill 427.6
Total purchase consideration 369.8
Satisfied by
Cash 3390
Transaction ¢osts 19.2
Contingent consideration 1.6
Total purchase consideration 369.8

Adjustments made to identifiable assets and liabilties on acquisition are to reflect ther farr value These indude the recogniion of customer-related
intangible assets ameuntng to £191 4m On completion of the fair value exerase during 2009 adjustments made to the provisional calculation
amounted to £19 Im with an equivalent increase in the reported value of goodwill The comparative bafance sheet at 31 December 2008 has been
restated accordingly The adjustments to the provisional calculation are primanily to recognise an additional £109m of customer-related intangible
assets (with a related deferred tax asset of £3 Im) and an additional £254m of prowvisions relating to employee benefits and onerous contracts

The goodwill arsing on acquisiions can be ascribed to the existence of a skilled active workforce and the opportunities to obtain new contracts and
develop the business Nerther of these meet the cnteria for recognition as intangible assets separable from goodwill Goedwill arsing on acguisiion
ncludes £19 4m ansing on the acqustion of minonty interests

In the year of acquisition, n aggregate the acquired businesses contributed £518 ém 1o revenues £46 6m to PBITA and £18 Om to profit for the part
year they were under the groups ownership If all acquisrions had occurred on | Jznuary 2008, group revenue would have been £6,203 6m, PBITA
would have been £439 6m and profit for the year would have been £1740m
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Acquisition of GSL

The net assets acquired and goodwill in respect of the GSL acquisitton made in the prior year are as follows
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Fasr value
Boock vatue agdjustments Fair value
fm £m £m
Intzngible assets 9 1576 1595
Invesstment in associates 14 - 1.4
Property plant and equipment 188 {55) 1313
Inventones 06 - 06
Trade and cther recenvables riYi 05 752
Deferred tax assets 48 03 45
Cash and cash equivalents 547 - 547
Trade and other payables (840) (54 (89.4)
Current tax labiities (12 - (12
Cbligations under finance feases (126) - (12 6)
Provisions 32 {59 (2.7)
Borrowings (2388 - (238 8)
Deferred tax labilities (19 {44 8) (46 5)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings (1774) 954 (82 0)
Goadwill 2581
Total purchase consideration 176 1
Satisfied by
Cash 1677
Transaction costs 8.4
Total purchase consideration 176.1

Post balance sheet acquisitions

Ng acquistions have been effected between the balance sheet date and the date that the financial statemenits were authonsed for issue

a3
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I8 Disposal of subsidiaries

On 23 December 2009, the group disposed of Group 4 Falck Reinsurance S A the captive insurance business in Luxembourg

On 28 February 2009 the group disposed of the manned securtty business in France which indiudes principally Group 4 Secuncor SAS
Cn 31 July 2008 the group disposed of the secunty systems business in France, being G45 Telesurvedlance SAS and G45 Technologie SAS

On 15 May 2008 the group disposed of the secure solutions business in Germany which principally comprises G4S Sicherhertsdienste GmbH and

G4S Sicherheitssysteme GmbH
The net assets of operations disposed of were as follows
100% 2008
im im
Goodwill 131 08
Property, plant 2and equipment and intangible assets ather than acquisition-related 3¢ 43
Current assets 840 130
Lizbilities (79 3) (190)
Net assets of operations disposed 208 191
{Lossyprofit on disposal (12 5) 120
Total consideration B3 31
Satisfied by
Cash receved 145 30
Disposal costs (6.2) -
Cash 813 31

The impact of the disposals combined with other operations qualifying as discontinued, on the group s results and cash flows in the current and prior

year s disclosed in note 7
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Goodwilt Acquisition retated intangible assets Qther Intangible assets Total
Customer Development
Tradermnarks related Technalogy expenditure Software
im £m im £m €m im im
2009
Cost
At | January 2009 2,113 4 335 5663 194 124 1037 12,8487
Acquisition of businesses 84.8 - 512 07 - - 1367
Addrtions - - 02 - 49 237 28.8
Cusposals (222) - 02 - 04) (716) (30 4)
Translation adjustments 609) 04 {16 1) (15) {06) 1.8 (80 5)
At 31 December 2009 21151 3¢ 601.4 186 163 1180 29033
Amortisation and
accumulated
impairment losses
At | January 2009 (33.9) (16 4) (186.8) (12.9) (29 (522) (305 1)
Amorusation charge - 53) (752) zn an (12 4) (98 3)
Disposals 88 - 0.2 - 03 71 16 4
Translauon adustments (46 1) 0y 5. 15 - (28) (42 5)
At 31 December 2009 {71 2} 219 (256 7) (14 1) (53) (60 3) (429 S)
Carrying amount
At | January 2009 2,079.5 171 3719.5 65 95 515 2,543 6
At 31 December 2009 2,043 9 120 3447 45 110 5717 24738
2008
Cost
At | fanuary 2008 13570 162 3222 167 70 605 17736
Acquisition of businesses 4276 163 191 4 52 - 19 6424
Addtions - - 20 - 39 192 251
Disposals - - ©on - - (18 (3
Translation adjustments 3288 e 508 35 15 239 4095
At 31 December 2008 21134 335 5663 194 124 1037 28487
Amortisation and
accumulated
impairment losses
At | January 2008 (257) (1o (106 7) (72} ©8) (354) (186 8)
Amortisation charge - (40} {61 2) {26} 7 (94) (789)
Disposals - - - - - Il B
Translation adpustments 82 {14y (189) (30 04 85 40 5)
At 31 December 2008 (339 {164) (186 8) (129) 29} (522) (3051
Carrying amount
At | January 2008 13313 52 2155 35 62 251 15868
At 3| December 2008 20795 171 3795 85 %5 515 25436

Included within software 1s internally generated software with a gross carrying value of £9 Im (2008 £6 7m) and accumulated amortisation of £1 Om
{2008 £09m} gving a net book value of £8 Im (2008 £5 8m) Dunng the year additions amounted to £3 5m {2008 £3 9m) and the amortusation
charge assocated to these assets was £} 0m (2008 £0%m)

&5



86

G45 plc Arnual Report and Accounts 2009

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

19 Intangible assets continued

Customer-related intangibles cornprise the cantractual refationship with customers and the customer relationships which meet the cntera for
wentfication as ntangible assets n accordance with IFRS Customer contracts and relationships recognised upon the acquisiion of Secunicor plc on
13 July 2004 are considered significant to the group The carmying amount at 3| December 2009 was £964m (2008 £138 ém) and the amortisation
penod remaining n respect of these assets s four and a half years

Goodwill acguired in a business combxination is allocated 1o the cash-generating units (CGUs) which are expected to benefit from that business
combination The majority of goodwill was generated by the merger of the secunty services businesses of Group 4 Falck and Secuncor in 2004 which
was accounted for as an acquisition of Securicor by Group 4 Falek,

The group tests tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill, for mpairment on an annual basis or more frequently If there are indications that
amounts may be impaired The annual impairment test 1 performed prior to the year end when the budgeting process is finalised and reviewed
post-year end The groups impairment test compares the carrying value of each CGU 1o s recoverable amount CGUs are identified on a country
level basis including signficant business units as per the group s detalled management accounts Under 1AS 36 impairment of Assets an imparment
1s deemed to have occurred where the recoverable amount of a CGL s less than its carrying value

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s determined by its value in use which is derved from discounted cash flow calculations. These calculations include
forecast pre-tax cash flows for a penad of five years The five-year cash flow forecasts are based on the budget for the foliowing year (year one) and
the business plans for years two and three the results of which are reviewed by the board and projections for years four and five all of which reflect
past expenence as well as future expected market trends Budgeted and forecast cash flows are based on managements assessment of currert contract
portfolio contract wins contract retention and price increases Cash flows beyond the five-year forecast penod are projected nto perpeturty at the
lower of the planned growth rate in year three and the forecast undertying economic growth rate for the economies in which the CGU operates

Where the planned growth rate in year three exceeds the forecast underlying economuc growth rate the excess Is reduced progressively in the
projectons for years four and five Growth rates across the group s CGUs range from 0% to 15% and the into-perpeturty growth rates for the
significant CGUs are disclosed in the table below Future cash flows are discounted at a pre-tax weighted average cost of caprtal which for the group
15 84% (2008 114%) and the discount rates for the significant CGUs are disclosed in the table below Pre-tax cash flows are discounted using pre-tax
discount rates derved from calculating the net present value of the post-tax cash flows discounted at post-tax rates The group rate 15 adjusted
where appropnate to reflect the different financal aisks in each country in which the CGlUs operate Risk-adusted discount rates applicable to group
entities range from 5 3% in Singapore 1o 65 9% in Madagascar

In applying the groups model no mpairment has been Wentified and recognised in any of the groups CGUSs for the year ended 31 December 2009
or for the year ended 31 December 2008 Management believe that there 1s currently no reasonably possible change in the underlying factors used In
the impasment model which would lead to a materal impairment of goodwill

The following CGUs have significant carrying amounts of goodwill

Goodwill Goodwill

Discountrate Discount rate Growth rate* Growth rate* 2009 2008

2009 2008 2009 2008 £m £m

US secure solutions {manned security) 72% 101% 2 5% 50% 358.9 3889
GSL 8.4% 114% 2 5% 53% 258 1| 2581
UK cash solutions 8.4% 11 4% 25% 53% 240 4 2445
Netherlands secunty solutions 73% 10 5% 3.5% 39% 1257 1366
UK secure solutions (manned secunty) 8 4% It 4% 25% 53% 117.1 1228
UK secure solutions (Justice services) 8 4% 1 4% 25% 53% 953 953
Estonia secure solutions and cash solutions 13 1% 14 3% 40% 39% 674 730
Other (all allocated) 7810 7603
Total goodwil 1,043 9 20795

*Growth rate 15 the long term into perpetuity growth rate

The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow calculauions relate to the discount rates and undertying economic growth rates for each CGU
With all other varables being equal, a 1% increase n the group discount rate from 8 4% to 94% with equivalent increases to the discount rates in all
countries would result in a goodwill umparment to the group of £4m, with a £3m imparment required to Estonia A significant icrease of 3% in the
group discount rate from 84% to |1 4% and an equivalent increase in all countries would result in a group impairment of £60m iIncluding impairments
of £26m to UK Cash solutions and £1Im te Estoria

A decrease in the underlying growth rate in all countnes of 1% would result in a group imparment of £2m, with an imparment of £Im to Estonza
A decrease of 3% in growth rate would resutt in a group impairment of £11m including an imparrment to Estonia of £8m These approximations
indicate the sensitvity of the impairment test to changes in the underlying assumptions However it 1s highly unbkely that any vamations in the
assumpuons would impact on all CGLs at the same time
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Land and Equipment
buildings and vehicles Total
im £ £m
2009
Cost
At | January 2009 2297 861.4 1,090 1
Acquisition of businesses 0 28 1.9
Addtions 233 158 6 1819
Disposals (15 6) (79 1) (94 7)
Translaucn adjustrnents (107) @ 1) (51 8)
Aw 3\ Decerber 2009 2168 902 6 1,129 4
Depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2009 59 (503 4) (562.6)
Depreciaticn charge (29 (108 2) [{¥1N))
Disposals 101 655 756
Translaton adjustments 45 202 247
At 31 December 2007 (575) (5259) (583 4)
Carrying amount
At | January 2009 1705 358.0 528 §
At 3] December 2009 1693 3767 546 0
2008
Cost
At January 2008 1585 6305 7890
Acguaisition of businesses 73 219 292
Additions 364 1322 168 6
Disposals (23) 654 677
Translation adjustments 298 1422 1720
At 3| December 2008 97 8614 10911
Depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2008 (356 (3502 (3858)
Depreciation charge (108) (944) (1350)
Disposals 13 534 547
Translation adjustments (143) (123 {124 5)
At 31 December 2008 (592 (5034) (562 6)
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2008 1229 2803 4032
At 31 December 2008 t705 3580 5285
The carrying amount of equipment and vehicles includes the following in respect of assets held under finance feases.
009 2005
£m £m
Net book value 72.8 585
Accumulated depreciation 871 682
Depreaation charge for the year 186 166

The nghts over leased assets are effectively security for lease liabiities These nghts revert to the lessor in the event of default

8y
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20 Property, plant and equipment continued

The carrying amount of equipment and vehicles Includes the fallowing in respect of assets leased by the group to third parties under operating leases.

2009 2008

£m £m

Net book value 344 392

Accunulated depreaation 726 741

Depreciation charge for the year 102 94
The net book value of land and bulldings comprises

2009 2008

Em £m

Freeholds 661 571

Long feaseholds (S0 years and over) 211 98

Short leaseholds (under 50 years) 821 1036

At 31 December 2009 the group had entered into contractual commitmenits for the acquisibon of property, plant and equipment amounting to

£2 1m (2008 £3 3m)

21 Investment in joint ventures

At the year end the group owned 59% of the equity of Brndgend Custodial Serwvices Ltd and 50% of the equity n STC (Milton Keynes) Ltd In both
cases, the group jomtly shares operational and financial control aver the operatons and s therefore entitled to a proportionate share of the resutts of
each, which are consolidated on the basis of the equity shares held The group s correctional faclities in South Africa are under 2 similar arrangement

other than that the groups holding 15 20%

The results of each of the jontly controlled operations are prepared in accordance with group accounting policies Amounts proportionately
consolidated into the groupss financial statements are as follows

1009 2008
Results £m im
Income 46 3 308
Expenses (41.9) (274)
Profit after tax 44 34

2009 2008
Balance sheet £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets 15 40
Current assets 456.2 478

487 518
Liabilities
Current iabilives (103) (14 3}
Non-current habdities {12 9) 8

(23.2) (294)

Net assets 255 224
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22 Investment in associates

1009 2002

Em £m

Total assets 132 e
Total habiies {60) @3
Net investment in associates 72 74
Revenue 336 763
Profit for the year 12 34

The net investment and results presented above largely relate to Space Gateway Support LLC, in the USA, in which the group holds an investment of
46% The results of Space Gateway Support LLC are reported in the North Amenca secunity segment

23 Inventories

2009 2008

im im

Raw materials 156 234
Work in progress 102 15
Finished goods including consumables 520 501
Total inventories 778 850

24 Investments

Investments compnise primanly bsted securtties of £390m (2008 £70 2m) held by the group s whelly-owned captive insurznce subsidiaries stated
at thewr fair values based on quoted market pnices Use of these investments 1s restricted to the settlement of dams zgainst the groups captive
insurance subsilianes

25 Trade and other receivables

2009 2003
im fm

Within current assets
Trade debtors 1,175 8 12205
Allowance for doubtful debts (65 9) (594)
Arnounts owed by associated undertakings 1.3 44
Other debtors (including tax recervable} 115 4 1005
Prepayments and accrued income 934 891
Amounts due from construction contract customers (see note 26) 17.0 106
Derwatrve financial nstruments at far value (see note 32) its 96
Total trade and other recenvables included within current assets 1,348 5 13753
Within non-current assets
Dervative financial nstruments at fair value (see note 32) 57.7 1436
Other debtors 136 i
Amounts recenable under PFl contracts 40.1 433

Total trade and other recevables included within non-current assets il.4 1980

1
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25 Trade and other receivables continued

Credit risk on trade recervables

There 1s kmited concentration of credit sk with respect 1o trade recewvables as the group s customers are both large in number and dispersed
geographically in over 110 countnes Group companes are required to follow the Group Finance Manual guidelines with respect to assessing the credit
worthiness of potential customers These guidelines include processes such as obtaning approval for aredit kmits over a set amount, performing credt
checks and assessments and obtaining addrional securty where required

Credit terms vary across the group and can range from O to 90 days to reflect the different nsks within each country in which the group operates
There 1s no group-wide rate of prowision, and provisicn 1s made for debts that are past due according to local conditions and past default expenience

The movernent in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows

2009 2008

im £m

At | January (59 4) (364)

Amounts written-off dunng the year 77 38
Increase in allowance (142) {26 8)
At 31 December 659 (594)

Included within trade receivables are trade debtors with a carrying amount of £368m (2008 £384m}) which are past due at the reporting date

for which no provision has been made as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the group believes that the amounts are still
recoverable The group does not hold any collateral over these balances The proportion of trade debtors at 31 December 2009 that were overdue
for payment was 36% (2008 36%) The group-wide average age of all trade debtors at year end was 56 days (2008 68 days)

To reflect the growing nature of the group the monithly management accounts use the last three months sales of the yearto calculate management
trade debtor days Using this calcutation the group-wide average age of trade debtors at year end was 48 days (2008 49 days at constant exchange rates)

The directors beheve the far value of trade and other recevables being the present value of future cash flows appraxamates to their book value

Amounts recervable under PFl contracts

Amounts recevable under PFl contracts comprise the group's proportion of amounts recevable in respect of the Private Finance Inatve (PFI)
projects undertaken by the groups joint vertures The groupss iInterests under PFl contracts primarily consist of the design construction, financing

and management of HM Prison and Young Offenders Instrtution Parc in Brdgend South Wales for the Home Office the Oakhill Secure Traning
Centre for young people in Milton Keynes for the Youth Justices Board and Bloemfontein Carrectional Contracts {Pty) for the Government of South
Afnca The Bridgend contract commenced in January 1996 and expires n December 2022 The Milton Keynes contract commenced in June 2003

and expires in June 2028 The Bloemfontein contract commenced in July 2001 and ends in June 2026 All contracts can be terminated by the customer
erther in the event of a severe falure 1o comply with the contract or voluntanly with six months notice and the payment of appropnate compensation
(50 days for the Bloernfontein contract) The specified assets remain the property of the customers The group s joint ventures have the nght to
provide services using the speafied assets duning the Iife of the contracts There 15 currently no abligation to acquire or buid further assets and any
such obligation would be agreed with the customers as variations to the contracts The pricing basis 1s mflaton-indexed

Amounts recervable under PF| contracts are pledged as secunity against borrowings of the group

26 Construction contracts

Contracts in place at the balance sheet date are as follows

2009 2008

&m im

Amounts due from contract customers ncluded n trade and other recevables i70 106
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other payables (1 8) (26}
Net balances relating to construction contracts 152 80
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 1807 236
Less. Progress billngs {165 5) (156)
Net balances relating to construction contracts 152 80

AL 31 December 2009 advances recenved from customers for contract work amounted to £57m {2008 £60m) There were no retentions held by
cusiomers {or contract work ai either balance sheet date All trade and other recevables ansing from construction contracts are due for settlement
wathin one year

The directors believe the fair value of amounts due from and to contract customers being the present value of future cash flows approximates to
their book value
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27 Disposal groups classified as held for sale

Disposal groups dassified as held for sale as at 31 December 2005 comprise pnmarnly the assets and labilities associated wath the cash solutions
business in Tawan At 31 December 2008 disposal groups classified as held for sale also incduded the assets and labilities assocated with the manned
security services businasses in France, which principally included Group 4 Secuncor SAS

The major classes of assets and liabiliies comprising the operations classified as held for sale zre as follows

2009 008
£m ém

ASSETS
Goodwill and acquisition-related intangible assets - i3
Property plant and equipment and mtangible assets other than acquisition related 21 42
Interest in associates - 08
Trade and other recevables 05 452
Deferred tax asset - 23
Cash and cash equivalents 265 50
Total assets classified as held for sale 291 710
LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafis 6.1) (13
Bank loans 13 2) (19)
Trade and other payables (109) (581)
Current tax labilities - (26
Reurement benefit abligatons on 08)
Provisions - (03)
Total habilities associated with assets classified as held for sale (309) {741
Net kabilities of disposal group (1.8) 310

28 Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts

A reconcihation of cash and cash equivalents reported within the consolidated cash flow statement to amounts reparted within the balance sheet 1s
presented below

2009 2003

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 3076 5621
Bank overdrafts (375) {1951)
Cash cash equvalents and bank overdrafts included within disposal groups classified as hekd for sale 20.4 {63)
Total cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 2905 3607

Cash and cash equivalents comprise principally short-term money market deposits current account bafances and group-owned cash held in ATM
machines and at 3|1 December 2009 bore nterest at a weighted average rate of | 1% (2008 | 2%) The credit rsk on cash and cash equivalents s
limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

The group operates a multi-currency notional pooling cash management system which induded over 110 group comparues at 31 December 2009

It1s antcipated that the number of particpants in the group will continue to grow In 2009 the group met the condstions of [AS 32 Finanaal instruments.
Presentation allowing balances within this cash poo! to be offset for reporting purpases At 31 December 2009 £1469m of the cash balances and the
equivalent amaount of the overdraft balances were offset. Previously balances within this cash pool were reparted gross

Cash and cash equivalents of £20 Im (2008 £33 7m) are held by the groups wholly-owned captve insurance subsidiaries Their use 1s restricied 10 the
settlernent of clarns aganst the group s captive insurance subsidianes
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29 Bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes
2009 2008 1
£m £m }
Bank overdrafis 375 1951 ‘
Bank loans &61 9 9657
Loan notes* LIlé7 9019
Total bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes 1,816.1 20627
The borrowings are repayable as follows
On demand or within one year 183 | 2830
In the second year 150 100
In the third te fifth years inclusive 604.5 2008
After five years 1,013.5 8689
Total bank overdrafts bank Joans and loan notes 1,816 1 20827
Less Amount due for settlement within |2 months (shown under current habilities)
— Bank overdrafts (375) (195 1y
— Bankloans (145 6) 879)
as3n (2830)
Amount due for settlement after |2 months 1,633.0 17797
*Lean retes nchedes £766 7m of prvate loan notes and £350m of public fozn notes.
Analysis of bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes by currency
Sterling Euroz US dollars Others Total
im £m fm Em i&m
Bank overdrafts 159 9.5 - 12.1 375
Bank loans 120.9 174 0 3237 433 6619
Loan notes 419.0 - 6977 - 1,116.7
At 31 December 2009 §55.8 183 5 1,021 4 554 1,816 1
Bank overdrafts 640 550 362 399 1951
Bank loans 2366 3515 3136 640 9657
Loan notes 690 - 8329 - 9019
At 31 December 2008 3696 4065 11827 1039 20627

Of the borrowings n currencies other than stering £1 010m (2008 £1 272m) s designated as net nvestment hedging nstruments

The weighted average interest rates on bank overdrafts bank loans and loan notes at 31 December 2009 adjusted for hedging were as follows

2009 2008

% %

Bank overdrafts 1.4 22
Bank loans 36 46
Prwate loan notes 412 64
Public loan notes 78 -

The group s committed bank borrowings comprise two multi-currency revobang credit facilities totalling £4,087m with a matunty date of

June 2012 and a revolving credit facility of £45m maturing March 2010 and the group's uncommitted faciiies amount to £515 6m (2008 £578 0m)
At 3] December 2009, undrawn committed avalable faclities amounted to £614 7m (2008 £3504m) Interest on alf commiited bank borrowing
faciliies 15 at prevailing Libor or Eunbor rates dependent upon the period of drawdown plus an agreed margin, and re-priced within one year or less

Borrowing at floating rates exposes the group to cash flow interest rate nsk. The management of this rsk is discussed m note 33

The group 1ssued fixed rate loan notes in the LS Private Placement market totaling US$550m (£.340 6m) on | March 2007 The notes mature in ‘
March 2014 ($100m) March 2017 ($200m} March 2019 ($145m) and March 2022 ($105m) ‘

The group issued further fixed rate loan notes in the US Private Placement market totalling LIS$513 5m (£318 Om) and £69m on 15 July 2008
The notes mature in July 2083 ($65m) July 2015 ($150m} July 2016 (£25m) July 2018 ($224m) and (£44m) and July 2020 ($74 Sm)
The group 1ssued rts maugural public note of £350m vsing its European Medium Term Note Programme on 13 May 2009 The note matures in May 2019

The committed bank facihties ang the private loan notes are subject to one financial covenant (net debt to EBITDA rato) and non-complance with
the covenant may lead 1o an acceleration of matunty The group complied with the financial covenant throughout the year to 31 December 2009 and
the year to 3| December 2008 The group has not defaulted on or breached the terms of any matenial loans dunng the year
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29 Bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes continued

Bank overdrafts, bank loans the loan notes issued in July 2008 and the loan notes issued n May 2009 are stated at amortised cost. The loan notes
1ssed in March 2007 are stated at amortised cost recalculated at an effective nterest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a far
value hedge relationship The directors believe the fair value of the groups bank averdrafts bank loans and the loan notes issued i1 March 2007,
calculated from market prices approximates to their book value US$265m {£164 Im) of the loan notes issued in July 2008 have a far value market
gan of £299m

30 Obligations under finance leases

Present Present

value of value of
Minimum Mamum minirmum frsnamum
lease lease lease fease
payments payments payments payments
2009 2008 2009 2008
im fm Em £m
Amounts payable under finance leases

Within one year 215 240 231 221
In the second to fifth years inclusive 609 539 526 493
After five years il 2 163 100 143
996 92 857 857

Less Future finance charges on finance leases (139 {105}

Present value of lease obligations 857 . 857
Less Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current lizbilties) (23 1) (221
Armount due for settlement after |2 months 626 636

It 1s the groups policy to lease certan of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases The weighted average [ease term is eight years For the
year ended 31 December 2009 the weighted average effective borrowing rate was 74% (2008 72%) Interest rates are fixed at the contract date
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

The directors beleve the fair value of the groups finance lease obligauons beng the present value of future cash flows approximates to ther
book value

The group s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors charges over the leased assets

31 Trade and other payables

2009 2008
£m £m
Within current iabilities.
Trade creditors 191.6 197G
Amounts due to construction contract customers (see note 26) 18 26
Amounts owed to assocated undertakings 06 05
Other taxation and socil security costs 205 8 1826
Other creditors 398.4 5200
Accruals and deferred income 295.4 2947
Derwvative financal instruments at farr value (see note 32) e 192
Total trade and other payables ncluded within current labsives 1,105.5 12166
Within non-current habilities:
Dervatrve financial instruments at far value (see note 32) 5 391
Other creditors 33.0 244
Total trade and other payables included within nan-current habiiues 425 635

Trade and other payables compnse prinapalty amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credit peniod teken for trade
purchases 1s 37 days (2008 40 days) The directors believe the far value of trade and other payables, being the present value of future cash flows
approximates to their book value

Other creditors within non-current liabilities of £33 Om indudes £27 5m relating to creditors due between one and two years and £5 5m relating to
creditors due between two and five years

93
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32 Derivative financial instruments

The carrying values of dervatve financial instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below

Assets Assets Liabil Luzbi

2009 2008 2009 2008

im £m im im

Forward foreign exchange contracts - - 01 286
Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 299 609 - -
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - 21.2 86
Interest rate swaps designated as far value hedges 391 923 - -

Commeodity swaps 012 - ol Il
5912 1532 21.4 583
Less Non-current portion (57.7) (143 6) 9.5) (321)
Current portion s 96 1.9 192

Derwvative financial nstruments are stated at far value measured using techniques consistent with Level | of the valuation hierarchy (see note 3{d))
The source of the market prices 1s Bloomberg and in addition the third-party relatonship counterparty banks The relevant currency yield curve 15
used to forecast the floating rate cash fiows anticpated under the instrument which are discounted back to the balance sheet date This value 1s
compared to the original transaction value giving a fair value of the instrument at the balance sheet date

The mark to market valuation of the dervatives has falfen by £47 |m dunng the year

The interest rate cross currency and commodity swaps which qualify as cash flow hedges have the following maturtties

Aszets Assets Liabilities Liabdives

2009 2008 2009 008

fm fm Lm £m

Within one year 0.2 - 27 32
In the second year - - 56 40
In the third year - - 80 78
In the fourth year 712 - 40 100
In the fifth year or greater 22.7 609 .o 47
Total carrying value of cash flow hedges 301 609 213 297

Projected settlement of cash flows (including accrued interest) associated with dervatives that are cash flow hedges

Assets Assels Liabihties Liabisues

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m im tm £m

Within one year 0é 23 13.6 Il
In the second year 03 16 66 197
In the third year 04 16 212 49
In the fourth year Ty 16 oS 21
In the fifth year or greater 21| 545 ol 4

Total cash flows 301 6l 6 230 302
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33 Financial risk

Capital management

The group’s capital management objective 1s to ensure that the businesses within 1t can continue and develop as going concerns whilst returns to
stakeholders are maximised The group believes that these returns are masimised when the groups Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC)
15 minirrised and that this is the case when the group broadly has the characteristics of an investment grade BBB rated entrty The group therefore
aims generally to maintain its net debt expressed as a mulple of cash generated from eperations broadly within a range corresponding to those
of BBB rated entities On % March 2009 the group obtained a BBB credit rating from Standard & Poor’s

The group has a range of return on caprtal targets in respect of potential acquisiions dependmg upon their size Most proposals for “bolt—on
acquisitions must demonstrate a post-tax return of at least 12% on the capital investment within three years Medum-sized acquistiions are required
to return a minimum of 10% within thrs tre frame and relatvely rare, large, strategic acquisitons a minimum equal to the groups WACC The group's
calculation of its post-tax WACC at 31 December 2009 was 76%

The group monitors the financial performance of acquired businesses dunng the years fallowing acquisstion against the return targets |n addinon, the
group meniters the Retumn on Net Assets (RONA) of all its businesses an a monithly basis The group regards RONA as a measure of operational
performance and therefore calculates it as EBITA divided by net assets excluding goodwill tax dividends payable and retrement benefit cbligations

The group has no current intention to commence a share buy-back plan The group operates a programme to purchase its own shares on the market
on a regular basis 50 as to provide a pool of shares from which to satisfy share awards to employees as the awards vest

The group 1s not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements and there were no changes i the group s approach to capital management
dunng the year

Liquadity risk

The group mitigates iquidity sk by ensuring there are sufficent undrawn committed faclities availabie to it For more details of the groups bank
overdrafts bank loans and loan notes see note 29

The percentage of avallable but undrawn committed faciities during the course of the year was as follows

3| December 2008 19%
31 March 2009 10%
30 June 2009 26%
30 September 2009 27%
3| December 2009 28%

The avallability of undrawn committed facilities duning earty 2009 was impacted by the sharp deterioration in the value of steriing against the US dollar
and euro in late 2008, being currencies in which a significant proporticn of drawn faclities 1s denominated To reduce re-financing nsk group treasury
obtains finance with a range of matunities and hence minimeses the impact of a single matenal source of finance terminating on a single date

The groups committed facilities restated at hedged rates where applicable have the following maturity dates

March 2010 £45m
June 2012 £1087m
July 2013 £33m
March 2014 £62m
July 2015 £76m
July 2016 £25m
March 2017 £i24m
July 2018 £V77m
March 2019 £90m .
May 2019 £350m
July 2020 £46m
March 2022 £65m

Refinancing risk 15 further reduced by group treasury opening negotiztions to either replace or extend any major fachity at least |8 months before its
termination date
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33 Financial risk continued
Market nsk

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business n many currencies Transaction risk 1s imited since wherever possible each business operates and conducts its finanang
actmties in loca) currency However the group presents its consolidated financial statements in sterling and 15 in consequence subject to foraign
exchange nsk due to the translation of the results and net assets of its foreign subsidianes. The group hedges a substantial proportion of its exposure
1o fluctuations n the translation Into sterling of 1ts overseas net assets by holding loans in foreign currencies

Transtauon adustments ansing on the translation of foreign currency loans are recognised n equity to match translation adustments on forergn
currency equity nvestments as they gualfy as net investrment hedges

The group no longer uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge the residual portion of net assets not hedged by way of loans This foreign exchange
hedging programme was terminated in February 2009 The group beteves cash flow should not be put at nsk by these instruments in order to
preserve the carrying value of net assets, given the changed iquidity emvironment post the global credrt crsis

At 31 December 2009 the groups US dollar and euro net assets were approxmately 75% and 87% respectively hedged by foreign currency loans
{2008 US dollar 89% eurc 97%)

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £i34 2m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency risk on US$265m of the second US Private
Placement notes issued in July 2008 effectively fixing the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of 19750

Interest rate nisk and interest rate swaps

Borrowing at floating rates as described in note 29 exposes the group to cash flow nterest rate nisk which the group manages within policy imits
approved by the directors Interest rate swaps and to a lmited extent forward rate agreements are utilised to fix the interest rate on 2 proporuon of
borrowings on a reducing scale over farward penods up to a maximum of five years At 31 December 2009 the nominal value of such contracts was
£170 2m (i respect of US dollar) (2008 £246 9m) and £2177m (in respect of eurc) (2008 £271 7m) their weighted average interest rate was 5 0%
(US dollar) (2008 50%) and 3 7% (euro) (2008 3 8 %) and ther weighted average period to maturity was two and a quarter years All the interest
rate hedging instrumenits are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements in their far value have been deferred i equity

The US Private Placement market 1s predominantly a fixed rate market with investors lcoking for a fixed rate return over the Iife of the loan notes
At the trme of the first iIssue in March 2007 the group was comfortable wath the proportion of floating rate exposure not hedged by interest rate
swaps and therefore rather than take on a higher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floating swaps effectvely converting the fixed
coupon on the Private Placement to a floating rate Following the swaps the resulting average coupon on the US Private Placement 1s LIBOR + 60bps
These swaps have been documented as fair value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed nterest loan notes with the movemnents in therr farr value
posted to profit and foss at the same time as the movement in the far value of the hedged rem

The nterest on the LIS Private Placement notes 1ssued in July 2008 was kept at fixed rate

The core group borrowings are held in US dollar eurc and sterling Althcugh the impact of msing interest rates 1s partly shielded by fixed rate loans
and interest rate swaps which fix a poruon of the exposure some interest rate nsk remains Assuming a 1% increase in interest rates across the yield
curve In each of these currencies and keeping the 31 December 2009 debt position constant throughout 2010, an additional interest charge of £64m
would be expected in the 2010 financial year

Commodity risk and commodity swaps

The groups panaipal commodity risk relates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices, particularly affecting its cash salutions businesses Commodity
swaps and commodity options are used to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volaulity Commodity swaps hedging
24 milion litres of projected 2010 diesel consumption and 7 million Iitres of projected 2011 diesel cansumsuon were in place at 31 December 2009




G45 plc Anaual Report and Accounts 2009
Overnew

Business review

Governance

Financial statements 97

Shareholder information

33 Financial risk continued
Market risk continued

Counterparty credit rnisk
The groupss strategy for credrt sk management 1s to set minimum credit ratings for counterparties and moniter these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions the pelicy Iimits the aggregate credit nsk assigned to a counterparty The utilisaton of a credrt imit is cakoulated
by applying a weighting to the notonal value of eadh outstanding transaction based on the type and duration of the transaction The total mark to
market value outstanding with each counterparty 1s closely monitored For short-term transactions {under one year), at inception of the transaction
the financial counterparty must be investment grade rated by either the Standard & Poor s or Meody s rating agencies For long-term transactions,
atinception of the transactron the financial counterparty must have a minimum rating of A+/Al from Standard & Poors or Moody s

Treasury transactions are dealt with the group's relauonship banks all of which have a strong investment grade raung At 31 December 2009 the
largest two counterparty exposures related to treasury transacticns were £276m and £14 Im and were both held with instrtutions with long-term
Moody s credit ratings of Aa3 These exposures represent 40% and 20% of the carrying values of dervatve finanaial instruments with a far value
gan at the balance sheet date Both of these banks had significant loans outstanding to G4S ple at 31 December 2009

The group operates a mult-currency notional pooling cash management system with a wholly-owned subsidiary of a Aa3 rated bank. At year end
credit balances of £147 5m were pooled with debrt balances of £1469m resutting 'n a net poo! balance of £0 ém There s legal right of set off under
the pocling agreement.

At an operating level the minmum mvestment grade rating critena applies Exceptionally where required by local country arcumstances
counterparties with no or a non-investment grade, rating can be approved as counterparties for a period of up to 12 months Due to the groups
global geographical footprnt and exposure to multiple industries there 1s mimimal concentration risk

34 Retirement benefit obligations

The group operates a wide range of retirement benefit arrangements which are established in accordance with local conditions and practices within
the countries concerned These include funded defined contnbution and funded and unfunded defined benefit schemes

Defined contnbution arrangements

The majority of the reurement benefit arrangements operated by the group are of a defined contribution structure, where the employer contribution
angd resulung Income statement charge 1s fixed at a set level or is a set percentage of employees pay Contnbutions made to defined contribution
schernes and charged to the income statement totalled £1090m {2008 £95 6m)

In the UK following the dosure of the defined benefit schemes ta new entrants, the main scheme for new employees 1s a contracted-in defined
contribution schermne

Wackenhut Services Inc { WS! ) 1s the administrator of several defined benefit schemes WSl is responsible for making penodic cost-reimbursable
deposits to the vanous defined benefit schemes as determined by ndependent actuanes In each instance the US Department of Energy { DOE
acknowledged within the contract entered between the DOE and WSl its responsibitty for all unfunded pension and benefit liabikties Therefore,
these schemes are accounted for as defined contribution schemes

In the Netherdands most employees are members of industry-wide defined benefit schemes which are not valued on an LAS |9 basis as it 1s not
possible to identfy separately the groupss share of the schemes assets and habiliies As a resuft the schemes are accounted for as defined contribution
schemes Contributions made to the schemes and ¢harged to the income statement in 2009 totalled £78m (2008 £73m) The estimated amounts of
contributions expected to be pad to the schemes dunng the financial year commenaing | January 2040 1n respect of the ongoing accrual of benefits is
approximately £8 Om assuming consistent exchange rates

Defined benefit arrangements

The group operates a number of defined benefit retirement arrangements where the benefits are based on employees length of service In most
cases these are calculated on the basis of final pensionable pay other than for the smallest of the three schemes in the UK and one scheme in the
Netherands where they are based on career average pay Liabiiuies under these arrangements are stated at the discounted value of benefits accrued
to date, based upon actuanal advice

Under unfunded arrangements the group does not hold the related assets separate from the group The amount charged to the income statement n
respect of these arrangements in 2009 totalled £2 8m (2008 £2 3m) Under funded arrangements the assets of defined benefit schemes are held in
separate trustee-administered funds, The pension costs are assessed on the adwice of qualified independent zctuanes using the projected unrt crednt
method The group operates several funded defined retrement benefit schemes Whilst the group’s primary schemes are in the UX 1t 2lso operates
ather material schemes in the Netherlands, Ireland Canada lIsrael and Greece
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Defined benefit arrangements contnued

The carrying values of retirement benefit obligatons at the balance sheet date are presented below

2009 2008

£m £m

UK 307.1 2562
Rest of World 1.1 300
Net babiy on matenal funded defined retirement benefit schemes 32812 2862
Unfunded and other funded defined retirement benefit obligations 39.4 413
3676 3275

Less Amounts included within current habiliues (54.6) (489)
Included within nan-current liabilities 3130 2786

The defined benefit schemes in the UK account far 94% of the net balance sheet fiability on matenal funded defined retirement benefit schemes
They cornprise three arrangements the pension scherne dermerged from the former Group 4 Faick AJS with 1otal rnembership of approximatety
B0OO the Secunicor scheme, responsibility for which the group assumed on 20 July 2004 with the acquisiuon of Secuncor plc with total membership
of approximately 20000 and the G5L scheme responsibility for which the group assumed on 12 May 2008 with the acqusion of GSL, with total
membership of approximately 2000 Regular actuanal assessments of the schemes are carned out the latest being at 31 March 2007 in respect of the
Group 4 scheme 5 April 2006 in respect of the Secuncor scheme and 31 March 2005 in respect of the GSL scheme Pension obligations stated in the
balance sheet take account of future service and earnings increases, have teen updated to 3| December 2009 and use the valuation methedologies
speafied in IAS 13 Employee Benefits The three schemes in the UK have combined under one trustee body with effect from 1 January 2010 and will

be formally actuanally assessed at 5 Apnl 2010
AtS Apnl 2009 the participants of the UK pension schemes can be analysed as follows

Group 4 Falck GSL Securicor

At S Aprd 2009 Scheme Scheme Scheme Total
Active participants

Number 618 1311 1,409 3338

Average age 532 508 519 517
Deferred parucipants

Number 4559 537 10352 15448

Average age 513 484 508 50%
Pensisner participants

Number 2607 208 7878 10693

Awerage age 6872 6| 699 893

The weighted average principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuanal valuaticns were as follows
UK Rest of World

Key assumptions used at 31 December 2009
Discount rate S 7% 57%
Expected return on scheme assets (as at | January 2009} & 3% 5 8%
Expected rate of salary increases 36% 26%
Future pension increases (LPIS%) 34% 20%
Inflation 36% 20%
Key assumptions used at 31 December 2008
Discount rate 63% 58%
Expecied return on scheme assets (as at | January 2008) 69% 62%
Expected rate of salary ncreases 49% 29%
Future pension increases (LPIS%) 3% 20%
Inflation % 20%

In addition to the above, the group uses appropriate mortahty assumptions when calculating the schemes cbhigations The martality tzbles used for the

schemes in the UK are as follows

+ Current and future pensioners 125% of PMAS2 (YOB) Medum Cohort  Male

« Current and future pensioners 115% of FFA92 (YOB) Medum Cohort Female
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UK Restof World Total
im Lm £m
Amounts recognised in income 2009
Current service cost %0 37 (127)
Finance cost on defined retirement benefit obligations 807) {6 3) (87 0)
Expected return on defines retrement benefit scheme assets 640 40 68.0
Total amounts recognised In Income (257 0 31N
Amounts recognised in income 2008
Current service cost (g (36} {154
Finance cost on defined retrement benefit obligations (778) (50 828
Expected retum on defined retrement benefit scheme assets 822 43 865
Total amounts recognised in income 74 43 nmn
The amounis recognised in ncome are included within the following categones in the income statement.
2009 2002
£m £m
Cost of sales (87) (n
Administration expenses {4 0) {43)
Finance income 68.0 865
Finance costs {87.0) (828)
Total 317 (17
Actuanal gains and losses recognised cumulatively in the statement of comprehensive Income are as follows
1009 2008
£m £m
At | January (204 7) 78)
Actuanal losses recognised in the year (63 1) (1969)
At 31 December (267 8) (2047
The amaunts included in the balance sheet ansing from the groups obligations in respect of its defined benefit schemes are as follows,
UK Rest of World Total
tm £m fm
2009
Present value of defined benefit obligatons 15473 1159 16632
Far value of scheme assets (1,2402) 94 8) {13350
Deficit in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 3071 201 3282
2008
Present value of defined benefit obligations 1,296 3 108 1,407
Fair vatue of scheme assets (10401 {80 8) {1,1209)
Deficit in schemne recognised in the balance sheet 2362 300 2862
1007
Present value of defined benefit obligations 12913 B46 13759
Fair value of scherne assets (11697} {707 (1 2404)
Defict in scherne recognssed n the balance sheet 1216 139 1355
2006
Present value of defined benefit obligations 13288 6l | 1389¢%
Fair value of scherne assets @nsn {454 (1 1635)
Deficit in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 2107 157 2264
2005
Present value of defined benefit obligatons 11993 61t 1 2604
Fair value of scheme assets {1004 5) (393) (10438)
Deficit n scheme recognised in the balance sheet 1948 218 2166
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Movernents in the present value of defined benefit obligatons in the current year and the fair value of scheme assets during the year were as follows:

UK Rest of World Total
2009 tm £m &m
Obhgations
At | January 2009 1,296 3 Hog 14071
Serwce cost g0 37 127
Interest cast 8C7 63 870
Contributions from scheme emembers 55 31 86
Actuanal gains 2051 05 2056
Benefits pad (493) (40 (533
Translation adjustments - “45) “45)
At 31 December 2009 1,547.3 Is¢ 1,663.2
Assets
At | January 2009 104Q1 808 11209
Expected return on scheme assets 640 40 680
Actuanal losses 1343 82 1425
Actual returns on schedule assets 1983 122 2105
Conwnbutions from the sponsorning comparies 456 54 510
Contrbutions from scheme members 55 3 86
Benefits pad {4973) “@0 (533
Translation adjustments - 27 2N
At 31 December 2009 1,240 2 948 1,3350

UK Rest of World Total
2008 £m £m £m
Obligations
At | January 2008 12913 B46 13759
Service cost e 36 154
Interest cost 778 50 828
Contnbutions from scheme members 46 25 71
Actuarial gans (1292) (56) (134 8)
Benefits pard (459 {1 5) @74
Acquisition of subsicdiary undertakings 859 - 859
Translation adjustments - 222 222
At 31 December 2008 1,296 3 HOS 14071
Assets
At | January 2008 11697 707 12404
Expected return on scheme assets 822 43 865
Actuaral losses {3151y (16 6) (331 7)
Actual return on scheme assets (2329) {123} (2452)
Contnbutions from the sponsonng companies 475 51 526
Contributions from scheme members 46 25 I
Benefits pard (459) (5 {474)
Acqusivon of subsidhary undertalungs 97} - 97\
Translation adjustments - 163 163
At 3| December 2008 10401 808 11209

The contnbuton fram sponsonng companies n 2009 included £299m (2008 £269m) of additonal contnbutions in respect of the defictin

the schemes




G45 ple Annual Report and Accounts 2009
Overview

Busness review

Governance

Financal statements

Shareholder informanen
34 Retirement benefit obligations contnued
The composition of the scheme assets at the balance sheet date s as follows.
UK Rest of World Total
2009
Equity instruments 59% 45% 57%
Debt instruments 26% 38% 27%
Property 0% 10% 1%
Other assets 15% 7% 15%
1005 100% 100%
2008
Equity mstruments 57% 39% 56%
Debt instruments 28% 7% 28%
Property 1% 4% 1%
Other assets 14% 30% 15%
100% 100% 100%

None of the pension scheme assets are held in the entity s own financial instruments or in any assets held or used by the entity

The expected weighted average rates of return on schesme assets for the following year at the balance sheet date are as follows

UK Rest of World Total
2009 (return expected in 2010} 69% 56% 68%
2008 {return expected in 200%) 63% 59% 63%
2007 (return expected in 2008) 65% 52% 69%

The expected rates of return on indvidual categores of scherne assets are determined with respect to bonds by reference to relevant indices and
with respect 1o other assets by reference 1o relevant indices of the histonical return and economic forecasts of future returns relatve to inflauon in
respect of assets of a similar nature The overall expected rate of return 1s the weighted average of the rates on the ndmdual asset categones

The history of experience adjustments is as follows

UK Rest of World Total
2009 UK Rest of World Total
Experience adjustments on scheme habilities
Armount (£m} 98 {7 g1
Percentage of scheme labilities (%) I 0] -
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) (1332} @81 (1413)
Percentage of scheme assets (%) t 9 It
2008
Experience adjustments on scheme habilities
Amount (£m} 0l 05 06
Percentage of scheme labilmies (%) - | -
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Armount {£r) (3151) (16 6} {3217
Percentage of scheme assets (%) (30) 20 (30)
2007
Experience adjustments on scheme habilities
Amount (£m} 55 B0 24
Percentage of scheme labilities (%) - %) -

Experience adjustments on scheme assets

Amount (£m} {16 6) (46} (212)
Percentage of scheme assets (%) {n 7 ?
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

UK Rest of World Total
2006
Experience adjustments on scheme hiabilities
Amount (£m) 290 0l 291
Percentage of scheme labilities (%) 2 - 2
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) 454 26 480
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 4 6 4
2005
Experience adjustments on scheme habilities
Amount (£m) (75 11 {164}
Percentage of scheme labilities {94) ) 2 H
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) 990 24 1014
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 10 6 10

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the schemes durng the financal year commenang | January 2010 n respect of the
angoing accrual of benefits is approximately £20m and it 1s anticpated that these will reman at a smilar leved in the medium term subject to changes
n finanaal condivons Addional contrbutions of atleast £30m will aiso be made 1 2010 n respect of the defict in the schemes

1AS 19 speafies that pension labilities should be discounted at appropnate high quality corporate bond rates The direciors consider that it is appropnate
to apply the average of the yields on those AA corperate bonds which most closely approximate to the timescale of the liability profile of the schemes
and have therefore used such a rate being 5 65%, n respect of the UK schemes at 31 December 2009 (6 3% at 3t December 2008) The effect of a0 1%
movement in the discount rate applicable in the UK s to alter reported labilites (before associated deferred tax) by approxmately £28m

Liability calculations are also impacted heavily by the mortality projections ncuded in the actuanal assumptions The weighted average e expectancy
of a male member of the UK schernes currently aged 65 has been assumed as 204 years The weighted average Ife expectancy at 65 of a male
currently aged 52 has been assumed as 2| 2 years. The directors consider, on actuanal advice these assumptions to be appropnate to the profite of

the membership of the schemes The effect of a one-year change in this UK Iife expectancy assumption is to alter reported labilibes (before associated
deferred tax) by approximately £70m

Pension obligations in respect of deferred members increase in line with inflation Increases in salanes and ncreases in pensions-in-payment generally
mave n ine with inflation Inflation is therefore an important assumption i the calculation of defined retirement benefit labiiues The effect of a0 1%
mavement in the rate of nflation assumption apphcable n the UK s 1o alter reported labilites {before assocated deferred tax) by approximately £16m

35 Provisions

Employee Claims Onerous

benefits Restructuring reserves cantracts Total

£m Lm Em Erm Em

At | lanuary 2009 360 51 452 643 1506

Addienal provision in the year 47 18 241 18 324

On acqusition of subsidiary - - 03 06 09
Utilisation of provision 8% (19 @35 (30 (464}
Unused amounts reversed 87 ()] (10) 99 (198}
Reversals on disposal of a subsidiary (17) - — - (17
Translation adjustments {37) o7 (56) (7%} (179}

At 3| December 2009 182 41 3?9 5% 98.1

Included in current liabiities 98

included in non-current babilites 683

98 1

Employee benefits

The provision for employee benefits 1s in respect of any employee benefits which accrue over the working Iives of the employees typically including
rierns such as long service awards termination indemnity schemes and related taxes
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35 Provisions contnued

Restructuring

Restructuning provisions indude amounts for redundancy payments and the costs of dosure of actvities in acquired businesses and discontinued
operatons Settlement of restructuring provisions is highly probable The timing 1s uncertain but 1s generally hikely to be short term

Clams reserves

The claims reserves are held by the wholly-owned captive insurance subsidiaries n Guernsey and the US which underwnite part of the groups cash
solutions general habilty workers' compensation and auto labiity polices The prowsions are subject to regular actuanal review and are adjusted as
appropriate Settlement of these prowisions s highly probable but both the value of the final settlements and ther timing 1s uncertain, dependent upon
the outcome of ongoing processes to determine both lability and quantum in respect of a wide range of claims or possible claims

Onerous contracts

The onerous contract provision mainly comprises the provision aganst future liabilities for loss-making contracts for afl properties sub-let at a shorifall
for the cost of replacing assets where there 15 a present contractual requirement and for long-term idle, leased properties The provision 1s based on
the value of future net cash outflows Whilst the hkelhood cf settlement of these obligations 1s considered probable there 1s uncertanty over their
value and duration

36 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and movemnents thereon during the current and prior
reporting periods

Retirement Qther
benefic Intangible Tax temporary
obhigations assets losses differences Total
£m im fm im £m
At | January 2008 371 {606) 51 270 86
(Charge)lcredit to the inceme statement (75) 91 19 @1 54
Acquisition of subsidianes “n (5923 - 176 “464)
(Credt)/charge to equity 567 - - B4 503
Translation adjustments - (155) 06 139 (1o
At 31 Becember 2008 8lé (163) 76 440 169
At | January 2009 8l 6 (163} 76 440 169
{Charge)/credit to the mcome statement @7 228 196 20 397
Acquisition of subsidianes - (178) - 03 (175)
Credit to equrty 170 - - - 170
Translation adjustments - 30 - “n (17}
Transfersiother (17} 1 - 12 06
At 3] December 2009 922 (107 2) 272 428 550

Certain deferred tax assets and liabiiies have been offset where permitted The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)
for financal reporting purposes

2009 2003

£m £m
Deferred tax liabilities (123 1) (1381}
Deferred tax assets 178.1 1550
Tatal deferred tax position 55.0 169

At the balance sheet date the group has unutlised tax losses of approximately £528 Im (2008 £526 Bm) potentially avalable for offset against

future profits A deferred tax asset of £272m (2008 £5 Im) has been recognised in respect of approximately £78 4m (2008 £22 9m) of gross losses
No deferred tax asset has been recogmsed n respect of the remaining £4497m (2008 £503 9m} of gross losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams in the relevant unsdicuons and the fact that a significant proportion of such losses remains unaudiied by the refevant tax authorties
Included i unrecognised tax losses are gross losses of £27m £33m £] 8m, £1 6m, £12m and £3 3m which will expire in 2010 201 2012 2013 2014
and 2015 respectvely Other losses may be carmed forward indefinitely

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistnbuted earnings of non-UK subsidiaries for which
deferred tax labilities have not been recogrised s £1 329m (2008 £2.727m) No lability has been recognised in respect of these gross differences on

the basis that the group 1s in a positton to contral the tming of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 5 probable that such differences wall
not reverse in the foreseeable future

Temporary differences ansing i connection with iInterests in associates and joint ventures are insignificant

At the balance sheet date the group has total unprovided contingent tax liabilities of approximately £mil (2008 £4 0r) relating to unresolved tax
ISSUES 1N vanous junsdictions
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37 Share capital
At 31 December 2009 At 3] December 2008
Issued and lssued and
Authorised fully paid Authonsed fulty pasd
G4S pl £ £ £ L
Ordinary shares of 25p each (2008 25p each) 587,500,000 352,629,660 500 000,000 352,074,650
Nominal
value
Number im
Ordinary shares 1n i1ssue
At | January 2008 1280710738 3202
New shares issued 127000,000 318
Shares ssued on exercise of options
Executive Scheme 587901 0l
At | January 2009 1408298 639 3521
Shares 1ssued on exercise of options
Executive scheme 2,220,000 05
At 31 December 2009 1,410,518,639 352 6

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receve dvidends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of
the compary

Options aver 45 plc shares outstanding at 31 December 2009, rolled over at |9 July 2004 from options previously held over Securicor plc shares,
were as follows

a Executive share option scheme

Number of Exercise price

ordinary shares per share
Number of options outstanding under option {pence) Exercise date
2 25000 13375p 2010
2 30,000 153p 2010
| 25000 85p 20102013
| 50000 p 2010-2013

The proceeds from shares allotted under this scheme dunng the year amounted to £2 772 488 (2008 £693,631)
5543 118 shares are held by an employee benefit trust s detaled in note 38
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38 Reserves

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow nstruments related to the hedged
transacuons that have not yet occurred (net of tax)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statemenis of foreign operations as well
as from the translation of habiities that hedge the company s net iInvestment in foreign operatons (net of tax)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve comprises reserves arising upon the merger between the former Group 4 Falck AJS and the former Group 4 Securttas BY n
2000 and the acquisition of Securicor ple by the group in 2004

Reserve for own shares

An employee benefit trust established by the group held 5,543,818 shares at 3| December 2009 (2008 5 832 653 shares) to satisfy the vesting of
awards under the perforrance share plan and performance-related and synergy bonus schemes During the year 4 437600 shares were purchased by
the trust whilst 4 726 435 shares were used 1o satisfy the vesting of awards under the schemes At 3| December 2009, the cost of shares held by the
trust was £12 054 145 (2008 £11 715 675), whilst the market value of these shares was £14,447,190 {2008 £11956939) Shares held by the trust are
wreated as treasury shares, are deducted from equity do not recerve dividends and are excluded from the calculations of earnings per share

39 Analysis of net debt
A reconaliation of net debt to amounits in the consolidated balance sheet is presented below
1009 2003
fm £m
Cash and cash equivalents 307.6 5621
Investments 844 927
Net cash and overdrafts induded within disposal groups classified as held for sale 204 63)
Net detxt (excluding cash and overdrafts) included within disposat groups classified as held for sale (132) (10
Bank overdrafts (375) {1951)
Bank loans (661 9) (9657)
Loan notes (1LN&T) (9019)
Fair value of loan note dervative financial instruments 692 1532
Obliganans under finance leases (857) {857)
Total net debt {1,433 9) (13477)
An analysis of movements in net debt in the year 1s presented below
2009 2008
£m £m
{Decrease)fincrease in cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts per consolidated cash flow statement (379) 563
Purchasef{sale) of mvestments o9 (56
Increase in debt and lease financing 0.6 (1602)
Change n net debt resulting from cash flows (36 4) (109 5)
Borrowings acquired with subsidianes (0.4) (2300)
Net additions to finance leases (197) (71
Movement in net debt i the year (56 5) (3566)
Translation adjustments (29 2) (1862)
Net debt at the beginning of the year {1,347 7) (804%)

iNet debt at the end of the year {1,433 4) {1 3477)
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40 Contingent habilities

Contingent ¥abiliues exist in respect of agreements entered into in the normal course of business, none of which are indvdually or
callectvely significant.

Detalls of unprovided contingent tax Liabiities are presented in note 36

41 Operating lease arrangements

The group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the group had cutstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2009 2008

£m £m

Within one year 1427 1418
In the second to fifth years nclusive 3006 3067
After five years 197 6 2006
Total operating lease commitments 640 9 649 |

The group leases a number of 1ts office properies, vehicles and other operating equipment under operating leases Property leases are negotiated
over an average term of |7 years at rates reflectve of market rentals Periodic rent reviews take place to bring lease rentals in line with prevailing
market conditions Some but not all lease agreements have an opuon to renew the lease at the end of the lease term Leased vehicles and other
operating equipment are negotiated over an average lease term of four years

Certan leased properties have been sub-let by the group Sub-leases are negouated on terms consistent with those of the associated property
The total future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received by the group from sub-let properties amount to £10 6m (2008 £372m)

42 Share-based payments

The group has two types of equity-settled, share-based payrment scheme in place (i) share options previously held by employees over Secuncor pk
shares and rolled over to (G4S plc shares with the acquisition of that business on 19 July 2004, and (2) conditional allocations of G4S plc shares

Share options

Share options rolled over from Securicor plc falt under erther the Executve Share Option Scherme (ESOS) Options under the ESOS were granted
at market value vest three or four years following the date of grant (provided that certain non-market performance conditions are met and that the

recipients continue to be employed by the group dunng the vesting penod) and are exerusable up to ten years foliowing the date of grant
Detalls of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows

Weighted Werghted

Number of average average

shares under exercise Number of exerase

option price {(pence) shares under pnce {pence)

200% 1009 optan 2008 2008

Cutstanding at | January 2,370,000 124 28 2957901 12302
Exercsed dunng the year (2,220,000) 122 82 (587501) 11798
Quistanding at 3t December 150,000 115 23 2370000 12428
Exercisable at 31 December 150,000 115 23 2370000 12428

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised dunng the year was 24395p (2008 232 94p) All options
outstanding at 31 December 2009 were vested

No share option expeanse has been recognised n the Income statement duning the year as all share options had previously vested (2008 all vested)
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42 Share-based payments continued
Shares allocated conditionally

Shares altocated conditonally fall under erther the group’s performance-related bonus scheme or the groups Performance Share Plan (PSP) Shares
allocated conditionally under the performance-related bonus scheme vest three years following the date of grant prowvided certain non-market
performance conditons are met Those allocated under the PSP vest, to the extent that (g} certain non-market peformance conditions are met as to
two-thirds of the allocation and (b) certan market performance conditions are met as to the remaining third of the allocation Vesting occurs after the
third anniversary of the date the shares were allocated conditionally To the extent that the performancea ¢ntera have been met and the shares are
not forfeited, these shares can only be released upon request after the third anniversary but before the tenth annversary

The number of shares allocated conditionally 1s as follows

Performance- Performance

related bonus refated borus
scheme PSP Total scheme PSP Total
2009 0o 2009 2008 2008 2004
Number Number MNumber Nurmber Number Number
Qutstanding at | Jarwary 1,257,765 11,864,814 14,119,579 1981777 11460069 1344|846
Allocated dunng the year 553,382 6,576,223 7,129,605 554229 4757230 5311459
Transferred dunng the year (1,488,408)  (3,238,023)  (4,726,431) (278.241) (3.091962) (3370203)
Forfeited dunng the year - (201,393) (201,393) - (228.180) (228.180)
Expired dunng the year - (36,612) (35,612) - {1035 343) {1035 343)
Cutstanding at 3! December 1,322,739 14,962,009 16,284,748 2257765 11861814 14119 579

The weighted average remaining contractual Iife of conditonal share aflocations cutstanding at 31 December 2009 was 17 months (2008 17 months)

The weighted average share price at the date of allocation of shares allocated condiuonally during the year was 210 25p (2008 216 50p) and the
contractual hfe of all conditional allocations was three years

Under the PSP the vesting of two-thirds of the shares allocated conditionally depends upen Total Shareholder Return (a market performance
conditicn) over the vesting year measured aganst 4 comparator group 25% of the allocation vests upon the groups Total Shareholder Return

equalling median performance amongst the comparator group The fair value of the shares allocated subject to this rarket performance condition
has therefore been reduced by 75%

Total expenses of £7 |m were recognised in the income statement in the year (2008 £5 Om) in respect of conditional share allocatons the calculation
of which included an estimate of the number of those shares allocated subject to non-market performance conditions that would vest based upon the
probable achievernent against the performance conditions

43 Related party transactions

Transactions and balances with joint ventures and assoaated undertakings

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed i this note Detalls of transactions

between the group and other related parties are disclosed below All transactions with related parties are entered inte in the normal course of
business

Joint ventures Jont ventures Associates Associates
2009 2008 2009 2
£Em m £m £m
Transactions
Revenue 94 150 - -
Balances
Amourits due to related parties
Creditors - - 06 05
Amounts due from related parties
Debtors 39 1] 13 44

Revenue includes fees of £6 6m (2008 £9 Im) charged 1o Bndgend Custodial Services Ltd and fees of £2 8m (2008 £59m) charged 10 STC
{Mikon Keynes) Ltd No expense has been recogrised in the year for bad and doubtiul debts in respect of amounts owed by related parties
Detarls of pnnapal jont ventures and associated undertakings are shown in notes 2| and 22 respectively

a7
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43 Related party transactions continued

Transactions and balances with jomnt ventures and assoctated undertakings continued

The group has a legal nterest in a number of joint ventures and jont arrangements where the economic interest was dwested by the Global Solutions
group prior 1o 1ts acquisition by the group The significant transactions with these entities are

2009

Servicesisales 1o

m

White Horse Education Partnership Limited 16
Integrated Accommadation Services plc 423
Fazakerley Pnson Services Limited 84
Onley Prison Services Limited 130
ECD Cookham Wood Limited 55
ECD Onley Limited 10.9
Stratus Integrated Services Limited 74
UK Court Seraces (Manchester) Linuted 1.8
East London Lift Company Limited 12
Heatth Improvement Partnership (Wolverhampton City & Walsall) Ltd [ )
Brent Harrow & Hillingdon LIFT Company Lid 05
Bexdey Bromley & Greenwich LIFT Company Ltd 0.4
131

Transactions with post-employment benefit schemes

Details of transactions with the group s post-employment benefit schemes are provided in note 34 Unpaxd contnbutions owed to schemes amounted
to £1 6m at 31 December 2009 {2008 £1 2m)

Remuneration of key management personnel

The group s key management personnel are deemed to be the non-executive drectors and those indmduals indluding the executive directors whose
remuneration 18 determined by the Remuneration Committee Their remuneration 15 set out below Further information about the remuneration of
ndradual directors ncluded withun key management persannel s prowmded n the audited part of the Directors’ remuneraion report on pages 5310 55

2009 2008

[4 £

Shortterm employee benefits 5,721,186 5236982
Post-employment benefits 504,608 490996
Other long-term benefits 28,631 31055
Share-based payment 1,488,363 2735153
Total 8,742,788 8494185

44 Events after the balance sheet date
No significant post-balance sheet events have affected the group since 31 December 2009

45 Significant investments

The compames iisted below are those which were part of the group at 31 December 2009 and which in the opinion ofthe directors, signficantly
affected the group's results and net assets during the year The directors consider that those compantes not listed are not significant in relauon to the
group as a whole

The principal actwities of the companies listed below are indicated according to the following key

Secure solutions S
Cash solutions C
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Country of Ulumate
Product segment nCorporauon ownership

Subsidiary undertalangs
GA4S Australia (Pty) Lirnited S Australia 100%
G435 Custodial Services {Pty) Limited S Austraha 100%
G4S Secunty Services AG S Austria 100%
G4S Secunty Services SA/NV S Belgum H00%
(45 Cash Services (Belgum) SA/NV C Belgium 100%
GA4S Cash Selutions (Canada) Limited C Canada 100%
G4S Secunty Services (Canada) Limited 5 Canada 100%
Wackenhut de Colombia SA S+C Colombia 100%
G4S Secunty Services A/S 5 Denmark 00%
G45 Utiity Services (UK) Limited (formerty AccuRead Limited) S England 100%
G45S Aviation Services (UK) Limited S England 100%
(G4S Cash Centres (UK) Limned C England 100%
G45 Cash Solutions (UK} Limited c England 100%
G4S Intermational UK Limited C England 100%
(45 Care and Justice Services (UK} Limited ) England H00%
(G4S Secure Selutions (UK) Limited S England 100%
G4S Technology Limited ) England 100%
Group 4 Total Secunty Limited 5 England 100%
(G4S Integrated Services (LK) Limited ) England 100%
AS GA4S Eesti 5+C Estonia 100%
G45 Secunty Services Oy 5 Finland 100%
(45 Cash Selutions S A c Greece 100%
(G4S Keszpenzlogisztikal Kft S+C Hungary 100%
G4S Secunty Services (Indi) Pvt Lwnited '3 S India 40%
G45 Cash Services (Ireland) Limited c Ireland 100%
(45 Secunty Services {Ireland) Linited S treland 100%
Hashmira Company Limited S Israel 9%
G4S Secunty Serwices (Kenya) Limited S+C Kenya 100%
G45 Secunty Services SA StC Luxembourg 100%
Safeguards Secuncor Sdn Bhd? S+C Malaysia 100%
Group 4 Secuncor Cash Services BV C Netherlands 100%
Group 4 Securicor Beheer BY s Netherlands 100%
(45 Secunty Services AS S+C Norway 100%
(G45 Cash Services SRL c Romania 100%
al Maja! Service Master Co Limited® $  Saud Arabaz 49%
(45 Cash Services (SA) (Pty) Limited C Sauth Afnca 50%
G4S Secunty Senvices (SA) (Pty) Linuted ) South Afnca 74%
(545 Cash Serwices (Svenge) AB C Sweden 100%
(345 Secunity Serwices (Svenge) AB S Sweden 100%
ArmorGroup North Amenca, Inc S usa 100%
(G4S Youth Services LLC S USA 100%
RONCO Consutting Corporaton S USA 100%
The Wackenhut Corporation S USA t00%
Wackenhut Services, Inc S UsA 100%

109



G4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2009

e
Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

45 Significant investments continued

Product Country of Ultmate
segment incorporation awnership
Joint ventures (see note 21)
Bridgeng Custodial Services Limited? S England 59%
STC (Mitton Keynes) Uimited S England 50%
Bloemfonten Correcuonal Contracts (Pty) Limrted* S South Afrca 20%
Assocated undertakings (see note 22)
Space Gateway Support LLC S USA 6%

1 45 Securtty Services (India) Pvz. Limited has 2 year end of 31 March

2 Safeguards Secuncor Sdn Bhd has 3 year end of 30 une

3 Bndgend Custodal Services Limeted bas a year end of 30 September

4 Eloemfnen Correcbonal Contracts {Pty) Limaed nas a year end of 30 September

5 By vrtue of shareholder agreements the group has the power 1o gavern the financial and operaung policies of G435 Secunty Servces (Inda) Pvt Lm tegand al Maja) Service Master so as1o
obtan e perefits from thewr actvities These are therefore consobdated as full subsidianes.
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At 31 December 2009
009 2008
Notes im £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets (b 99 82
Investments © 3,I409 2,6121
3,1508 26213
Current assets
Debtors @) 2,6154 32408
Cash at bank and in hand 12 2 93
21,6276 32501
|
Creditors ~ amounts falling due within one year ‘
Bank overdraft {unsecured) nre) (1222)
Borrowings {unsecured) (€ (90 8) -
Other creditors © (3,215 5) (3463 6)
(3,424 2) {3,585 8)
Net current habilities (796 6) (3357)
Total assets less current habilities 2,35412 2,2856
Creditors — amounts faling due after more than one year
Barrowings (unsecured) (e (1,587 5) (15479
Other creditors " (713) (159
(1,594 8) {1 563 8)
Provisions for llabilimies and charges ) (12) 20
Net assets 758 2 7198
Capital and reserves
Called up share caprtal kj 352.6 3524
Share premium and reserves 0 405 6 1677
Equity shareholders’ funds 758 2 7198

The parent company financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorsed for ssue on |5 March 2010

They were signed on its bebeif 57
G A
Nick Buckles revor Dighton

Director Director
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Parent company reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

For the year ended 3 December 2009

2009 2008

Lm Lm

Retained profit for the year 128 3 264
Changes i far value of hedging denvatives 61 528
Shares issued 17 2768
Dmdends declared (94 2) (750}
Own shares purchased %9 (88)
Equity-settled transactions 71 50
Tax on equity movements (7 {148)
Net increase in shareholders funds jg 4 2625
Opening equity sharehotders funds 7198 4573
Closing equity shareholders funds 758 2 7198




G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009
Orverview

Business review

Governance

Financial statements 13

Notes to the parent company financial statements Shareholder n‘ormation

a Significant accounting polcies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the company are presented as required by the Comparies Act 2006 They have been prepared under the
histonical cost corvention except for the revaluauon of certan financial nstruments and i accordance with 2pplicable Uniied Kingdom Accounting
Standards (UK GAAP)

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern bass, notwithstanding the company s net cumrent liabiliies which the directors
believe 1o be appropnate given the amounts owed are mainly 10 wholly controlled subsidianes

Exemptions
Under section 408 of the Comparnes Act 2006 the company 1s exempt from the requirement to present 15 own profit and kess account

The comparty has taken advantage of the exernption from prepaning 2 cash flow statemnent under the terms of FRS | Cosh Flow Statements
The cash flows of the company are included within 1ts consolidated finanaal statements

The company 1s also exempt under the terms of the revised FRS 8 Related Party Disdosures from disclosing related party transactions with
wholly-owned subsidianes within the group

The consolidated financial statements of the group contain financal instrument disclosures and comply wath FRS 29 Financat Instruments. Disclosures
Consequently the company has taken advantage of certain exempuions n FRS 29 from the requirement to present separate financial instrument
disclosures for the company

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any prowision for impairment  Tangble fixed assets are depreciated on a
straght-line basis over their expected economic kfe Short leasehold property (under 50 years) 1s depreciated over the Ife of the lease Equipment and
vehicles are depreciated over periods up te a maximum of ten years

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset svestments, which compnise investments in subsidiary undertakings, are stated at cost and reviewed for mparment (f there are indicators
that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Finanaal instruments
Financral assets and financial labiliues are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

* Externol debtors
Debtars do not carry interest and are stated initially at their far value The company provides for bad debts based upon an analysis of those that
are past due in accordance with lacal conditions and past default expenence

*  Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts
Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts comprise cash balances and call deposits

* Interest-beaning borrowings
Interest-bearing bank overdrafts loans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds received net of direct issue costs Finance charges
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are recognised in the profit and loss account on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method

» External creditors
Credntors are not interest-bearing and are stated initially at their fair value

+ Amounts owed toffror subsidiary undertakings
Amounts owed toffrom subsidiary undertakings bear interest at prevailing market rates

»  Equaty instruments
Equity nstruments issued by the company are recorded at the value of proceeds recened, net of direct ssue costs

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and a rellable esumate of the
amount ¢an be made

Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with s treasury policy the company only holds or issues dernvateve financial instruments 10 manage the group’s exposure to financial
nsk not for trading purpeses Such financial nsk includes the interest nsk on the group s variable-rate borrowangs the fair value risk on the groups
fixed-rate borrowings commodity ask in relauon to its diesel consumption and foreign exchange sk on transactions on the translaton of the
groups resufts and on the translauon of the group's net assets measured in foregn currencies The company manages these nsks through a range
of dervative financial nstruments including nterest rate swaps fixed rate agreements comunodity swaps commodity options ferward foreign
exchange contracts and currency swaps
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a Significant accounting policies continued

Derivative financial mstruments and hedge accounting conitinued

Derwvative financial nstruments are recogrised in the balance sheet as finanoial assets or habilities at far value The gain or loss on remeasurement to
far value 15 recognised iImmediately in the profit and loss account, unless they qualify for hedge accounting Where dervatives do qualfy for hedge
accounting the treatment of any resultant gan or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged as described below

*+  Farvaiue hedge
The change in the fair value of both the hedging instrument and the refated porton of the hedged item 15 recognised Immediately in the profit
and loss account

+ Cash flow hedge
The change in the fair value of the portion of the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effectve hedge x recognised in equity and
subsequently recycled to the profit and loss account when the hedged cash flow impacts the profit and loss account The ineffective portion of
the far value of the hedging instrument is recognised immedately in the profit and loss account

Leases

Annual rentals payable or recevable under operating leases are charged or credited to the profit and loss account on a straght-ine basis over the
lease term

Forelgn currencies

The financial staterments of the company are presenited in sterling 1ts funcuonal currency Transacuons in currencies other than stering are translated
at the rates of exchange prevading on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date monetary assets and lablities which are denominated
in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevaling on that date Non-menetary assets and habiities carmed at far value which are denominated
in other currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined Non-monetary rems measured at historical
cost denominated in other currencies are not retranslated Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are included in the profit and loss account

Taxation

Currert tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacied or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all material trming differences that have onginated, but not reversed by the balance sheet date Deferred tax
15 measured on a non-discounted basis at tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods In which the tming differences reverse based on tax
rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised where their recovery 1s considered
more likely than not in that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of underlying timing differences can be deducted

Pensions

The company participates n multi-employer pension schemes in the UK which prowide benefits based on final pensionable pay The company 1s
unable to dentify its share of the schemes’ assets and liabilities on a consistent and reasonable basis In accordance with FRS 17 Retirerment Bencfits,
the company treats the schemes as if they were defined contribution schemes and recogrises charges as and when contributions are due to the
scheme Details of the schemes are included in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements

Share.based payments

The company grants equity-settled share-based payments to certan employees The far value of share based payments 15 determined at the date
of grant and expensed with a corresponding ncrease in equity on a straight-ne basis over the vesting period, based on the company's estimate

of the shares that will eventually vest The amount expensed 1s adjusted over the vesting period for changes in the estmate of the number of shares
that will eventually vest, save for changes resulting from any market-related performance condrtions

The far value of share-based payments granted in the form of apuions 1s measured by the use of the: Black-Scholes valuation technique adjusted for
future dwidend receipts and for any market-related performance condiions When share options are exercised ihe resulung entres are to increase
share capital and share prermium for the new shares 1ssued

Dividends

Dividends are recagnised as distrbutions te equity helders in the period in which they are paid Divdends proposed but not declared are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financal guarantees

The company enters inte financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the ndebtedness of other companies within the group The company treats
such contracts as a contingent liability unless and until such tme as it becornes probable that the company will be required to make a payment
under the guarantee

Own shares held by employee benefit trust

Transactions of the company-sponsored employee benefit trust are included in the parent company financial statements In parucular the trusts
purchases of shares in the company are debited directly to equrty
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Land and Equipment
buildings and vehicles Total
&m £Em £m

Cost
At | January 2009 25 83 108
Additions at cost 07 16 23
At 31 Decemnber 2009 32 g9 131
Depreciation
At | January 2009 {rn (15) 26)
Charge for the year 4 ©2 ()]
At 31 Decemnber 2009 (15 (7 32
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 17 82 99
At 3| December 2008 14 68 82

The net book value of land and buildings comprises short leasehold buildings (under 50 years)

¢ Fixed asset investments

The following are ncluded in the net book value of fixed asset nvestments

Total
Subsidiary undertalings im
Shares at cost
At | January 2009 26131
Additions 13757
Disposals (8479)
At 31 December 2009 3,140 9

The increase in carrying value of subsidary undertakings in the year 1s manly due to a recrganisaton of the legal structure in respect of some of the
company s subsidianes in which transfers were reflected at market values Fuil detalls of significant investments held by the parent carpany and the

group are detaled n note 45 to the consoldated financial statements

d Debtors
2009 2008
Lrm £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,489 9 30013
Other debtors 538 552
Prepayments and accrued income 24 14
Dervative financial Instruments at fair vaive 69 6 1829
Total debtors 2,615 4 32408

Included within derrvative finanoal instruments at fair value 1s £57 6m due after maore than one year (2008 £143 ém) See note (g) for further details

Included in other debtors s £70m (2008 £nil) with regard 1o deferred tax comprised as follows

1009 2008

£ £m

Accelerated capital allowances (05) -
tmployee benefits 23 -
Changes in farr value of hedging denvatives 52 -

Total deferred tax
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d Debtors continued

The reconciliation of deferred tax balances s as follows

Totat
£m
At | January 2009 (78)
Charged to profit and loss 82
Charged to equity in relation to changes in far value of hedging derivauves (7
Transferred to current tax 83
At 3] December 2009 70
e Borrowings (unsecured)
The unsecured borrowings are in the following currencies
1009 2008
Lm fm
Sterling 5067 940
Euro 3056 3490
US dollar 8660 1,104 9
Total unsecured borrowings | 6783 1,547 %9
The payment profite of the unsecured borrowings is as follows
2009 2008
fm im
Repayable within one year 20 8 -
Repayable within two to five years 5841 6964
Repayable after five years 1,003 4 8515
Total unsecured borrowings 1,678 3 1,5479
Undrawn committed facilities mature as follows
2009 2008
£m £m
Within two to five years 6147 3504
Total undrawn committed facilies 6147 3504

Borrowings consist of £361 ém of floating rate bank loans (2008 £646 0m) and £1 116 7m of fixed rate loan notes (2008 £90i Sm) Bank overdrafts
bank loans, loan notes issued in July 2008 and May 2009 are stated at amortised cost. The loan notes issued in March 2007 are stated at amortised
cost recalculated at an effective interest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a far value hedge relatonstup The directors believe
the farr value of the company s bark overdrafts bank loans and the loan notes issued in March 2007 calculated from market prices, 2pproximates to
their book value US$265m (£164 Im) of the loan notes issued in July 2008 have a fair value market gain of £299m The farr value of the remaining

notes approximates 1o their book value

Borrowing at floating rates exposes the company to cash flow interest rate sk The management of this nisk 15 detaled in note ()

There were no financial labilities upon which no interest 1s pard

f Other creditors
2009 2008
fm Im
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors 18 bl
Amourts owed to group undertakings 3,156 | 33838
Other taxauon and socal security costs 20 18
Other creditors 46 127
Accruals and deferred income 81 256
Derwatve financial instruments at fair vatue e 86
Total creditors — amounts falling due within one year 32155 34636
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Cenvatve financiat instruments at far value 73 159
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f Other creditors continued
Included in other creditors is £ril (2008 £7 8m) with regard to deferred tax compnsed as foliows
2009 2008
im im
Accelerated capital allowances - 09
Employee benefits - 29
Changes in farr value of hedging dervatives - 98
Total deferred tax - 78
See note {d) for the reconciliation of deferred tax balances
g Derivative financial instruments
The carrying values of dernative financial ssiruments at the balance sheet date are presented below
Assets Assets Liabilities Liabites
2009 2008 z00% 2008
im im im £m
Forward foreign exchange contracts 0l 286 01l 286
Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 299 609 - -
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - 186 248
Interest rate swaps designated as far value hedges 391 923 - -
Commeodity swaps 05 1l 05 I
6% 6 1829 1912 545
Amounts falling due after more than one year (57 4) (143 6) (73) (159)
Amaunts falling due within one year 120 393 e 386

Dervative finzncial nstrurnents are stated at far value based upon markat prices where avalable or otherwise on discounted cash flow valuatons

The mark to market valuauon of the denvatives has decreased by £78 Om (2008 ncrease £1309m) dunng the year

The interest rate cross currency and commodity swaps which qualify as cash flow hedges have the ollowing maturiies

Assets

Assels

Liabilities

Liablives

2009 2008 1009 2008

m £m im £m

Within one year 05 I 30 32

tn the second year - - S8 40

tn the third year - - 80 78

In the fourth year T2 - 18 100

In the fifth year or greater 227 609 05 09

Total carrying value of cash flow hedges 304 620 191 259
Projected settlement of cash flows (including accrued interest) associated with derivatives that are cash flow hedges

Assets Assets Liabilities Liabihues

2009 2008 2009 008

tm fm Em £m

Within one year 08 34 133 106

In the second year 03 16 61 101

In the third year 04 6 1 & 43

In the fourth year 79 té - 14

In the fifih year or greater 213 546 - ~

628 2o 264

Total cash flows 307
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h Financial risk

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business in many currencies The group presents its consolidated financial statements in sterling and 1t 15 1n consequence subject
to foregn exchange risk due to the translation of the results and net assets of its foreign subsidianes The company therefore hedges a substanual
port:on of the groups exposure 1o fluctuations n the translation into sterling of its overseas net assess by holding loans i foreign currencies
Transtation adjusuments ansing on the translation of foreign currency loans are recognised in the profit and loss account

The company no longer uses foreign exchange contracts 1o hedge the residuzl portion of net assets not hedged by way of loans This foreign exchange
hedging program was terminated in February 2009 The company believes cash flow should not be put at risk by these instrumenits 0 order to
preserve the carrying value of net assets given the changed liquidity environment post the global credrt cnsis

Cross currency swaps wath a nominal value of £134 2m were arranged to hedge the foregn currency sk on US$265m of the US Private Placement
notes ssued n July 2008, effectrvely fixang the sterling value on this portion of debt at an exchange rate of t 9750

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

Borrowing at floaning rates as descrnibed in note 25 to the consolidated financial staternents exposes the group 1o cash fiow nierest rate rsk, which
the company manages within policy imits approved by the directors Interest rate swaps and, to a lirited extent, forward rate agreements are utihsed
10 fix the nterest rate on a proportion of borrowings on a reducng scale over forward periods Up to a maximum of five years At 31 December 2009
the nomunat value of such contracts was £170 3m (in respect of US dollar) (2008 £246 9m) and £2177m (in respect of euro) (2008 £27t 7m), therr
weighted average interest rate was 5 0% (US dollar) (2008 50%) and 3 7% (euro) (2008 38%) and ther weighted average penod to maturity was
two and 2 quarter years All the interest rate hedging instruments are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements i therr fair
value have been deferred in equity

The US Private Placement market is predormmnantly a fixed rate market with investors looking for a fixed rate retum over the Iife of the loan notes
At the time of the first 1ssue in March 2007 the company was comfortable with the proportion of floating rate exposure not hedged by interest

rate swaps and therefore rather than 1ake on a higher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floating swaps efiectively converting the fixed
coupon on the Private Placement to a fleating rate Following tha swaps the resulting average coupon on the US Private Placement is LIBOR + 60bps
These swaps have been documented as fair value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed interest loan notes, with the movements in theur fair
value posted 1o profit and loss at the same time as the movernent n the fair value of the hedged item

The interest on the US Private Placement notes 1ssued in July 2008 was kept at fixed rate

Commodity risk and commodity swaps

The group's prinaipal commedity nsk relates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices particularly affecting its cash solutions businesses The comparty
acts as a market mtermediary, arranging commodity swaps and commedrty options with its relationship banks with back to back deals on identical
terms with 1ts subsidiaries to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the assooated cost volatility

Counterparty credit risk
The company's strategy for credit nisk management s to set mnimum credit ratings for counterpartes and moniior these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions, the policy imits the aggregate credit risk assigned to a counterparty The utihisation of a credit kit 1s calculated by
applying a weighting to the notional value of each transaction outstanding with each counterparty based on the type and duraton of the transaction
The total mark to market value outstanding with each counterparty is closely monitored For short-term transactions (under one year), at inception of
the transaction the financial counterparty must be investment grade rated by ether the Standard & Poors or Moodys ratng agencies For long-term
transactions, at Inception of the iransacbion, the financal counterparty must have a mirumum rating of AHAI from Standard & Poors or Moody's

Treasury transactions are dealt with the company s refationship banks, all of which have a strong investment grade raung At 31 December 2009 the
largest two counterparty exposures related to treasury transactions were £276m and £14 Im and both were held with institutions with Jong-term
Moody s credst ratings of Aa3 These exposures represent 40% (2008 40%) and 20% (2008 24%) of the carrying values of dervative financial
instruments, with a far value gain at the balance sheet date Both of these banks had significant loans cutstanding to G4S plc at 31 December 2009

The company participates in the group's mul-currency notional pooling cash management system with a wholly-owned subsidiary of a Aa3 rated
bank. There 15 legal nght of set off under the pooling agreement

i Provisions for liabilities and charges

Onerous

contracts

£m

At | January 2009 20
Utilisation of provisions (08)
At 31 December 2009 12

The onerous contracts provision comprises a provision aganst future liabilises for all properues sub-let at a shortfall and for long-term idle properties
The prowision 1s based on the value of future net cash outflows relaung to rent rates service charges and costs of marketing the properties
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j Share premium and reserves

Share Profit and Own
premium lass account shares Total
im im im £m
At | January 2009 2559 1236 {118) 3677
Retained profit - 1283 - 1283
Changes in fair value of hedging denvatives - 61 - 61
Shares issued 22 - - 22
Drvidends declared - 942 _ ©42)
Own shares purchased - - {99 99
Own shares awarded - {35) 95 -
Equity-settled transactons - 71 - 714
Tax on equity movements - (17 - (7
At 3| December 2009 2581 1597 (122) 405 6
k Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases which expire as follows
2009 2008
Lm £m
Within one year 01 0l
In the second 1o fifth years inclusive 11 04
After more than five years 04 08
Total operating lease commitments 16 13

| Auditor’s remuneration

Fees paid to KPMG Audit Plc and tts asscciates for non-audit services to the company ttself are not disclosed in its individual accounts because the
company s consoldated financiat staternents are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

m Staff costs and employees

2009 2008

Number Number

The average monthly number of employees of the cornpany during the year was 314 120
Total staff costs including directors emoluments, were as follows

2009 2008

£m m

Wages and salanes 375 256

Social securty costs 28 24

Pension costs 21 |7

Total staff costs 42 4 297

n Share-based payments

The group has two types of equity-settled share-based payment schernes in place (1) share options previously held by employees over Secuncor plc
shares and rolled over 1o G45 ple shares with the acquisition of that business on 19 July 2004 and (2) conduonal allocations of G4S plc shares
Disclosures relevant to the company are presented within note 42 1o the consolidated finanaal statements

o Related party transactions

Certain disclosures relevant to the company are presented within note 43 (o the consehidated finanoial statements Company transactions with group
undertakings primarily consist of royalty charges central service charges group insurance recharges and loan transactions

The only materal transaction with a non-wholly owned group undertaking duning the year was a £36 2m loan repayment from G4S Secunity Services
(SA) {Pty) Limited with the outstanding loan recoverable balance at 31 December 2009 being £0 2m (2008 £36 4m)
p Contingent liabilities

To help secure cost effectve finance facilities for its subsidiaries, the compary ssues guarantees to some of its finance providers At 31 December
2009 guarantees totaling £3873m (2008 £649 5m) were in place 1n support of such factities

The company 1s iIncluded in a group registration for UK VAT purposes and is therefore jointly and severally lable for all other UK group companies
unpaid debts in this connection The kability of the LUK group registration at 31 December 2009 totalled £12 Im (2008 £25 8y}

Ine
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120 Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document or the action you should take, you should immediately consult
your stockbraoker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent professional adviser authorised pursuant to the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares in G4S ple, please send this
notice and the accompanying documents to the person through whom the sale or transfer was effected so that it can be
passed on to the purchaser or transferee

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General iMeeting of GA45S plc will be held at lronmongers' Hall, Barbican London EC2Y 8AA on Friday 28 May
2010 at 2 00pm in order to consider and 1f thought fit to pass the following Resolutions

Resolutions | to 9 and 12 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions Resolutions 10, 11, 13 and 14 will be proposed as special resalutions

I To recerve the financaf statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the reports of the directors and auditor thereon
To receve and approve the Directors' Remuneration Report contained in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2009

To confirm and declare dvidends

To re-elect Alf Duch-Pedersen, a director (and member of the Nomination Commttee) who 15 retinng by rotauon

Te re-elect Lord Condon, 2 director (and member of the Audit Nomination and Remunerauon Commntees) who 5 reunng by rotation

To re-elect Nick Buckles a director who s retinng by rotation

To re-elect Mark Eliott a director (and member of the Nominatien ang Remuneration Committees) who 1s retiring by rotation

@ ~ o s W N

To re-appoint KPMG Audit Ple as avditor of the Company from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next general meeting at
which accounts are lad before the shareholders and to authonse the directors to fix ther remuneration

9 That the directors be and are hereby generally and uncondiionally authonsed pursuant to and in accordance wath secuon 551 of the Comparues
Act 2006 ( the 2006 Act ) to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the company or grant nghts to subscnbe for, or convert
any secunty «ito shares in the Company

(9 up to an aggregate nominal amcunt of £117,540,000 and

(1) compnsing equity secunties (as defined in section 560 of the 2006 Act) up to a further aggregate norinal amount of £117 540 000 provided
that they are offered by way of a mghtts 1ssue to holders of ordinary shares on the register of members at such record date(s) as the directors
may determine where the equity securities respecuvely attnbutable to the interests of the ordinary shareholders are proportionate (as nearly
as may be practicable) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held or deemed to be held by them on any such record date(s) subject to
such exclusions or other arrangernents as the directors may deem necessary or expedient 1o deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements,
record dates, shares represented by depositary receipts legal or practical problems ansing under the laws of any territory or the requirements
of any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter

prowided that this authonty shall expire on the date of the next Annual General Meetng of the Company save that the Company shall be enutled
to make offers or agreements before the expiry of such authonty which would or might require relevant securibes to be allotted after such expiry
and the directors shall be entitled to allot relevant securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if this authonty had not expired and all
unexpired authonties granted previously to the directors to allot relevant securties under section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 ( the 1985 Act' )
shall cease to have effect at the conclusion of this Annual Genera! Meeting (save to the extent that the same are exerasable pursuant to section
554(7) of the 2006 Act by reason of any offer or agreement made prior 1o the date of this resolution which would or rught require shares 1o be
allotted or nghts to be granted on or after that date)

10 That the directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to section 570 of the 2006 Act, subject to the passing of Resolution 9 above 10 allot
equity secunties (as defined in secton 560 of the 2006 Act) for cash pursuant Lo the authority conferred by Resolution 9 zbove as if section 561
of the 2006 Act did not apply to any such allotment prowvided that this power shall be imited to

() the allotment of equity securtties in connection with an offer or 1ssue of equity secunities {but in the case of the authority granted under
paragraph (n) of Resolution 9 above, by way of nghts issue only) to orin favour of the holders of shares on the register of members at such
record date(s) as the directors may determine where the equity secunities respectively attnbutable to the interests of the shareholders are
proporuonate {as nearly as may be pracucable) to the respectve numbers of shares held by them on any such record date(s), but subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient in relaton to fractional entitlements treasury shares
record dates, shares represented by depositary receipts legal or pracucal problems ansing under the laws of any terntory or the requirements
of any relevant regutatory body or stock exchange or any other matter; and

() the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (1) above) of equity secunties pursuant o the authonty granted under Resolution 9{1)
above up to 2 maximum nominal amount of £17 630000,

and shall expire on the expiry of the general authonity conferred by Resolution 9 above unless previously renewed varied or revoked by the
Company in general meeting, save that the company shall be entitled to make offers or agreements before the expiry of such power which woutd
or might require equity secunties to be allotted or treasury shares to be sold after such expiry and the directors shall be entitled to allot equity
securtties or sell treasury shares pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired

All previous unutiised authonties under section 95 of the 1985 Act shalt cease to have effect at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
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Il That the Company be and 15 hereby generally and unconditionally autheonised for the purposes of section 701 of the 2006 Act, to make market
purchases (within the meaning of section 693(4) of the 2006 Act) of ordinary shares of 25p each in the capiial of the Company on such terms and
in such manner as the directors may from time to time determine provided that

(1} the maximurn nurmber of such shares which may be purchased s 141 000000
(1) the rminimum price which may be paid for each such share 15 25p (exclusve of all expenses),

() the maximum price which may be paid for each such share 15 an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for an
ardinary share in the Company as denved from the London Siock Exchange Dally Official List for the five business days immediately preceding
the day on which such share 1s contracted to be purchased (exclusive of expenses) and

() this authority shall, unless previously revaked or vaned, exprre at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be beld in
2011 (except in relation to the purchase of such shares the contract for which was entered into before the expiry of this authority and which
might be executed wholly or partly after such expiry}

12 That in accordance with sections 366 and 367 of the 2006 Act the Company and all companies which are subsidianes of the Company during the
penod when this resolution 12 has effect be and are hereby unconditionally authorised to

{) make polrical donations to political parties or iIndependent election candidates not exceeding £50,000 n total
{1 make pelitical donations to political orgarisations other than pofitical parties not exceeding £50,0001n total, and
{m) incur political expendrure not exceeding £50 00C in total,

{as such terms are defined in the 2006 Act) during the period beginnng with the date of the passing of this resolution and ending on 27 November
2011 or if sooner at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2011 provided that the authorised sum referred
to4n paragraphs (), (1) and (i) above may be comprised of one or more amounts I different currencies which, for the purposes of calculating the
said sum, shall be converted into pounds sterling at the exchange rate published in the London edition of the Financial Times on the date on which
the relevant donation 15 made or expenditure incurred {or the first business day thereafter) or  earlier on the day n which the Company enters
INto any contract or undertaking in relation 1o the same

13 That, with immediate effect

() the Company s Articles of Assoaation be amended by deleting all the prowisions of the Company s Memorandum of Assocration which by
virtue of section 28 of the 2006 Act are to be treated as prowsions of the Company s Articles of Assocation, and

(1) the Articles of Association produced to the meeting and inrualled by the chairman of the meeting for the purposes of identification be adopted
as the Arudes of Asscaation of the Company in substitution for, and to the exclusion of the Company's existing Articles of Association

14 That a general meeting of the Company, other than an Annual General Meeting may be called on not less than 14 dear days’ notice

By order of the board

Peter David
Secretary The Manor
24 March 2010 Manor Royal
Crawley
West Sussex RHIO 2UN
Company No 4992207
Notes

Members are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of their rights to attend and to speak and vote on their behalf at the meeting

A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation ta the Annual General Meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to exercse the
rghts attached to a different share or shares held by that shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company A proxy form which
may be used ta make such appointment and give proxy INstruct:ons accompanies this notice

2 To be valid, any proxy form or other instrument appainting a proxy must be receved by post or {during nermal business hours only) by hand at
Capita Regsstrars, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU, in each case na later than 2 00pm on 26 May 2010

3 The return of a completed proxy form other such instrument or any CREST Proxy Instruction (2s descnbed in paragraphs 8 and 9 below} will not
prevent a shareholder attending the Annual General Meeting and voting in persan if he/she washes to do so

4 Any person to whom this notice 15 sent who 1s a person nommated under section 146 of the Comparies Act 2006 to enjoy mformation rights
(a "Nominated Person”) may, under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom hefshe was nominated, have a nght to be
appointed {or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for the Annual General Meeting if 2 Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment
right or does not wish to exercise it hefshe may, under any such agreement have a nght to give nstructions to the shareholder as to the exerose of
voting nghts

5 The statement of the rights of shareholders in refation to the appointment of proxies in paragraph | above does not apply to Nominated Persons
The rghts descnibed n this paragraph can only be exerased by shareholders of the Company

&é To be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (and for the purpose of the determination by the Company of the votes they may
cast) shareholders must be registered in the Register of Members of the Company at 5 30pm on 26 May 2010 {or in the event of any adjournment
on the date which 15 two working days before the tme of the adjourned meeting) Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant deadline
shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend and vote at the meeting

7 Asat 23 March 2010 (being the last business day prior to the publication of this Notice) the Company's issued share caprial consists of | 410 568 63%
ordinary shares, carrying one vote each Therefore, the total voting nghts in the Company as at 23 March 2010 are 1 410 568 639
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8 CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appaintrment service may do so by using the
procedures described in the CREST Manual (avallable via www euroclearcom/CREST) CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored
members and those CREST members who have appointed a voung service provider(s) should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s) who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf

9 Inorderfera proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid the appropriate CREST message (3 CREST Proxy
Instruction ') must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited's speaifications, and must conian the information
required for such nstrucyon, as described in the CREST Manual The message regardless of whether it constitutes the appontment of a proxy or
15 an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must i order to be vahd be transmitted so as to be receved by the
issuer's agent {ID RAIQ) by 2 00pm on 26 May 2010 For this purpose the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the time
stamp appled to the message by the CREST Application Host) from which the issuer’s agent 1s able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST
in the manner prescnbed by CREST After this trne any change of nstructions to proxies appeointed through CREST should be communicated to
the appointee through other means

10 CREST members and where applicable, ther CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that Eurodear UK & Ireland Limited does
not make avallable speciai procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system timings and mitations will therefore apply in relation
to the nput of CREST Proxy Instructions tt is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take {or if the CREST member 15 a CREST
persorzl member or sponsored member or has apponted a voting service provider, 1o procure that his or her CREST spansor or voting service
pravider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular tme
In this cennection CREST members and, where applicable, ther CREST sponsors or voting system providers are referred, n particular to those
sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical lmitations of the CREST system and timings

Il The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations 2001

12 Any corporation which 1s a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a
member provided that they do not de so in relation to the same shares

I3 Under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 members meeting the threshold requiremérits set out In that section have the right to require the
Company to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating 1o (1) the audit of the Company s accounts (including the audrtors
report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be lad before the Annual General Meeting, or (1) any circumnstance connected with an audrtor
of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reparts were laid In accordance with section 437
of the Companies Act 2006 The Company may not require the sharebolders requesting any such website publication to pay rts expenses in
complying with sections 527 or 528 of the Comparues Act 2006 Where the Company s required to place a statement on a website under section
527 of the Companies Act 2008, it must forward the statement to the Company s auditor not later than the tme when 1t makes the statement
avalable on the website The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any statement that the Company has been
required under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website

t4 Any member attending the meeting has the nght to ask questions The Cempany must cause to be answered any such question relating to the
business being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given if (3) to do so would nterfere unduly with the preparation for the
meeting or nvolve the disclosure of confidential nformation (b) the answer has already been given on a website n the form of an answer to a
question, or (¢} 1t 1s undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered

I5 A copy of this notice, and other information required by section 311A of the Comparies Act 2006 can be found at www gds com

16 A copy of the current articles of assocation and the proposed new arucles of association that reflect the amendments proposed by Resclution {3
will be avallable for nspection during normal business hours (Saturdays Sundays and public holidays excepted) at the offices of G4S pic
The Manor, Manor Royal Crawley, West Sussex RHIG 9UN up until the close of the meeting Copies will alsa be avalable at the offices of Herbert
Smith LLF, Exchange House Primrose Street London EC2A 2HS up until the close of the meeting and on the company s website at wwwgds com
A copy will also be avalable at lronmongers Hall Barbican, London EC2Y 8AA from 15 mirutes prior to the meeting until its conclusion

17 Any electronic address or web sie address 15 provided in this Notice of Meeting solely for the purpose stated expressly herein and may not be
used te communicate with the Company other than for such purpose
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The board of G45 plc considers the resolutons set out in the Nouce of Annual General Meeting are likely to promote the success of the company
and are in the best Interests of the company and rts shareholders as a whole The directors unanimously recommend that you vote in favour of the
resolutions as they intend to do in respect of their own beneficial holdings

Explanatory notes in relation to certain of the business to be conducied at the AGM are set out below

I Authority to allot shares {Resolution 9)
Resolution 9 seeks shareholder approval for the directors 1o be authonsed to allot shares

£t the last AGM of the company held on 26 May 200% the directors were given authorty to allot ordinary shares in the capital of the company up
to a maxarmum nominal amount of £234,700,000 representing approximately 66% of the company s then issued ordinary share caprtal This authority
expires at the end of this year's AGM Of this amourt 469400 000 shares {representing approximately 33% of the company's issued ordinary share
caprtal) could only be aliotted pursuant 1o a rights Issue

Reselution 9 will, if passed, renew this autherity to allot on broadly the same terms as last years resclution but the resolution has been updated to
reflect that authonty 15 being gven under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 {the 2006 Act”) (rather than section 80 of the Companies Act
1985) and to reflect a change 1 the language used in the 2006 Act This change does not affect the substance of these resolutions

The board considers 1t appropnate that the directors be granted a similar authonty to allot shares in the capital of the company up to a maxmum nominal
amount of £235,080,000 representing appraximately 66% of the company s ssued ordinary share capital as at 23 March 2010 {the latest practicable date
prior to publication of the Notce of Annual General Meeting) Of this amount, 470,160 000 shares (representng approximately 33% of the company’s
issued ordinary share caprtal) can only be allotted pursuant to a rights issue The power will {ast untl the condusion of the next AGM in 2011

The intention of the directors 1s to allot shares upon the exercise of options granted over Secunicor ple shares and relled over into opuions over the
company s shares The directors do not have any other present intention of exerasing this autherity

As at the date of the Nouce of Annual General Meeting the company does not hold any ordinary shares in the capial of the company in treasury
However, the 5,543 818 shares held within the G4S Employee Benefit Trust and referred to on page 104 (note 37 to the consolidated financial
staterents} are accounted for as treasury shares

2 Disapplication of statutory pre-emption rights (Resclution 10)

Resolution 10 seeks shareholder approval to give the directors authenity to allot shares in the capital of the company pursuant to the authority
grarted under Resolution 9 above for cash without complying wath the pre-emption rights in the 2006 Act in certain arcumstances This authority
will permit the directors to allot

{a) shares up to a nominal amount of £235,080,000 (representing approximately 66% of the company s 1ssued share caprtal) on an offer to existing
shareholders However unless the shares are allotted pursuant o a rights 1ssue (rather than an open offer), the directors may only allot shares up
to a nominal amount of £117,540 000 (representing approximately 33% of the company s issued share capital) (in each case subject to any
adjustrents, such as for fractional entitlements and overseas shareholders, as the directers see fit) and

(b) shares up to a maximurn nominal value of £17,630 0C0, representing approximately 5% of the 1ssued ordinary share caprtal of the company as at
25 March 2010 (the latest practicable date prior to publcation of the Notice of Annual General Meeting) otherwise than in connection with an
offer to existing shareholders

As with Reselution 9, the terms of Resolution 10 are broadly the same as last years resolution but the resclution has been updated to reflect that it s
being passed pursuant to section 570 of the 2006 Act rather than section 95 of the Companies Act 1985

The directors confirm their ntention to follow the provisions of the Pre-emption Groups Statement of Principles regarding cumulaiive usage of
authorrties within a rolling three-year period The Principles provide that companies should nat issue shares for cash representing more than 7 5% of
the company’s issued share caprtal in any rollng three-year period other than to existing sharehalders without prior consultation with shareholders

3 Purchase of own shares (Resolution 11}

Resolution 13 seeks to renew the company’s authority to buy back its awn ordinary shares in the market as permmitted by the 2006 Act The authonty
limits the number of shares that could be purchased 1o a maximum of 141 000 000 (representing a little less than 10% of the company's issued
ordinary share caprtal as at 23 March 2010 (the Jatest practicable date prior to publication of the Nouce of Annual Gereral Meeurg)) and sets
minimum and maximum prices This authority will expire at the condusion of the campany s AGM in 2011

The directers have no present intention of exercising the authority to purchase the company s ordinary shares but will keep the matter under review
taking into account the finanaal resources of the company, the company's share price and future funding opportunities The authonty will be exeruised
only if the directors believe that to do so would result in an increase in earnings per share and would be 1n the interests of shareholders generally

No shares were purchased pursuant 1o the equivalent authority granted 1o the directors at the company s last AGM

As at 23 March 2010 (the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting), there were options over 100,000
ordinary shares in the caprtal of the company representing 0 0071% of the company s ssued ordinary share capital If the authority to purchase the
company's ordinary shares was exercised in full these options would represent 00078% of the company s 1ssued ordinary share capital
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4 Polhtical donations (Resolution 12)

Resolution 12 1s designed to deal with the rules on poliucal donations contained in the 2006 Act Under the rules poliucal donations to any political
parties, Independent election candidates or political organisations or the incurring of political expenditure are prohibited unless authonsed by
shareholders in advance What constiwutes a poltical donation a poltical party a political orgarisation or poliical expenditure 15 not easy to decide
as the legislation 1s capable of wide interpretation Sponsorship, subscriptions payment of expenses paid leave for employees fulfiling public duties
and support for bodies representing the business community in policy review or reform may fall within this

Therefore notwithstanding that the company has not made political donations requinng shareholder authority in the past and has no intention

erther now or in the future of making any such political donation or incurring any such pohitical expenditure in respect of any political party, political
organisation or iIndependent election candidate the board has deaded to put forward Resolution 12 This will allow the company to support the
community and put forward its views to wider business and government interests without running the sk of being in breach of the law As permitted
underthe 2006 Act Resolution 12 also covers peolitical denations made, or political expenditure incurred by any subsidiaries of the company

5 Adoption of new articles of association (Resolution 13)

The company proposes to adopt new articles of assoaation (the New Arucles } at the 2010 AGM These incorporate amendments to the
current articles of association to reflect the changes in company faw brought about by the 2006 Act which replaced the Companies Act 1985
was Implemerited in stages and was fully in force by | October 2009 In addition, the Companies {Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 (the
"Shareholders Rights Regulations™} came into force on 3 August 2009 and amended certan provisions of the 2006 Act relating to certain rights
of shareholders at meetings of the company

The principal changes in the Naw Articles relate to electronic communications, shareholder meetings and resolutions, the company's constitution and
share caprtal The New Articles also include seme other medernising and clanficatory wording including where appropriate tracking the wording of
the new model form articles for puble companies contained in Schedule 3 1o the Companies (Model Articles) Regulations 2008 (the “model form
articles ) which replace the Table A aruides under the Companies Act 1985 on which many of the company s current articles are based

Under the 2006 Act all provisions of the company s memorandum, but most sigrificantly the objects dause were deemed to form part of the
company’s articles from | October 2009 including, in particular the statement of objects and the statement of authorised share capital The 2006
Act does not require a company to set out 1its objects it provides that, unless the articles state otherwise a company s objects will be unrestncted
The 2006 Act also removes the requirement for a company to place limits on ts authorised share capital

By adopting the New Artides, which do not contain an objects clause or the authonsed share caprial statement, the company will remove from its
articles these provisions, which would otherwise be deemed to form part of the company s articles under section 28 of the 2006 Act

The prinaipal changes to the arucles of assocation can be summarised as follows

(a) The company's objects
The 2006 Act significantly reduces the constitunional sgmificance of a company s memorandum The prowisions governing the operations of the
company are currently set out In both its memorandum of asscciation and its articles of associaton Under the 2006 Act the memorandum no
longer contains an objects clause and simply records the names of the subscribers and the number of shares which each subscrber agreed to
take in the company Under section 28 of the 2006 Act the objects dause and all other prowisions in the memorandum are treated as
part of the articles with effect from | October 2009 but the company can remove these provisions by special resolution Unless the articles
provide otherwise, the company's objects will be unrestnicted The company 1s proposing to remove its objects clause together with all other
provisions of its memorandum which, by wrtue of the 2006 Act are treated as forming part of the company sarticles of association as of
| October 2009 Resolution 13 confirms the removal of these prowisions and adopts the New Articles

(&) Lirmuted habuity (Article 3}
Under the 2006 Act the memorandum of asseciation also no longer contains a clause stating that the lability of the members of a company
15 imited For existing companies this statement is automaucally treated as having moved into the artcdles on | October 2009 As noted above
Resolution 130) confirms the remaval, from the company's articles of assocation, of the provisions of the company s mermorandum of association
which are treated as forming part of the company’s articles of assoaiation by virtue of section 28 of the 2006 Act which includes the statement
of lrmited hability An explait statement of the members' imited Lability is therefore included in the New Articles

(¢} Autherised share capital and unissued shares
The 2006 Act abolishes the concept of authorised share capital and, under the 2006 Act, the memorandum of association no longer contans
a statement of the company s authonsed share capital For existing compantes, this staterment 1s deemed to be a provision of the company s
articles of association setting out the maximum amount of shares that may be allotted by the company The adoption of the New Articles
by the company will have the effect of removing this provision relaung to the maximum amount Directors will sull need to obtain the usual
shareholders authonsation in order to allot shares except in respect of employee share schemes

References to authonised share capital and to unmissued shares have therefore been removed from the New Arucles

(d) Redeemable shares (Arucle 7)
Under the 2006 Act the articles of assocration need not include the terms on which redeemable shares may be redeemed The directors
may determine the terms condrtions and manner of redemption of redeemable shares provided they are authorised to do so by the articles
The New Artdies contain such authonsation The company currently has no plans to ssue redeemable shares but if it did so the directors
would need shareholders authonty to 1ssue new shares in the usual way

(e} Share cervficates (Arucle 15)
The New Artictes contain new provisions for the issue of consohdated share certificaies, in line with the model forrn articles

{f) Transfer of shares (Former Arudle 41)
The provision which gave the ability to suspend the registration of transfers of shares for penods not exceeding 30 days in any one year has
been removed from the New Articles as there 15 no ability under the 2006 Act to cdlose the regster
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{g) Authonty to purchase own shares consolidate and sub-dmde shares ond reduce share capital (Artidle 44 and Former Articles 52 and 53)
Under the Companies Act 1985, 2 company required speciic authorisations in its articles of assocaton 1 purchase sts own shares to consoldate
or sub-divide 115 shares and to reduce ts share capital Under the 2006 Act public companies do not require speaific authonsations in their
articles of association to undertake these actions but shareholder authority is still required Amendments have been made to the New Articles
to reflect these changes

(h) Notice of general meeungs (Articles 47 and 53)
The provisions in the New Articles dealing with the convening of general meetings and the length of notice required to convene general
meetings are In line with the relevant provisions of the 2006 Act (as amended by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations) The Shareholders
Rights Regulations amended the 2006 Act to require the company to give 21 dear days' notice of general meetings unless the company has
passed a special resolution reduaing the notice penod to not less than 14 days and the company offers members an electronic voting facility

The amendment to Article 53 deals with situations where because of a postal strike or smilar siuaton beyond the control of the company, a
notice of meeting 1s not received by a shareholder The amendment wall ensure that such failure does not Invahdate proceedings at the meeung
N question

(4 Adpurnments (Article 55)
The Shareholders' Rights Regulations add a prowision to the 2006 Act which requires that when a general meeting 1s adjourned due to lack
of quorum at least ten days' notice must be given to reconvene the meeting The New Artides include amendments to the provisions dealing
with notice of adjourned meetings 1o make them consistent with this new requirement

() Attencing and speaking at meetings (Article 58)
Article 58 of the New Articles now provides that the chairman of the meeting may permit non-members or persons who are not entitied
to exercise the rights of members to attend and at the chairmans discretion speak at a general meeting

(k) Particpation m meetings at different places and by electronic means (Artickes 59 60 and 61)
Amendments made to the 2006 Act by the Shareholders Rights Regulations specifically provide for the holding and conducting of electronic
meetings The New Articles include amendments to perrmit the directors to provide greater scope fer members to partiopate in meetings
of the company even If they are net present in person at the pnnapal place where the meeting 1s being held The amendments permit the
directors to allow for members to particpate not only by attendance at satellite meeting locations, but also by any other electronic means
of paruapation

(i Removal of charmans casting vote (Former Articie 82}
Pursuant to changes brought about by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations a isted company 1s no longer persmitted to allow the chairman
to have a casting vole In the event of an equality of votes Accordingly this provision has been removed in the New Arucles

() Voung rights (Article 74)
The Shareholders Rights Regulations clarify the vanious powers of proxies and representatives of corporate members in respect of resolutions
taken on a show of hands Where a proxy has been duly appointed by one member he or she has one vote on a show of hands unless he or
she has been appointed by more than one member in which case the proxy has one vote for and one vote against f the proxy has been appointed
by one or more members to vote for the resoluton and by one or more other members to vote against the resolution Where a corporate
member appoints represeritatives to attend meetings on its behalf each representative duly apponted by a corporate member has one vote
on a show of hands Ifa proxy is instructed by one or more members to vote N one way and 1s given discretion as to how to vote by one or
more other members (and wishes to use that discretion to vote In the other way) he also has one vote for and one vote against the resolution

() Voting record date (Arucle 75)
In ine wrth a requirement for listed companies introduced by the Shareholders Rights Regulations the New Articles include a new provision,
which was not previously in the company s artcles of assoaation dealing with the methed for determining which persons are allowed to attend
or vote at a general meeting of the company and how many votes each person may cast Under this new provision when convening
ameeting the company may speafy a tme, not more than 48 hours before the time of the meeting (excluding any part of a day that 15 not
a working day), by which a person must be entered on the regster of members in order to have the nght to attend or vote at the meeting

(o) Viahdity of proxy votes (Arucle 79(2))
Following the implementation of the Shareholders Rights Regulations proxies are expressly required to vote In accordance with instructions
given 1o them by members The New Articles contain a provision stating that the company 1s not required to enquire whether a proxy
or corporate representative has voted in accordance with instructions given to him or her and that votes cast by a proxy or corporate
representative will be valid even if he or she has not voted in accordance with his or her instructions

(b) Receipt of appontments of proxy and termingtion of proxy outhonty {Article 83}
The deadines for recaipt of termination of proxy authority have been brought into line with the deadines for receipt of proxies Article 83
also permits the directors to speafy n a notice of meeting that in determining the time for delivery of proxies nc account shall be taken
of non-working days

(q) Alternate direciors (Arucle 97)
Article 97(c} makes 1t clear that an alternate 1s subject to the same restnictions as the drector who appointed him

(r} Borrowing powers {Arucle 101)
A number of presentational and descriptive amendments have been made to the borrowing powers provision

{8) Delegation to persons or commiuttees (Artcle 102)
Under the company s existing articles of association the directors may only formally delegate their powers in certain imited ways Article 102
follows a simplified approach to delegation to modermise the procedure for delegation, allowang the directors to delegate as they decide
appropnate, i ine with the approach adopted in the model form articles
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(1} Retrement of directors by rotation (Article 103}

The New Articles have been redrafted in order to make this provision clearer and to ensure {as far as possible) a regutar number of retining
directors each year, with the number 1o retire being the number nearest to one-third of the board, excluding those directors who are retinng
and seeking re-election for other reasons Artide |03 continues to comply with Cembined Code provision A 71 which recommends that al
directors should be subject to re-election at intervals of ne more than three years

{u) Directors’ appontments interests and conflicts of nterest (Article [14)

v

=

Under the company’s current articles of association, a director may, notwithstanding his or her office as a drector of the company be a
director, officer or employee of any body corporate in which the company s inierested — provided that he or she has disclosed 10 the other
directors the nature and extent of any matenal nterest he or she has

In the New Articles, this prowsion has been amended to include prowvisions relaung to confidential nformation attendance at board meeungs
and avaltability of board papers 1o proiect a director from bang in breach of duty if a conflici of nterest or potential conflict of nterest anses
These prowisions will only apply where the positon grvng rise to the potential conflict fatls within the situations covered by Article 114

Article 114 has also been further amended for practical reasons so that, where a director is also a director, officer or employee of a body
corporate in which the company 15 imterested he shall be deemed to have disclosed the nature and extent of this interest to the directors
as required under this provision

Procedures regarchng board meetings and resolutions 1 wnting (Articles 119 ond 124}

The provizions of Article 119 have been amendied to make it clear that notice of a board meeting may be given personally by telephone, in hard
copy or n electronic form  The requirements for gvng notice to directors who are not in the United Kingdom have also been clanfied In order 1o
danfy the procedure for writien resclutions of directors Article 124 has been amended so that rather than refemng to a resolution in writing by
all directors, a resolution in writing wili be vaiid and effectual as If it had been passed at a meeting if executed by all the directors entitled 1o receve
notice of the meeting and who would have been entitled to vote (and whose vote would have been counted) on a resolution at a meeting

{w) Permutted mterests and voting (Article 125)

Artcle 125 has been amended to allow a director to vote on a resolution which relates to gving him an indemaity or funding for expenditure
incurred in defending proceedings provided afl the other directors have been given or are to be given arrangements on substantally the same
terms This exception has become a commeon exception for listed companies 1o inchude

(%) Remowal of age kit for directors (Former Article 124)

The provisian requinng a director s age to be disclosed i a notice of meeting at which that director 1s to be appointed or reapponted, # that '
director has attained the age of 70 years or more has been removed from the New Articles to reflect the repeal of the previous provisions
regarding directors over 70 from the Companies Act 1985

{y} Nouces and other commuricatons (Aricles 82 148-157)

The 2006 Act enables companies to cormmunicate with therr members by electronic communication to a greater exttent than previously
permitted Article 149 will provide the company with a general power to send or supply any notice document or information te any member
by a variety of methods — In person by post or In efectronic form (such as by emal), or by making it avarlable on the company's website

In addition to any notice documnent or information which 1s specifically required to be sent or supplied under the 2006 Act the company

will also be able to send any other document or iInformation to members using this vanety of methods '

Article 82 allows the company 1o permit proxes to be sent or supplied in electromic form and where the company gives an electronic address
in a form of proxy shareholders may send the appointment of proxy to that electronic address subject to any condritions or imrtations
specified in the relevant notice of meeting

The company may ask each member for his or her consent to receve communications from the company via its website If the member does
not respond to the request for consent within 28 days, the company may take that as consent by the member to receive communications In
this way [f the company sends or supplies any notice, document or Information 1o members by making it avadable on the company's website,

it must notify each member who has consented {or 1s deemed to have consented) to recerve documeriis via the website erther by post or by
emal (if the member has speafically agreed 10 receve commurucations in electronic formy that the notice, document or nformation has been
placed on the website A member who has consented oris deemed to have consented to receve cormmunications via the website can request
a hard copy of any document at any e Members can also revoke their consent 1o receve electronic communications at any ume

In relation to jont holders of shares Arucle 149(3) provides that the agreement of the first-named holder on the register of members 10
accept notices documents or infarmaton electronically or via a website shall be binding on the other joint hoiders Article 149(4) permits

the company not to send or supply any notice docurment or Information to a member whaose registered address 1s not in the United Kingdom
unless that member gives a non-electronic address in the United Kingdom

Article 149(6) caters for situations where the provisson of corporate information in electronic form or via a website may amount to a breach
of securities laws of another junsdicuon The company may send hard copies if 1t needs to restrict the crculation of Information in certain
crcumstances, such as for US securtties law reasons I

Artcle 152 15 the article covenng service of notice in the event of a postal stnke, it has been amended to allow the company in sudh arcumstances
1o serve notices only on those members who recerve nouces via electronic means previded that, as before the company also puts an advert in
two national newspapers and sends a confismatory hard copy notice f the postal service 15 avallable again withn seven days of the meeting

Artucle |56 deals with nouces, documents or informaton sent by the company to a member which have been returned undelvered on
three consecutive occasions The member will anly be entitled to be sent further communications upon provsion of a new postal or
electronic address to the company

Arucle 157 15 ncluded to deal with the vahdaton of documents in electronic form by members where required by the Articles In the case
of notices of meetngs or proxies any validation requirements must be specified in the notice
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(2) Making and retention of minutes {Article 130)
Article 130 contains a new prowision to the effect that minutes must be retaned for at least ten years, reflecting the refevant provision of the
2006 Act (No minimum retention time was specified previously)

{oa) The seal (Articles 132 and 133)
Article 132 provides an alernative option (in the absence of speaiflic nstructions from the directors) for documents (other than share
certificates) to which the seal is affixed to be signed by one authonsed person in the presence of a watness, in addiion to erther two directors
or a director and the secretary

6 Period of Notice for Calling General Meetings (Resolution 14)
Resolution 14 15 a resolution to allow the company to hold general meetings (other than AGMs) on 14 days' notice

Before the ntroduction of the Shareholders' Rights Regulations on 3 August 2009 the minimum notice penod permitted by the 2006 Act for general
meetings (other than AGMs) was 14 days One of the amendmenits made to the 2006 Act by the Regulations was to ncrease the mmimum notice
period for general meetings of hsted companies to 21 days, but with an ability for companies to reduce this period back to 14 days (other than for
AGMs) provided that two conditions are met The first condiuon s that the company offers a faclity for shareholders to vote by electronic means
This condition 15 met if the company offers a facility, accessible to all shareholders, to appoint a proxy by means of a website The second condition 1s
that there 15 an annual resolution of shareholders approving the reduction of the minimum notice period from 21 days to 14 days

The board 1s therefore proposing Rescluton 14 as a special resolution to approve 14 days as the minimum period of notice for all general meetings

of the company other than AGMs The approval will be effective until the company s next AGM when 1t is intended that the approval be renewed

The board will consider on a case by case basis whether the use of the flexibility offered by the shorter notice peniod 1s maritad, taking into account
the arcumstances, Including whether the business of the meeting 15 tme sensitive
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Group financial record

Employees

With over 595,000 employees G4S 15 the second-largest
private employer in the world We take great pride in the

+59%

in employee numbers
n 2009

important work carried out by our global workfor¢e who do GRAPH
everything they can to ensure the secunty and safety of our REMOVED
customers and their assets o)
26.6%
Annualised labour turmover
rate, down from 27 7% 1n 2008
Earnings per share O
+229
Since 2004 G45 has generated average earnings per share EPS 1n 2009
growth of 16% on a compounded basis
GRAPH
REMOVED 5
+16%
EPS CAGR* from 2004
to 2009
Revenue o)
+1/79%
G45 revenues have grown by an average of |7 8% over the R
evenues in 2009 (+7 4% on
last five years The group strategy for enhanced growth has helped a constant currency basis)
delver strong undertying organic growth together with capability GRAPH Y
adding-acquisitions to help drive growth into the future REMOVED

+17.8%

Revenue CAGR* from 2004
to 2009
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Profit

Operating profit defined as profit before interest tax and
amortisation, has grown by an average of 24 8% over the last five

+219%

PBITA 1n 2009 (+10 0% on
a constant currency basis)

years The ncrease in operaung profit has been driven by strong GRAPH
revenue growth, a strong cost focus and an improving business REMOVED
mx with our igher growth businesses such as government and le)
New Markets hawang higher than the group average margins +24 . 8 /3
PBITA CAGR* from 2004
to 2009
Revenue from New Markets + | 4%
Our global presence, market shares and expenence of working Revenue from New Markets
in less developed markets s unrivalled in almost any ndustry 0 2009
It means that we know what 1t takes to be successful In these GRAPH
markets and are well positioned to maximise the structural REMOVED
growth opportunities as they develop over time +3 l (y
(®]
Revenue from New Markets
CAGR* from 2004 to 2009
Actual share performance +27(y
O
Since 2004 the G465 share price has nearly trebled G4S share price in 2009
outperforming the FTSE 100 (see page 53 for detalled
TSR performance and peer group) CRAPH
REMOVED

+18%

G4S share price CAGR*
from 2004 to 2009

* CAGR s compound annual growth rate
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Financial calendar and corporate addresses

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Results announcements

Half-year results — August
Final results — March

Dividend payment

Interm paid — 30 October 2009
Final payable — 4 June 200

Annual General Meeting
28 May 2010

Registered office

The Manor

Mancr Raoyal

Crawley

West Sussex RHIO SUN
Telephone +44 {0) 1293 554 400

Registered number
4992207

Registrars and transfer office

Caprta Registrars
Northern House
Woodsome Park

Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield HD8 0GA

Telephone within the UK 0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p per
minute plus network extras, lines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm
Monday to Friday) from outside the UK +44 20 8639 3399

Fax +44 (0) 1484 600 91|
Email ssd@capitaregistrars com

Please note that benefical owners of shares who have been
nominated by the registered holder of those shares to recewve
information rights under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006
are required to direct all communications to the registered
holder of their shares rather than to the compary or the
company s registrar

Auditor

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

8 Salsbury Square
London EC4Y 8BB

Stockbrokers

Deutsche Bank AG London
Winchester House

| Great Winchester Street
London EC2N 208

Financial advisors

Greenhill & Co International LLP
Lansdowne House

57 Berkeley Square

London W) 6ER

Deutsche Bank AG London
Winchester House

| Great Winchester Street
London EC2N 20B

G4S website

www g4s com
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